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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules for the purposes of giving information with regard
to the Company and its subsidiaries. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Unless the context otherwise requires, the capitalized terms used
under Corporate Information, Financial Highlights, Chairman’s
Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis, Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management, Corporate Governance
Report, Report of the Directors, Environmental, Social and
Governance Report and Financial Summary shall have the respective

Glossary
2= =
Aol 5=

BXESBMEEN REER MBEHE TER
S EEENWEST BEELSREEEZEE
HE EXEAME EFEWME RE HER
ERMEANRMBHREMAAZEEEATHE
GORSEPEE -

meanings set out below.

‘2017 AGM”

[—E—tFRRBAFKRE]

“2018 AGM”

[—Z-N\FRRBFR2]

“AGM(s)’
[RERBAFARZ ]

“Articles of Association”
[EZR24881]

“Audit Committee”

[BEZEEE]

“Board”
=3
“CG Code”

[EEERTRI

“Chairman”

(X% )

“Chief Executive Officer”

[BERHITE]

“close associate(s)”
[EEHBEAL]

“Company Secretary”
[REME ]

“controlling shareholder(s)”
[ 452 AR A 5R

the AGM held on Tuesday, 9 May 2017
RZE—+tFRANB (EBHD)BITHNREBFAE

the AGM to be held on Tuesday, 8 May 2018
BRZZE-N\FRANB(EPD)BTNRRBF RS

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

ARRABBWRBFAE

articles of association of the Company
RRRZERAA

audit committee of the Board

ExgER%ES

board of Directors

-

corporate governance code contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules

GEM_E i 43 RIFf 8%+ AP sl 2 (e ¥ E0a < A

chairman of the Board
EE2GIR

chief executive officer of the Company

ARBZERRITE

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the GEM Listing Rules
BBGEM LR BIATIE 78R E

company secretary of the Company

RRBzRAEIWE

has the same meaning ascribed to it under the GEM Listing Rules
HEBGEM LR BIATIE T 88 E

F37 2017 « FHEBRALEBERAAF



Glossary

2o

Al =

“CSF” or “Company” or
“Chong Sing Holdings”

[CSF sk [RAF ] s [Fh#iZh] 5

“Director(s)”

[E %] i
“EGM(s)”

(R AE] |

“Executive Committee”

[(MITEREE] Ec

“Executive Director(s)” or “ED(s)

[BITEE i3
“FinTech”

[&BRHE i3
“GDP”

[GDP | 5
“GEM”

[GEM | i1

“GEM Listing Rules”

[GEM_ETRAY] Ec

“General Mandate”

[ — AR HE ] i
“Group”
[AR&EE] i

Chong Sing Holdings FinTech Group Limited, incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the issued Shares of which are listed and traded on
GEM (Stock code: 8207)

REERAREERR AR —FRXFeESEMKIZ BRAF  HE #1T
B MGEM £ )R 22 5 (AR5 (5% - 8207)

director(s) of the Company

KRBES

extraordinary general meeting(s) of the Company
RRARRRERARE

executive committee of the Board

ExguiT%EE

executive Director(s)

WITES

financial technology

& A RHR

gross domestic product
NEERE

GEM operated by the Stock Exchange
B 22 P 8 B B GEM

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM made by the Stock Exchange
from time to time

Bt <2 BT B 6 BT RO GEMAE 25 £ AR Rl

general and unconditional mandate granted to the Directors to allot, issue
and deal with additional securities of the Company (including amongst others,
offers, agreements, options, warrants or similar rights in respect thereof) by the
Shareholders at general meetings of the Company)

BERARRBRRAG FRTFEF—REEBEGEREARE BTREER
NAFEINESF (KT BREBEEELD  HhE  BIE RBREZ A LER)

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRBREME QR
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“HKFRS(s)”

[BAEMBEREER]

“HK$”
(%l
“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“Independent Auditor”
[ Y8 37 7% 2

“Independent Non-executive
Director(s)” or “INED(s)”
[(BIIEHNTEE

“Nomination Committee”

B0

»

“Non-executive Director(s)” or
“NED(s)”

[FEENTTEE ]

“PRC” or “China”

[HEL)

“Register of Members”

[ AL ER 4

“Remuneration Committee”
E:d A

‘RMB”
(AR

“SFO”

(787 M ' &P

Glossary

= &

At SR

the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants

ARG AESRM BB B MmE LR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BBEEEH

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEBR TR

independent auditor of the Company

ZAN/NIE RV 3
independent non-executive Director(s)
BINEMITES

nomination committee of the Board

ExgiER%Ee

non-executive Director(s)

FHITES

the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of this annual report,
excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

hEARKME tAFHNE  TEEDE RFIFHITHREREE

register of members of the Company
ZAYNSI & e

remuneration committee of the Board
EExeTMEEY

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE PBEIEEEHR

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) as
amended from time to time

BT LAEFT R 7 B GRD (BB EDIFEE7T1E)

£35 2017 « M RBAEEEERAT 4



Glossary
== =

Ao B
“SGD”

[ ¥ hnsg e
“Share(s)”
[ 1n ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ IR R

“SME(s)’
[FR/ N

“Stock Exchange”
[ B8 22 P

»

“subsidiary(ies)
EIEPAE

“UCF Pay”
[Fe883 1]

“Uss”
(7]

“VND”
[ fE

“Year”

[REE]

cop”
(% )k B

*

For identification purposes only

*

Singapore dollars, the lawful currency of the Republic of Singapore
AN T - E AN HFEATE B

ordinary share(s) of par value of HK$0.02 each in the share capital of the
Company
ARBAP EFREE0.028 T2 Eimk

holder(s) of the Share(s)
SEHES TN

small and medium-sized enterprise(s)
N O 3

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEERBERSMERAR]

has the same meaning ascribed to it under the GEM Listing Rules
HABGEM LR RIFTHE T 608 &

88X AR A A (UCF Pay Limited*) (formerly known as A& &£ E1ERG A
R A &) (UCF Business Services Co., Limited*)
BTN ERAR (AIBAELENBREERAF)

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
Er EBUEE B

Vietnamese dong, the lawful currency of Vietnam

BEE BREEEHR

year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—tFt+_A=+—HItEFE

per cent. or percentage
Baotk

ERHEE
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Phang Yew Kiat
(Vice-chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chng Swee Ho
Mr. Sheng Jia
Mr. Yang Jianhui (Appointed on 8 November 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Mingshan (Chairman)

Mr. Li Gang

Mr. Zhang Zhenxin

Ms. Zhou Youmeng

Mr. Wong Sai Hung (Resigned on 5 February 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ge Ming

Dr. Ou Minggang

Dr. Wang Songaqji (Appointed on 27 June 2017)
Dr. Yin Zhongli

Mr. Wang Wei (Resigned on 1 April 2017)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Siu Man (A fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of

Chartered Secretaries)

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chng Swee Ho

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Phang Yew Kiat
Mr. Kwok Siu Man

Corporate Information
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Corporate Information

nAE#H

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ge Ming (Chairman)

Dr. Ou Minggang

Dr. Wang Songai (Appointed on 27 June 2017)
Dr. Yin Zhongli

Mr. Wang Wei (Resigned on 1 April 2017)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Ou Minggang (Chairman)

Mr. Ge Ming

Dr. Wang Songqi (Appointed on 27 June 2017)
Dr. Yin Zhongli

Mr. Wang Wei (Resigned on 1 April 2017)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Yin Zhongli (Chairman) (Appointed as chairman on 27 June 2017)

Mr. Ge Ming

Dr. Ou Minggang

Dr. Wang Songgqi (Appointed on 27 June 2017)
Mr. Wang Wei (Resigned on 1 April 2017)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Merchants Bank Hong Kong Branch
21/F, Bank of America Tower

12 Harcourt Road

Central, Hong Kong

China Construction Bank Corporation
(Shanghai Nanjing West Road Sub-branch)
No. 577-587, Nanjing West Road
Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China

BERZEE

BREE (£E)

BX AR 1% £

ITREEL (R-FE—+FANA-—TLHEZE)
FHRUIBE

ITRELE (R-F—FHA—HEFHE)

REBEERE

EREARIE (/%)

EREE

IMEELE (R_F—LFANA-TLHEZL)
FHRUIBE

IRAeE (R-F—FOHA—HEE)

HMESE

FHIEL (FE) (R=F—tFA=F+tH
L ERLRE)

ERxLE

BX AR A 1% £

FREEL (R-FE—+FANA-—TLHEZE)
EIHRAELE (R-F—+FHH—HEFE)

FEERRT

BHERITEEDIT
BEFIR
BRE125
EBERITR 0218

FRERIBITROERAD A
(ESmRAEXIT)
REARLAME S
R PH E577-5875%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
43/F, Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Mayer Brown JSM

16th-19th Floors, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road, Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Rooms 3533-39, Level 35
Two Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Corporate Information

NRER

¥ 3L 1% BH B

EXRFM(BR) TR EHAARAA
MR G

B8 i e

7 1B B335

A E — #4318

HEER

FFEFTERITT
B

FIRIET 8105
KFRE16-191

AEMMER

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

BEREIEEXEME

BB

& % 1B 885
KEES —E
35123533-39=
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Corporate Information

nAE#H

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Room E-F, 28F, Mirae Asset Tower
No. 166 Lujiazui Ring Road
Pudong, Shanghai

The PRC

Postal Code 200120

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor
24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.csfgroup.com

STOCK CODE

08207

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

ir@csfgroup.com

MMERRPFEEZERMES

#

EERRSE

B 2R 1 3R 516655
KRREEKNE2SEEFE
45200120

RBIB BB 0 BIR4HE P R
BiE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor
24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman lIslands

EERMBRELTE

HEBAELARRAA
aBE

SR AREE1835%

A R 224

48

www.csfgroup.com

Bz 4 4K 5%

08207

REZRFEBREAX

ir@csfgroup.com
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Financial Highlights
B 75 4 &

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2017 2016 Changes
—E—tE T AF 29
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET R ARETF T
OPERATING RESULTS R
Turnover EEE 4,805,010 1,075,677 346.7%
Profit for the year FEmM 1,098,448 342,247 221.0%
Profit attributable to RNRRHEE AEIE R
owners of the Company 803,013 301,122 166.7%
Non-GAAP profit attributable to AR HEEB AEL
owners of the Company F—MRAREFRA
i ) 619,276 414,105 49.5%
RMB RMB Changes
AR# AR B E
Earnings per share FREAAN
— basic —HK 3.65 cents% 1.48 cents? 146.6%
— diluted —#E 3.49 cents% 1.43 cents? 144.1%
Non-GAAP earnings per share BRIE—MAREETRA
il
— basic —H K 2.82 cents%y 2.04 cents? 38.2%
— diluted —#E 2.69 cents%y 1.97 cents? 36.5%
2017 2016 Changes
—F—t#& —ZE-RF BE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT
FINANCIAL POSITION B FS AR
Total assets BEPE 12,323,588 8,862,513 39.1%
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 969,249 1,233,391 -21.4%
Total liabilities BERE 6,757,172 4,620,933 46.2%
Net assets BEFE 5,566,416 4,241,580 31.2%

2017« pmpRereasres 10



Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present our annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

2017 was destined to be an extraordinary year for the FinTech
industry in China. Due to the deep integration of financial services
with new technologies including cloud computing, big data,
blockchain, internet-of-things and artificial intelligence, the FinTech
industry has experienced rapid development and China has become
the global center of development of the FinTech industry. Thanks
to the deepening of the economic integration process of ASEAN
and the guidance of the “One Belt One Road” Initiative, FinTech
enterprises from China have commenced their internationalisation
strategy deployment. At the same time, China has entered the
tightening phase of regulatory cycle. The FinTech industry will
move towards standardisation with healthy development while its
contribution and value to the transformation and upgrade of the
national economy and the promotion of inclusive finance will become
increasingly prominent. With finance integrated with industry, it is
going back on track to serve the real economy.

After four years of effort, the Group has successfully transformed
from a traditional finance company to a Fintech group, and has
developed a comprehensive FinTech services ecosystem with
multiple leading platforms. In 2017, the Group duly changed its
company name and focused on its core business segments including
payment and technology-enabled lending. With the headquarters of
Southeast Asia established in Singapore, the Group has successfully
expanded its businesses to various overseas countries. Leveraging
on its comprehensive business qualifications and risk management
capabilities, the Group’s business platforms received affirmation and
recognition from regulatory authorities and industry associations
including the People’s Bank of China. The Group has been selected
as a constituent stock of the Morgan Stanley Capital International
(MSCI) China All-Share Index in May 2017, demonstrating that our
strategy and development are recognised by the global capital
market.

BRIRR

AANERKRESZS MARZAKEEEZ-_T—+
FT_A=+t—"BILFENEFEE-

T—tF YRHBEERMRNE  EERED
%mm FoREETE  AHE ELRE- Y
B ATERESEHRMESRORESS SR
RITEDARTREZROKH "EEEKRE
BREMMREROTL - SHENXRALE L
ERARAM [ —H— ] BEM5IE PR
REEHHhERAERHE - B RFER
HEAT —EZBY REERHR SRBRITE
B & MR R - i B B S A T R A
%%@@ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ@mmﬁﬁﬁ*éﬂﬁ
MEIMERE WEBERAEARSTHALRR
%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%$ﬁ

RBNFNS N RAERKD KT HERS
RITHMREBRNKE BEERBZEEL
FENGESRBMRERRG - —T—tF5H
EATERES BEBEREEIMNAIREER
FARORIRIR L - WHERTIIKERSL T SR AR AL -
RN EBIRIBINZEABER - EEE XK F
ﬁ’%%’*i’-‘fi\ﬁ’liﬁég TeHE LR B SR RE 1 &

BRIOTEEERBRITEBS S EMAA - H I
%hﬁﬁ_f tiﬂﬂ%&%k@ﬁtﬂﬂﬂ
AERPEAARES TORREHEARTS
SR B RS AN R AR Al
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group has comprehensively upgraded its FinTech services
ecosystem and strategically diversified its product and service
offerings with an aim to deliver sustainable and stable returns for
our shareholders. The Group’s payment platforms UCF Pay and
Shanghai Jifu Xinxi Jishu Fuwu Co., Ltd* ( E/8BVE 2 B BT AR 7
BBRAR]) have not only achieved rapid growth but also exported
their leading technology capabilities and management experience
overseas, generating synergy with Amigo Technologies Joint Stock
Company, a payment platform in Vietham we newly acquired. By
leveraging on its strong risk management and business operating
capabilities, the Group’s technology-enabled lending platform
Weshare has further solidified its leading position in the FinTech
industry, and recorded a significant increase in revenue. Weshare
has also actively responded to policy adjustments and expanded
its business towards the overseas market. With a strategic vision,
the Group expanded its footprints to the blockchain sector and
has developed into a sizable scale through efforts of more than
a year. The Group’s development in several fields including
software, datacenters, and hardware manufacturing are in progress
simultaneously. In the meantime, the Group has expanded its
business territory into insurance and asset management. Singapore
Life and Havenport, the newly acquired platforms, began to operate
at a sizable manner.

The Group also witnessed remarkable performance growth in
2017. As at the end of 2017, total registered users of the Group
reached more than 73 million, representing a year-on-year growth
of 125%. The Group recorded a total transaction volume of more
than RMB2,700 billion in 2017, representing a year-on-year growth
of 239%. With organic growth and results of strategic investments,
the Group’s reported profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of RMB803,013,000, 166.7% higher than that of the
year before. Furthermore, earnings per share amounted to RMB3.65
cents, 146.6% higher compared with that in 2016.

*

the English translation of the Chinese names or words is for information
purpose only and should not be regarded as the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words

TRHE

AT 2 TE A R B AR R R A0 SR S M 3
ZH L EEGRERRY  ARETGRAFELETE
MEHR EEETINFEELEEIAMEFE
EEEMERBERARMER 7 EBRRIERN
B1Z - RRFMEINGE H S E R RS AL - B
HUCBE Y RS 2 5 F ZAmigo Technologies Joint
Stock CompanyfZAk 17 [F 28U - =B R T RHE 5 )
ERTEEZERS RKFERAN R REIZEFEEE
B E—HRE TITEREEMM WA B E T
R WREGESBRAE EEF/ImE - £EIE
BEARENEBEARNEREEE LB —F
SRR DEBARE TRG BBHO
MHEELEEERTERE RSSEEEBRE
ERIRBMEETEMNEL BENFEEH
fn3 A EfMHavenportF A B R iE S -

RN AEEEEERFAEC_S—LEN
BEBAKE - HE-_ZT—tFE A£EFM
BFE S ER7,3008 A - B R125% &
SETZZTE—tLtFNERFHIEBBARE2TE
BT R I8 R239% « B R BN E0 g & K KBS
RENRR AEE_Z—tFREENENA
A R #803,013,0007T ' 8 &= F 1 K166.7% ° It
SN BRREFAARES S BT NFHEE
146.6% °

. ZETNABERAR I KNBEEHRSE LA
R ABREPXEWR AR EREXEF

£32017 « AHREREEAERAT 12



Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

Looking ahead to 2018, the Group will further improve its full-
dimensional comprehensive FinTech services ecosystem of
finance + technology + lifestyle. We will continue to solidify our
leading position in the Asian FinTech industry and promote the
development of inclusive finance in China and Southeast Asia.
Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my gratitude to
all shareholders for their continuous support, and | would also like
to express my sincere thanks to all employees for their dedication
and contributions to the Group. As a team, the Group is committed
to achieving sustainable growth while creating more value for
shareholders and stakeholders in the long-run.

Li Mingshan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 March 2018

RE-T—N\F FHIERE T TESR+F
R+EETAEHENERBEGES SRBHRERR
B BERTTAREDMNEBBEITRNMBA - 2
EPBENRRETIMNESSRER KR RERR
Eg BRAZBRROS I TELFADE
BT ARKEFEHH AR AR B R BUARZH
BIREME AREBEESKRNERA#F
BIER RERREBHEEES(EE-

T
ZHW
BB _E-N\F=A=-+—H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Industry Trends

The FinTech market in Asia experienced rapid growth in 2017.

The FinTech industry in China is in an important stage of
development where payment, consumer finance, online investment
and other segments have obtained a broad customer base
domestically. With various regulatory policies being gradually
implemented during the Year, industry development will get into a
healthier and more orderly phase. According to the projection of
Goldman Sachs, the transaction volume of consumer-related third
party payment in China will grow to US$4.6 trillion in 2020 from
US$1.9 trillion in 2016 while the loan balance of online lending and
consumer finance will grow to US$764 billion in 2020 from US$156
billion in 2016, presenting promising prospects in the market.

In 2017, as leading enterprises from the FinTech industry in China
accelerated their overseas business expansion, the Southeast
Asia region became a premier goal under the “Go Global” strategy.
According to the statistics of CB Insights, the amount of financing
through venture capital by FinTech companies in Southeast Asia
increased 151% year-on-year in 2017. In the meantime, the rapid
development of internet economy in Southeast Asia fostered a sound
environment for the launch of FinTech service. According to Google,
Southeast Asia currently has 260 million internet users, making it
the fourth largest internet market in the world, of which young users
aged below 40 accounted for 70%, and the number of its internet
users is expected to grow at a compound annual rate of 14% in the
next three years.

By leveraging on its comprehensive business qualifications and risk
management capabilities, the Group’s various FinTech platforms
received affirmation and recognition from regulatory authorities (such
as the People’s Bank of China) and industry associations (such as
the National Internet Finance Association of China). In 2017, we
further expanded and diversified our FinTech ecosystem, established
our “Strategy 3.0” for the new phase of development with focus on
four core business segments, namely payment, technology-enabled
lending, blockchain and other wealth management, and succeeded
to expand our business to Vietnam, Singapore and Indonesia in the
Southeast Asia region. As at the end of 2017, total registered users
of the Group reached more than 73 million, representing a year-on-
year growth of 125%. The Group recorded a total transaction volume
of more than RMB2,700 billion in 2017, representing a year-on-year
growth of 239%. By leveraging on our ever-growing FinTech service
ecosystem, we believe that the Group will maintain and consolidate
its market leading position.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Operational Highlights

15

Third party payment

UCF Pay has dedicated to forging a domestic leading service
platform of internet financial transaction, providing customers
with integrated solutions for online + offline payment featuring
“secure, convenient, speedy” service. The total transaction
volume in 2017 reached around RMB628.8 billion, representing
a year-on-year growth of more than 220%. As of the end of
December 2017, UCF Pay’s accumulated active users reached
4.6 million. Current business scope of UCF Pay covers basic
payment service and featured industry solutions including
bank custody for online lending, direct banking, industry chain
finance, cloud platform and electronic wallet.

Shanghai Jifu Xinxi Jishu Fuwu Co., Ltd.* ( E)&BI=E = &
R AT Bk % A FR A &) (“Shanghai Jifu”), our mobile point of
sale (“POS”) provider which is 35% owned by the Group,
recorded a total transaction volume of RMB1,866.6 billion
in 2017, representing a year-on-year growth of 195%. The
accumulated registered users reached 15.9 million as of the
end of December 2017, representing an increase of 8.41
million new registered users as compared to that at the end of
2016. Shanghai Jifu was focused on promoting DianPOS ( 2
) /MPOS and Point POS (EPOS ) business in 2017 and
received positive market feedback, resulting in a substantial
growth in both its transaction volume and number of new
registered users.

Amigo Technologies Joint Stock Company (“Amigo
Technologies”) (in which the Group holds a 51% interest),
our payment services provider in Vietnam, recorded a total
transaction volume of VND160 trillion in 2017, representing
a growth of 30% year-on-year. In 2017, Amigo Technologies’
total number of transactions was 138.3 million, representing
a growth of 51% as compared to 2016. Such strong growth
is mainly driven by the COD (cash-on-delivery) services. In
addition, collection services for public administrative agencies
and tax departments has started to see a month-on-month
increase in transaction volume.

the English translation of the Chinese names or words is for information
purpose only and should not be regarded as the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Operational Highlights (Continued)

Online investment and technology-enabled
lending

Shenzhen Yifangyidai Information Technology Service
Company Limited* R IEEE=EHMREER Q)
(“First House Loan”) achieved a total transaction volume
of RMB14.7 billion in 2017, which demonstrated steady
development trend for the whole year due to stable progress of
existing businesses and continuous growth in number of new
customers. In terms of product development, First House Loan
upgraded its existing personal credit products and launched
new products of supply chain finance targeting financing
demands of quality companies, creating growth opportunities
of new businesses.

Weshare, our consumer finance platform, recorded a significant
growth in 2017. As of the end of December 2017, Weshare
had 24.6 million accumulated registered users, representing an
increase of 15.5 million new registered users as compared to
that at the end of 2016. The accumulated transaction volume
reached RMB63.3 billion in 2017, which was 8.1 times of that
in 2016. In 2017, Weshare developed its “Shandian Jiekuan
(BSEE ) 7, a micro loans product, into a domestic leading
FinTech platform with strong capabilities in technology, risk
management and business operation, thereby consolidating
its leading position in the industry. In addition, Weshare also
provided users with one-stop service through diversified
product layout. Meanwhile, the preliminary development of the
financial cloud platform with big data-based risk management
at its core also enabled Weshare to expand its footprints to
Indonesia in an attempt to launch service in overseas market of
Southeast Asia.

the English translation of the Chinese names or words is for information
purpose only and should not be regarded as the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Operational Highlights (Continued)

17

Others

During the Year, the Group strengthened its business position
in the blockchain sector by launching blockchain transaction
verification and hardware manufacturing business.

After investing in BitFury Group Limited (“BitFury Group”),
a leading full-service blockchain technology company,
the Group further expanded its strategic partnership with
BitFury Group by investing in BitFury Group’s blockchain
infrastructure facilities starting from the first half of 2017. In
the second half of 2017, the Group acquired BitFury Group’s
industrial-level datacenter in Georgia, which leverages state-
of-the-art immersion cooling technology as well as its latest
generation chips to create ideal energy-saving systems for
high performance computation. In addition, as of the end of
December 2017, the Group had industrial-level datacenters in
the United States and Canada.

The Group also launched hardware manufacturing business
in the fourth quarter of 2017. It has launched two industrial
hardware products under the brand name of “Bitfily” with high
performance and low power consumption.

CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenues

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group reported
revenues of approximately RMB4,805.0 million, an increase of 347%
year-on-year. The increase was primarily attributable to growth in
revenues from online investment and technology-enabled lending
services, driven by strong growth in transaction volumes on our key
platforms Weshare which was acquired in November 2016, and a
significant growth in payment transaction volume on our core third
party payment platform UCF Pay, as well as healthy growth in interest
and financial consultancy service income driven by an increase
in the average size of our loan portfolio during the year ended 31
December 2017. The following table sets forth the Group’s revenues
by segment of business for the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2017.

EIE BT o T
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347% MDD EZBHNAFEEFRE KRR
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=1+-HLEE

2017 2016
—5-tf —E-RE
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenues RMB’000 revenues
EE-LON EBIA
AR¥T T BRI AREFTL B
Traditional loans and financing ~ EHER LB E 557,093 11.6 429,988 40.0
Third party payment service E=AZARB 338,950 7.0 189,983 176
Online investment and technology- E 4% & &
enabled lending service B ERE B SRS 3,334,003 69.4 366,517 34.1
Others Hit 574,964 12.0 89,189 8.3
Total @ar 4,805,010 100.0 1,075,677 100.0
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Revenues (Continued)

Traditional loans and financing income

Traditional loans and financing income mainly includes interest
income, financial consultancy service income and gain on transfer
of right on interest on loan receivable, which were derived from
the Group’s loan financing services including entrusted loans,
pawn loans and other loans secured with assets or guarantees. It
generated approximately 11.6% of the Group’s total revenues and
recorded an increase of approximately 29.6% to approximately
RMB557.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
increase in traditional loans and financing income was primarily
due to the increase in the average size of our loan portfolio during
the year ended 31 December 2017 as we had deployed our cash
generated from operations during the year ended 31 December
2017 for short-term lending before investment opportunities were
subsequently identified and financed.

Third party payment service income

The third party payment business, which included the provision
of online payment transactions, payment system consultancy
and related services of UCF Pay and payment transaction service
of Amigo Technologies, generated revenues of approximately
RMB338.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, an
increase of approximately 78.4% year-on-year. It represented
approximately 7% of the Group’s total revenues, of which UCF
Pay reported revenue of approximately 327.6 million and Amigo
Technologies reported revenue of approximately 11.3 million. The
increase reflected a significant growth in total transaction volume on
our core third party payment platform UCF Pay to RMB628.8 billion
for the year ended 31 December 2017, an increase of 220% year-
on-year.

19
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Online investment and technology-enabled
lending service income

Our online investment and technology-enabled lending service
income mainly includes income generated by our online property
loan platform First House Loan, online lending platform Financial
Workshop as well as our 48%-owned online consumer lending
platform Weshare. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group’s online investment and technology-enabled lending
business recorded revenues of approximately RMB3,334.0 million,
representing approximately a 8.1-fold increase year-on-year. It
represented approximately 69.4% of the Group’s total revenues,
of which Financial Workshop, First House Loan and Weshare
reported revenues of approximately RMB19.8 million, RMB79.4
million and RMB3,208.1 million, respectively. The increase in the
business segment’s revenues is driven by continued strong growth
in transaction volumes across the online consumer lending platform
Weshare.

Others

Others mainly included social gaming service income and IT solution
income generated by our 51%-owned subsidiary, Shenzhen Qiyuan
Tianxia Technology Company Limited CGRIIFE IR KX TR HE A
A]), and 51%-owned subsidiary, Amigo Technologies, respectively.
The social gaming business contributed approximately RMB121.4
million of revenues to the Group while IT solution business
contributed approximately RMB164.4 million of revenues to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

In addition, blockchain segment contributed approximately
RMB289.1 million of revenues of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017. It was primarily due to the blockchain transaction
verification from the Group’s industrial-level datacenter.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Interest expenses

Interest expenses mainly comprised interest due on bank and
other loans, Hong Kong dollar-denominated convertible bonds,
US$-denominated convertible bonds, RMB-denominated corporate
bonds and HK$-denominated corporate bonds. The Group’s
interest expenses increased by approximately 61% year-on-year to
approximately RMB383.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2017. The increase in interest expense mainly due to the fact that
the average external funding was significantly increased in 2017
when compared with 2016. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
balances for external funding was RMB3,127 million, of which bank
and other borrowings amounted to approximately RMB1,760.1
million (31 December 2016: approximately RMB1,820.2 million); and
corporate bonds and convertible bonds amounted to approximately
RMB1,366.9 million (31 December 2016: approximately RMB1,547.6
million).

Other income and gain or loss

Other income and gain or loss mainly comprised bank interest
income, other interest income and government grants.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses primarily
comprised salaries and staff welfare, intermediary handling charges
for third party payment services, bank and financing charges, sales
and marketing related expenses, provision for financial guarantee
and rental expenses. Due to the significant increase in the scale and
staff headcount of our online investment and technology-enabled
lending and third party payment businesses and provision for
financial guarantee amounted to approximately RMB1,283.4 million,
the Group’s administrative and other operating expenses increased
by approximately 768.0% to RMB3,250.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 year-on-year.

Provision for financial guarantee represented provision made for loan
amount lending out through the loan facilitation platform, namely
Weshare. The amount of provision was computed based on historical
pattern of loan delinquencies.

Share-based payment expenses

Share-based payment expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 increased by approximately 46.1% to approximately
RMB160.7 million. The increase in such expenses represented the
fair value of all share options granted in July 2016, November 2016,
December 2016 and March 2017 respectively over the vesting
periods.

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates for the year ended 31 December
2017 increased to approximately RMB64.3 million. The year-on-year
increase was mainly attributable to the contribution from our 35%
interest in Shanghai Jifu.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2017

The profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
RMB1,098.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
221.0% year-on-year as compared to approximately RMB342.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The increase was
mainly due to a gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
RMB408.1 million and a significant increase in turnover of
approximately RMB3,729.3 million despite an increase in interest
expenses of approximately RMB145.2 million, administrative and
other operating expenses of approximately RMB2,875.8 million,
share-based payment expenses of approximately RMB50.7
million, change in fair value of preference shares of a subsidiary
of approximately RMB47 million and income tax of approximately
RMB365.3 million.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately RMB803.0 million, an increase
of approximately 166.7% as compared to approximately RMB301.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2016. Excluding the non-
recurring gain on disposal of subsidiaries, gain on deemed disposal
of subsidiaries, loss on deemed disposal of an associate, loss on
disposal of an associate, share-based payment expenses and
certain other non-cash items, profit attributable to owners of the
Company under non-generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
RMB619.3 million, an increase of approximately 49.5% as compared
to approximately RMB414.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Reconciliations of non-GAAP measures to the
nearest comparable GAAP measures
The table below sets forth a reconciliation of our profit attributable to

owners of the Company to non-GAAP profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year indicated:

EIE BT o AT

BA 7 B BE (@)

E—HRARERAUFERFEALL
B—MRAREEUFEZHER

TRESINFRFE AL AHE A AR B
DREE A I~ RAREEHR AN 2 B

For the year
ended 31 December
BE+-_HA=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+t# ZT—RF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REEEZ)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBEF T
Profit attributable to owners of the Company Zx2 m1#E B A &1k i A 803,013 301,122
Adjustments for: NI B =
Share-based payment expenses PARR A 2 2 160,684 109,986
Change in fair value of embedded derivative ~ AJ#fREH 2 REHTAE T AL
components of convertible bond DZRFEEH - 208
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR Z WS (408,098) (37)
Income tax arising from gain on disposal of ~HEKB AR 2 WHEL Z
subsidiaries FriS®i 46,417 -
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIELEWB R R Z WS (3,303) -
Change in fair value of investment property &Y% 2 A FEE S (2,000) -
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate BRIELE—EBE AR ZBE - 2,029
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—EEE AR EE - 797
Change in fair value of preference share —MFEE48% 2B AT 2
of a 48%-owned subsidiary BRIz AN FEES 22,563 -
Non-GAAP profit attributable to KARIHEE ANELIE—RARE
owners of the Company =TI Bl A 619,276 414,105

The Company’s management believes that the non-GAAP financial
measures provide investors with useful supplementary information to
assess the performance of the Group’s core operations by excluding
certain non-cash items and certain impact of acquisition or disposal
transactions.
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OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES FOR 2018

25

Third party payment

In 2018, UCF Pay will further optimise its financial industry
solutions, including bank custody for online lending, direct
banking, industry chain finance and cloud platform. UCF Pay
will continue to explore new custody banks for its bank custody
service and serve other commercial banks for its direct banking
service. UCF Pay will also explore overseas market and expand
international payment business with preliminary focus on
regions with strong market demands and growth potential in
Southeast Asia.

Shanghai Jifu will focus on promoting smart POS, a product
that is launched after two years of research and development.
Smart POS integrates convenience services and integration
payment as a whole. Shanghai Jifu will take it as its core
business, capture its growth potential in payment market and
explore customers’ financial needs to offer comprehensive
financial services for small and micro businesses, transitioning
itself from the payment segment to the financial sector, thereby
completing the transformation from payment to “payment+”.

Amigo Technologies targets to roll out payment services with
at least two partner banks in 2018 after obtaining the third-
party payment license from the State Bank of Vietnam. It also
starts to prepare for mobile wallet and mobile POS solutions
to support the booming e-commerce sector in Vietnam.
At the same time, Amigo Technologies will try to gain user
awareness and boost transaction volume from current services
in cooperation with Vietham Post by launching staff training
programs in more than 10,000 Vietnam Post offices across
Vietnam.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES FOR 2018

(Continued)

Online investment and technology-enabled
lending

In 2018, First House Loan will uphold its business philosophy
of providing customer-oriented and professional services. First
House Loan will continue to focus on corporate demands of
key customer groups to offer them diversified financial services
through various product supply, and further strengthen its
core capabilities in risk management. In terms of business
development, First House Loan will continue to expand
into more innovative real estate financial business such as
new house market, leasehold market and real estate asset
management in order to meet more diversified financing needs
of corporate and individual customers.

Weshare will continue to foster vertical development in the
FinTech industry and seize greater market opportunities with
its triune product business system focusing on “micro loans +
large amount installment + data distribution platform”. During
the times of rapid growth of its existing platform, Weshare will
continue to deliver its technology capabilities in financial cloud
platform and cooperate with excellent partners to co-create
consumer financial products, enabling it to provide corporate
customers with multiple core value services covering data,
technology, risk control and asset management. Furthermore,
learning from successful experience, Weshare will strive to
expand its global presence into Southeast Asian market as
well as other countries and regions beyond these borders.
Moreover, Weshare will continue to facilitate the widespread
use of artificial intelligence in the credit market.

Weshare will closely monitor the development and issuance of
requirements and regulations applicable to online investment
and technology-enabled lending platforms in the PRC, and
ensure regulatory compliance and rectification measures will be
taken.
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OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES FOR 2018

(Continued)

e Strategy 3.0

2018 will be the first full year for the Group’s new development
phase. Focusing on the four core business segments, namely
payment, technology-enabled lending, blockchain and other
wealth management, the Group will deepen the implementation
of its “Strategy 3.0”. Also, the Group will continue its
internationalisation business development to export experience
and technology capabilities to the overseas market. In order
to support “Strategy 3.0” and drive growth in international
businesses, the Group will develop its matrix management
structure, aiming at more effective work delivery and more
flexible cooperation across the four core businesses and
different geographical areas.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s source of
funds was mainly from cash generated from operations and new
borrowings. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank balances
and cash of approximately RMB969.2 million (31 December 2016:
approximately RMB1,233.4 million), of which 89.1%, 3.3%, 0.1%,
2.6% and 4.9% were denominated in RMB, US$, SGD, VND and
HK$ respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had interest-bearing
borrowings, which mainly comprised corporate bonds, convertible
bonds, bank and other borrowings, amounted to approximately
RMB3,127 million (31 December 2016: approximately RMB3,367.8
million). The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of total borrowings
to total assets of the Group, was 0.25 as at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: 0.38). Hence, the Group has sufficient financial
ability to meet its redemption obligations under the convertible
bonds.

During the year under review, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BORROWINGS AND BANK OVERDRAFTS

The Group had approximately RMB1,760.1 million in borrowings
or bank overdrafts as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
approximately RMB1,820.2 million).

INDEBTEDNESS AND CHARGE ON
ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had long term borrowings
amounting to approximately RMB115.2 million (31 December
2016: approximately RMB804.9 million) and short term borrowings
amounting to RMB1,644.9 million (31 December 2016: RMB1,015.3
million), of which RMB112.3 million was interest-bearing at floating
rates, and secured by the investment property of the Group with a
carrying amount of RMB576 million; RMB508.6 million was interest-
bearing at fixed rate, and secured by share charges on certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries; RMB270.9 million was interest-bearing
at floating rate, and secured by bank deposits of RMB278.5 million.
The remaining borrowings amounting to RMB868.3 million were
unsecured and interest-bearing at fixed rates.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had long term unsecured
corporate bonds in an aggregate principal amount of RMB61.7
million (31 December 2016: RMB154.4 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had long term unsecured
liability component of convertible bonds amounting to RMB1,035.3
million (31 December 2016: RMB1,393.2 million) and short-term
unsecured liability component of convertible bonds amounting to
RMB269.8 million (31 December 2016: Nil).

EIE BT o AT

BERRITEX
R-T—tFT-A=+—R ARKEEHAR

#1,760,100,000c 2 B EHIRITEZ (ZZF— <
F+—-—A=+—8: 4 AR¥1,820,200,0007T) °

BREREERA

RZZE—+F+ZA=+—B AEEZRHE
B4 A AR%115,200,0007T (Z T —RNF+=
A=+—8:4 ARK%804,900,0007T ) & 5= B &
B A AR¥1,644,900,000C (ZZ—RNFE+ = A
=+—H: AR¥1,015,300,0007T) ' Hh AR
112,300,000 T #)Z B M K EHE - W AR B ERE
1B A A R¥576,000,0007T 2 & & ¥ ¥ (B35
A R #508,600,0007T A& ¥ & & I & &1 B KA G
ET2EWBRRRLZBRMOIFLIERT: AR
#270,900,0007C B I& F B F 51 B R A RITHF
AR #278,500,000 T EE IR - A THE AR
868,300,0007T, 7% S 4 30 S iz [El 7E FIZEEHE -

RBE—+F+-A=1+—H AEEZRHAEE
BARMESAE B A AREE61,700,0000T (=
—RNFt+-A=+—H: AR¥154,400,0007T) °

RZE—tF+_A=+—H0 AEEZEHER
B R EH 2 B D B ARY1,085,300,000
T(ZE—XRE+=-_A=+—H: ARk
1,393,200,0007T ) & 52 BRI 1R Al A AR (& 5 2 &
%E D A AR #269,800,0007T (ZE—RF+ =
A=+—H %)~

28

F37 2017 « FHEBRALEBERAAF



Management Discussion and Analysis

CEEAEE R R

EXERCISE OF CONVERSION OR
SUBSCRIPTION RIGHTS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company allotted
100,689,748 ordinary shares (2016: 71,921,748 ordinary shares)
to certain subscribers of 3-year 7% Convertible Bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000,000,000 (the “7%
Convertible Bonds A”) as a result of the exercise in part of the
7% Convertible Bonds A in the principal amount of approximately
HK$70,000,000 (2016: HK$50,000,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company allotted
54,392,000 ordinary shares (2016: 14,396,000 ordinary shares)
to certain subscribers of 3-year 7% Convertible Bonds with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000 (the “7%
Convertible Bonds B”) as a result of the exercise in part of the
7% Convertible Bonds B in the principal amount of approximately
HK$37,813,000 (2016: HK$10,008,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company allotted
22,373,417 ordinary shares (2016: Nil) to certain subscribers
of 3-year 5.9% plus 3-month LIBOR Convertible Bonds with
an aggregate principal amount of US$45,000,000 (the “US$
Convertible Bonds”) as a result of the exercise in part of the
US$ Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of approximately
US$2,000,000 (2016: Nil).

For details of the 7% Convertible Bonds A, the 7% Convertible
Bonds B and the US$ Convertible Bonds, please refer to note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

During the year under review, there was no redemption of the 7%

Convertible Bonds A, the 7% Convertible Bonds B and the US$
Convertible Bonds.
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PLANNED AND ACTUAL USE OF NET

Management Discussion and Analysis

PROCEEDS IN RESPECT OF THE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY THE

COMPANY IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Set out below is a summary of the planned use of the net proceeds
in respect of the convertible bonds issued by the Company in the

financial year ended 31 December 2016:

Date of

announcement

»EHH

Event

ES3

EIE BT o AT

BRAARQARBE_FE—F+=
A=+—HIMBFEERITZ A&

A&

BRESFZAEREFHEAERER

ATEHINBEBRARANRBE-_T—R"F+ A
=t ALEMRFEETZABERESR ZFAFHR

AR ZFTEIREHE

Net proceeds
raised

mE&Ez
FEREZHE
(approximately)

(#E49)

Intended use of proceeds

MERERERRZ

9 May 2016

—E—RF
HANE

30 June 2016

Issue of 7% unsecured convertible
bonds due 2019 of an aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,000
million under the General Mandate

BE-—REBETERASLER
1,000,000,000/ 7L 2 R ZF — 1
FRHR 2 7EEER AR ES

Issue of (i) floating rate unsecured
convertible bonds due 2019 of
an aggregate principal amount
of US$45 million and (ii) 7%
unsecured convertible bonds due
2019 of an aggregate principal of
HK$100 million under the General
Mandate

BE-—REREBTOACEER
45,000,000 T2 P —FE—NFZ|
A2 0% B R R E 75 R (i) AR
$ #2738 4100,000,000/%8 7T Z 7 =
T NF R B 27 E EE A AR
&5

HK$983,300,000

983,300,000/ 7T

HK$446,700,000

446,700,0007% 7T

The Group’s general working capital
and/or for the purpose of financing
future acquisitions of the Group (if
any)

REBz —REEES R/ KALRE
Bz REWKEREES (INF)

The Group’s general working capital
and/or for the purpose of financing
future acquisitions of the Group (if

any)

AEEz —REEESRHR/EE
Bz ARRUBRHES (0F)
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PLANNED AND ACTUAL USE OF NET
PROCEEDS IN RESPECT OF THE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS ISSUED BY THE
COMPANY IN THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (continued)

Breakdown of the actual use of net proceeds from convertible bonds
issued by the Company in the financial year ended 31 December
2016 is shown below:

FRAALARBEEZE_F—RE+=
A=+—BHLEMBEEZEITZAE
BRES ZEREFHEFAERER
B&

AARREE-Z—A"F+-_A=Z+—HIHEK
FEBITZARRES NGB FEERAR
FRAZA T

Utilized in 2016
i

ZE—RE
EH A
(approximately)
(BE#7)

HK$

BT

Financing acquisitions of the Group
RASEYERH‘ES
The Group’s general working capital
AEEZ —REEED

491,900,000

938,100,000

1,430,000,000

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE IN
RESPECT OF THE ACQUISITION OF LEYU
LIMITED (“LEYU”) IN 2016

On 31 October 2016, Marvel Paradise Group Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition
agreement (the “Leyu Acquisition Agreement’) to acquire a 48%
equity interest in Leyu which comprises 1t R E B EF M AR
HEAF (Beijing Weshare Software Technology Limited) through
structured contracts at a total consideration of RMB800 million, of
which RMB320.0 million was satisfied in cash and the remaining
RMB480 million was satisfied by the issuance of 714,147,470 new
Shares at HK$0.7681 each (equivalent to RMB0.6548 per Share).
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PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE IN
RESPECT OF THE ACQUISITION OF LEYU
LIMITED (“LEYU”) IN 2016 (continued)

On 24 November 2016 and 14 December 2016, the Company
allotted and issued 541,251,368 Shares and 172,896,102 Shares to
the sellers respectively. However, the completion of the transaction
should be subject to the terms of the acquisition agreement
signed between the sellers and the Company. The transaction was
completed on 14 December 2016.

According to the Leyu Acquisition Agreement, Mr. Zhang Jinghua
(the “Mr. JH Zhang”) undertook that the net profit before tax of
Leyu for the 2016 financial year (i.e. from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2016) shall be a minimum of RMB70 million, calculated
in accordance with HKFRS (the “Performance Target’). In the
event that the net profit before tax (excluding the impact of non-
recurring gains and losses) of Leyu in the 2016 financial year
recorded in its audited report (the “Leyu Audited Report”) is
less than RMB63 million (the “Actual Profit”), Mr. JH Zhang shall
provide compensation in cash in RMB or US$ (the “Performance
Compensation”) to a bank account designated by the buyer
within 30 days of receipt of the Leyu Audited Report. The amount
to be paid by Mr. JH Zhang shall be the difference between the
Performance Target and the Actual Profit. In the event that the Leyu
Audited Report records the Actual Profit of not less than RMB63
million, the buyer shall waive Mr. JH Zhang'’s obligation to pay the
Performance Compensation. For details of the acquisition of Leyu,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 31 October
2016, 16 November 2016 and 21 November 2016 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Leyu recorded revenue and
a net profit of RMB121,045,000 and RMB28,772,000 (representing
the net profit for the period from 24 November 2016 to 31 December
2016), respectively (for the year ended 31 December 2015: Nil
for both). As at 31 December 2016, the total assets and the net
liabilities of Leyu were RMB289,269,000 and RMB14,252,000
respectively (as at 31 December 2015: Nil for both). According to
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 of Leyu, the net profit before income tax (excluding
extraordinary other losses) of Leyu was RMB93,056,279. The
Performance Target has been met.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
completed the following significant transactions:

- On 25 January 2017, the Group acquired a 51% equity
interest in Amigo Technologies at a consideration of
VND286,588,125,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB87,457,000) satisfied by cash. Amigo Technologies is
principally engaged in the provision of third party payment
services and IT solution services in Vietham.

- On 26 January 2017, the Group subscribed for an aggregate
number of 68,639 Series A Preferred Shares in BitFury
Group (“Series A Preferred Shares”) at a consideration
of US$10,000,015.91 (equivalent to approximately
RMB115,714,000) satisfied by issuing a total of 124,397,247
shares of the Company.

- On 30 March 2017, the Group entered into a sales agreement
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in 9888.CN Limited and
its subsidiaries, to an independent third party for a total cash
consideration of HK$580,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB514,170,000).

- On 26 April 2017, the Group entered into a subscription
and shareholders’ agreement with Singapore Life Pte.
Ltd. (“Singapore Life”) and other shareholders or potential
shareholders of Singapore Life, pursuant to which, among
other matters, the Group has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for new shares of Singapore Life at an aggregate subscription
price of US$21,300,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB145,069,000) (the “Investment”). Upon completion of the
Investment and the subscription of new shares by the other co-
investors, the Group will be holding approximately 33.8% of the
issued shares of Singapore Life and the Company will account
Singapore Life as an associate.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES (continued)

- On 22 May 2017, the Company, two independent individuals
(the “Sellers”) and Havenport Asset Management Pte. Ltd.
(“Havenport”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement in
relation to the investment, comprising the acquisition of shares
in Havenport from the Sellers and subscription of new shares
in Havenport, for an aggregate consideration of approximately
SGD6,519,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB32,094,000),
representing approximately 19.90% of the enlarged share
capital of Havenport following the subscription.

- On 29 September 2017, Well Up (Hong Kong) Limited, 37%-
owned associate of the Company, completed the acquisition of
total 63.43% of the issued share capital of Ping An Securities
Group (Holdings) Limited (“‘Ping An Securities”) with cash
consideration of approximately RMB1 billion. As a result, the
Group owned indirectly 23.47% effective equity interest in Ping
An Securities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS AND
EXPECTED SOURCES OF FUNDING

Save as disclosed under “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this report, there was no specific plan for material investments or
capital assets as at 31 December 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2016: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEER R T

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had the following capital

BRI

R-FB—tF+_A=+—H AEEEUTE

commitments: IHEHE
2017 2016
—FE—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBTT
Capital expenditure contracted BHENTIERAZ
but not provided for in respect of: BRIOERBH AR
Acquisition of plant and equipment W s R 5 M i& 15 12,242 9,242

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. For the
operations in Hong Kong, most of the transactions are denominated
in HK$ and US dollars. The exchange rate of US dollars against
HK$ is relatively stable and the related currency exchange risk is
considered minimal. For the operations in the PRC, most of the
transactions are denominated in RMB. Given the floating level of
RMB against HK$ during the period under review, no financial
instrument was used for hedging purposes.

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation of HK$ against RMB
as certain of its bank balances, other borrowing and corporate bonds
are denominated in HK$ which is not the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. The Group has not made other arrangement
to hedge against the exchange rate risk. However, the Directors and
management will continue to monitor the foreign exchange exposure
and will consider utilizing applicable derivatives to hedge out the
exchange risk when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit evaluations of the financial conditions of
its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Directors closely monitor
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its funding
requirements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 1,454 staff
and 15 contractors (2016: 837 staff and 15 contractors). Total
staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) were approximately
RMB471.3 million and total share options benefit to contractors
were RMB82.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB220.8 million and RMB48.6 million, respectively). Remuneration
is determined by reference to the market conditions and the
performance, qualifications and experience of individual employees.
Year-end bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions. Other
benefits include contributions to a statutory mandatory provident
fund scheme, social insurance together with housing provident
funds, Central provident fund scheme and a mandatory social
security for its employees in Hong Kong, the PRC, Singapore and
Vietnam, respectively.

The Group operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible Directors, employees
and contractors of the Group, who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREERZEREFE

Mr. Li Mingshan
ZHAWLEE

Chairman and
Non—executivg Director
ERERIERITES

Mr. Yang Jianhui
BEEBELEE
Executive Director

HITEF

Mr. Ge Ming
EREE
Independent Non-executive

Director
BN ITES
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Mr. Phang Yew Kiat
EA
Vice-chairman,

Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director

BlEF BRENTER
WITES

Mr. Li Gang
ZFHEIEE
Non-executive Director

FRTES

Dr. Ou Minggang
[EX BA ) 15 +
Independent Non-executive

Director
BN TES

Mr. Sheng Jia
BiEXE
Executive Director

HITES

Mr. Zhang Zhenxin
TRIRAETEE
Non-executive Director

FRTES

Dr. Wang Songqi
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Independent Non-executive
Director
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Li Mingshan
FHRLEE

EEREREEBZIEREFE

DIRECTORS £%

Chairman and Non-executive Director T [E RIEHITES

Mr. Li Mingshan (Z B LU %), aged 65, was appointed as the Chairman and Non-
executive Director on 7 July 2014. Mr. Li is a senior economist and has around 23 years
of management experience in the securities industry. Mr. Li graduated from East China
Normal University as a post-graduate with a major in global economics in May 1998
and obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) in September 2000. Mr. Li was previously the vice general manager
of Shanghai Shenyin Securities Company (_E/8BRIRFEZS 7)), the predecessor of
Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd. (FEIRE B FEHFKH B R A E]) from January
1993 to June 1996 and the vice general manager of Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co.,
Ltd. from June 1996 to March 1998. Mr. Li was also the deputy general manager of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange from March 1998 to May 2001. During the period from May
2001 to March 2014, Mr. Li was the corporate general manager and an executive director
of Haitong Securities Co., Ltd.”* (Stock Code: 6837/SSE Code: 600837) being in charge
of the overall management of its operations. Mr. Li was a non-executive director and the
chairman of Haitong International Securities Group Limited (previously known as Taifook
Securities Group Limited) from January 2010 to April 2011 and was also the chairman
of Haitong International Holdings Limited from August 2010 to March 2011. Mr. Li was a
director of Fullgoal Fund Management Co., Ltd. from 2005 until August 2014. Mr. Li was
a director of Sinovel Wind Group Co.,Ltd." (ZE#HE BRI (£E) D AR R A]) (SSE
Code: 601558) from February 2015 to March 2016.

FHWLEE 65 R NFL ALt BZEREIRFRIFVTERT -FTELERER
ISR AR FESTEERLR - FTRER-NNANFAAEERERME
RE ERURKBELRELTEM YN _TTTFNAAREMN ORI BRARARRER
TEEXERSELBU -FEER-NAN=ZF-AZE-AARFRXARBE LERR
EHFAR (RREEEFROARIBDZANG) EERALE YR —NAARNFAAZE
—HNANF=ZAECTRREEEFRNERAFEEE - FRETER-NAANF=
AZ TS ANHEEC LR AR IMAIBKEE -FELER_TZT—FHA
E-T-NF=AHENERESFROER AR (RHAR5E: 6837,/ LiEEFNRE:
600837) EE R AMAKERNTES —HEARAERBKEERT R -FEENR_FT—
EFE-AE_ T —FUHANHRETERAERESEBARAR (AIEAKEESS
EERAR) ZINTEERER TR ZEFNAZT——F=AEA AR
RERARARIZER - FREB _TTRAFHEE_T—NF \AEE=EESERSF
BRARZESF - FTAREB T HAF_AZ_Z-RF=ZAECEHASHE (£H)
B BRAF ( LEEAFHEE:601568) &% -

a company listed on the Stock Exchange
B A_F TR 23 /]
a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
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Biograp_l]_ical Details of Direcjcprs and Senior Management
EERSREERZIERFRT
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Mr. Phang Yew Kiat
TREREE

DIRECTORS (Continued) &= % ()

Vice-chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director Bl X & - EEHITE RFITESE

Mr. Phang Yew Kiat (E 5 4) , aged 49, was appointed as the Deputy Chairman
and an Executive Director on 23 December 2013 and a Co-Chairman of the Company
on 17 March 2014. Mr. Phang has been the Vice-chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since 7 July 2014 and has been appointed as an Authorised
Representative of the Company since 18 September 2014. Mr. Phang is also directors of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Phang is an independent non-executive director
of Chuan Holdings Limited* (Stock Code: 1420) since May 2016. Mr. Phang has over 20
years of experience in the banking and finance industry and served in senior management
positions at various financial institutions. Mr. Phang is the Vice Chairman of United Nation
— Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific (ESCAP) Business Advisory
Council and has been a member since June 2015.

Mr. Phang was the principal director of the Standard Chartered Private Bank during
January 2011 to June 2012. In June 2009, Mr. Phang was appointed as the general
manager for SME businesses for Standard Chartered Bank Singapore and Malaysia.
In 2005, Mr. Phang was a founding member (as the senior representative of Standard
Chartered Bank) of China Bohai Bank in the PRC and acted as an executive director
and deputy chief executive officer of China Bohai Bank from 2006 to 2009, with full
responsibilities for the consumer banking business (including both personal and SME
businesses). Under Mr. Phang’s leadership, full service internet banking solutions was
launched in April 2007. Mr. Phang obtained a Master’s degree in Business Administration
in International Business from the University of Bristol in June 1995, and a Bachelor’s
degree of Engineering in Microelectronic Systems Engineering from the faculty of
Technology of the University of Manchester in July 1993. Over the past 10 years, Mr.
Phang has also attended executive education training at world leading business schools,
namely Harvard Business School, Stanford Business School, Columbia Business School
and INSEAD.
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a company listed on the Stock Exchange
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Sheng Jia
REXE

EEREREEBZIEREFE

DIRECTORS (Continued) &= % ()

Executive Director #1{TE= =

Mr. Sheng Jia (%4 ), aged 37, was appointed as an Executive Director on 23
December 2013. Mr. Sheng is also directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Sheng has been the chief executive officer of NCF Group Limited since July 2013. Mr.
Sheng has extensive experience in design, research and development of web search and
related products, and has over 7 years’ experience in leading global search infrastructure
teams in renowned multinational software companies. Mr. Sheng was appointed as the
product manager of Google Inc. in 2010 and was responsible for the global product
search and product infrastructure business. Mr. Sheng was one of the founders of
Yunrang (Beijing) Information Technology Limited”, which was established in 2010.

Mr. Sheng obtained a Master’s degree in Computer Science from the University of Toronto
in 2005, and a Bachelor’s degree of Computer Science and Technology from Tsinghua
University in 2002.

BREEE VR N B =Ft+ AT+ —HEZEARTES - BRELEZI AR
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English translation or transliteration for Chinese name for identification purposes only.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREHEEZEREFE
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Mr. Chng Swee Ho
HEImR L

DIRECTORS (Continued) &= % ()

Executive Director #1{TE =

Mr. Chng Swee Ho (#5554 ) , aged 49, was appointed as an Executive Director on
17 March 2014. He was also appointed as the Compliance Officer of the Company on 18
September 2014. Mr. Chng is directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chng
has obtained 25 years’ experience in consulting, investment and banking and provided
advisory services to clients from a wide range of financial sectors in North America,
Europe and more than 10 countries in Asia.

Mr. Chng was an independent director of Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.* (SSE Code:
600166) from December 2014 to December 2016. He was the Greater China managing
partner of A.T. Kearney from 2012 to March 2016. Mr. Chng was a partner of Bain
& Company, Inc. during 2007 to 2011 and was a partner of The Boston Consulting
Group, Greater China during 2003 to 2006. Mr. Chng obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in
Accountancy from Nanyang Technological University of Singapore in May 1992.

HEREAEE 9% R T NF=A+LtHEZERRNTEF -RAIR_ZT—EFN
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# a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yang Jianhui
BEELE

EEREREEBZIERERFE

DIRECTORS (Continued) &= % ()

Executive Director #1{TE =

Mr. Yang Jianhui (#5&# 5 %), aged 47, was appointed as an Executive Director on
8 November 2017. Mr. Yang is a senior vice president of UCF Holdings Group Limited.
Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Finance from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics in 1994. Mr. Yang has over 23 years of experience in operation and
management in the financial sector. He was a deputy general manager of the marketing
department of China UnionPay Co., Ltd.* and a general manager of the marketing
department of E-Capital Transfer Co., Ltd.*

BEBELE 47T R-ZE—tF+-AN\BEZERVTEZ -HELERTEIERSE
EERARSREIEE -HEER-NNTUFERIEVERERGEEMBELEMN 5
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English translation or transliteration for Chinese name for identification purposes only.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREEBBZERFAR
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Mr. Li Gang
Z M & &£

DIRECTORS (Continued) &= % ()

Non-executive Director £ {TE= £

Mr. Li Gang (Z@I5E %) , aged 60, was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 17
November 2014.

Mr. Li was a chairman of Jilin Yongda Group Co., Ltd. (FMoKAEBRDBR AT )+
(SZSE Code: 002622.SZ) from June 2015 to August 2016. He was a non-executive
director and a member of the remuneration committee of the board of directors of PCCW
Limited* (Stock Code: 0008) from November 2011 to August 2014. Mr. Li was a vice
president of China United Network Communications Corporation Limited from February
2009 to June 2014.

Mr. Li was a vice president of China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited* (“‘Unicom HK”) (Stock
Code: 762) from April 2006 to February 2009 and was a senior vice president of Unicom
HK from February 2009 to June 2014. From April 2006 to October 2008, he was an
executive director of Unicom HK. From August 1999 to December 2005, he was the
vice-chairman, general manager and chairman of Guangdong Mobile Communication
Co., Limited and the chairman and general manager of Beijing Mobile Communication
Co., Limited. From May 2000 to December 2005, he was an executive director of China
Mobile (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Li joined A BB & 4845 @ 1= £ B A R A A) (China United
Network Communications Group Company Limited) in December 2005 and served as its
vice president.

Mr. Li holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Jinan University, PRC. He
has worked in the telecommunications industry for a long period of time and has deep
management experience.
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a company listed on the Stock Exchange
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* a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhang Zhenxin
5 R #T 0E &£

EEREREERBZIERERFE

DIRECTORS (Continued) = % ()

Non-executive Director I {TE =

Mr. Zhang Zhenxin (SR IR #T 5 £) , aged 46, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director on 12 July 2015. He is currently one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. Zhang is the chairman of UCF Holdings Group Limited (4c823ER B AR A 7))
(formerly known as “China UCF Group Co. Limited A E L8 S REB AR A E"). He
was a director of Shenzhen Keybridge Communications Co., Ltd. ((73I|$215 8 1 £ i1 A%
M ABBRAT]) * (SZSE Code: 002316) from June 2015 to September 2016. He was the
general manager of the business and securities department of Dalian Shenyin & Wanguo
Securities Co., Ltd.. He was also the chairman of Lianhe Chuangye Guarantee Group Co.,
Ltd." (BtA BIZEEREBABR A R) . Mr. Zhang graduated from the Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics in the PRC with a Master’s degree in economics.
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a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
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English translation or transliteration for Chinese name for identification purposes only.
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Ms. Zhou Youmeng

ARx#Ex+

DIRECTORS (Continued) = % ()

Non-executive Director I {TE =

Ms. Zhou Youmeng (&8 & +), aged 54, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director on 11 December 2015. She obtained a Master’'s degree of Business
Administration (International) from The University of Hong Kong in 2004 and a Doctorate
of Business Administration from Grenoble Ecole de Management in France in 2013.
Ms. Zhou was a general manager of the Guangdong network branch of China United
Network Communications Group Co., Ltd. (FFEIH & @S RIEEBER A A)* (SSE
Code: 600050) from July 2011 to May 2012 and was a general manager of China United
Network Communications Group Co., Ltd in the Marketing Department from May 2012 to
December 2013. She has been a director, vice-chairman and president of Shenzhen Aisidli
Co., Ltd. ORI EJEEB D BB A R]) + (SZSE Code: 002416) since January 2014,

Ms. Zhou is a recipient of the National May 1 Labour Medal in 1991 and was awarded a
subsidy by the State Council of the PRC in 1993 in recognition of her contribution to the
engineering technology. She was certified as a Senior Communications Engineer in 2006.
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a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange
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a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ge Ming
ERtE

EEREREEBZIERERFE

DIRECTORS (Continued) &= % ()

Independent Non-executive Director B E#HITESE

Mr. Ge Ming (BB %), aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on 18 September 2014. Mr.
Ge is a Certified Public Accountant and a senior fellow of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Ge is also a senior accountant as certified by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC and an overseas member of the Society of Chinese Accountants &
Auditors. Mr. Ge graduated with a Master’s degree in Accountancy from the Research
Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance of the PRC, after his study during the
period from 1979 to 1982.

Mr. Ge has over 32 years of experience in the field of auditing and advisory services and
has assisted in the listing of various PRC companies on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ge
has been an independent non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company
of China Ltd* (Stock code: 2318) since June 2015. Mr. Ge has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Asia Investment Finance Group Limited* (Stock
code: 33) since May 2017. Mr. Ge was a partner of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP and
retired from his position in August 2014. Mr. Ge also served as an independent non-
executive director of Shunfeng Photovoltaic International Limited* (Stock Code: 1165)
from January 2011 to February 2013.
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* a company listed on the Stock Exchange
* REEZ P LAY 23 7]
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Dr. Ou Minggang
X BA M) 15 +

DIRECTORS (Continued) &= % ()

Independent Non-executive Director B EHITESE

Dr. Ou Minggang (EXFAREIf#E L), aged 50, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 8 October 2015. He was also appointed
as the chairman of the Nomination Committee on 11 October 2015. Dr. Ou is currently
a director of International Finance Department and International Finance Research
Institute of China Foreign Affairs University and has been teaching in China Foreign
Affairs University since 2002. Dr. Ou was awarded a Bachelor’'s degree in Economics
from Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics in 1989 and a Master’s degree
in Economics from Hunan Institute of Finance and Economics (now known as Hunan
University) in 1999. Dr. Ou obtained his Doctorate in Economics from the Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences in 2002. Dr. Ou was a visiting scholar of Brunel University
London in 2011.
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Dr. Wang Songqi
FmaAaE L

EEREREEBZIERERFE

DIRECTORS (Continued) &= % ()

Independent Non-executive Director B E#HITESE

Dr. Wang Songqi ( E# & # 1), aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director, a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee on 27 June 2017. Dr. Wang is a professor and a tutor of
doctoral students of Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. Dr.
Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Economics from the Department of Finance
of Jilin College of Finance and Trade in 1982. Dr. Wang obtained a master’s degree
in Economics from Tianjin Finance and Economics Institute in 1985 and obtained a
doctorate degree in Economics from Renmin University of China in 1989.

Dr. Wang has been an independent director of Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.* (Stock Code:
000001.S2) since January 2014.
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* a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange

* FRINE 5 ZH L2 A]
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Dr. Yin Zhongli
FrhifEt

DIRECTORS (continued) E = (@)

Independent Non-executive Director B E#HITEE

Dr. Yin Zhongli (FH 38 +), aged 50, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee on 11 October 2015. He was also appointed
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 27 June 2017. Dr. Yin is currently a
deputy director of the Institute of Finance and Banking of Institute of Finance and Banking
of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. Dr. Yin obtained a Doctorate in Agricultural
Economics and Management from the Graduate House of Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences in 2003.

Dr. Yin was an independent director of Guangbo Group Stock Co., Ltd." (B EE 7
BRAF]) + (SZSE Code: 002103.82) from November 2011 to February 2017 and Beijing
Jingxi Culture and Tourism Co., Ltd." (1t R PG AL iR AFRX (9 B BR 2 8] ) + (SZSE Code:
000802.S2) from March 2015 to September 2016.

AL 005 R T-—AFTA+T - REZERBIUINTESR UNEREER
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* a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange
* RRYNBEHFZ S ETHA A
English translation or transliteration for Chinese name for identification purposes only.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT S 4 EIE &

Mr. Tam Kwok Ho, Ronald (2Bl % 5t %) , aged 36, was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company on
1 May 2016. He is directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tam joined the Company in April 2015 as Vice
President of Corporate Finance and is responsible for the Group’s overall capital markets, mergers and acquisitions and
investor relations activities. Mr. Tam has over 15 years of experience in advising companies on capital raising, mergers and
acquisitions, private equity investments and corporate finance. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tam was an executive
director at Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited, where he was the head of General Industrials Investment Banking
for Greater China, and was previously a director at Crosby Capital Partners, with a focus on private equity and special
situations investments in the metals and mining sector. Mr. Tam commenced his investment banking career at Goldman
Sachs in Hong Kong where he spent six years in its Equity Capital Markets and Corporate Finance groups, and advised
corporate clients and financial sponsors on equity, equity-linked, and M&A transactions across industries in Asia. Mr. Tam
graduated magna cum laude with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and Computer Science from Yale University in
2002.

BERAE B R T R"FAA-BRZEAARRERVBE REZEAARRETHEARNES B
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MEAMSEBBRARZIHWITES  BAZARHERNATER  —RIFRERTEH ZEE - ILATH B ¥E{ECrosby
Capital PartnersZ 8% » 3N B R FBITELERE L FRIERRE -BLERBERRARERERTEBZE
BRZABZBRATSEREEREEESERTIET NF IRHEA RABEREMNBETEHBIZRNEEER LUK
EPARHER BEEN_ZFT_FUBSKNAZRXENEBEAE FALEREFTERMEXSE B0 -

Ms. Xie Sha (#i% &+ ), aged 34, joined the Company in May 2014 as the Vice President of Corporate Development
Department. Ms. Xie previously worked in the investment banking division at BNP Paribas and later worked as an
investment manager at a private equity fund. Ms. Xie obtained her Master’s degree in Finance from The University of Hong
Kong.

WOEL 4R R_F-—HFAAMARRARECEERRBIAE -H XA ENERERRITRERTIAT
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Mr. Liu Gang (ZBI% &) , aged 43, joined UCF Pay Limited ( %c$4 X B FE A ®)) , a subsidiary of the Company, as the
Chief Executive Officer in December 2013. Mr. Liu has over 17 years’ extensive working and management experience in the
areas of payment, consultancy and telecommunications. He was the senior vice president of Shanghai Hanyin Information
Technology Co., Ltd. ( b/&#R{E BT AR A F) from 2009 to 2012, fully responsible for the payment business
department of the company. He was also the head of Tenpay Mobile Payment Centre of Tencent ( #5081 i@ 8 1+f
Aty ) , responsible for the research and development, operation and business development of mobile payment and 020
payment products, and for key projects such as WeChat payment, WeChat red pocket, QQ Wallet and Tenpay App. Mr. Liu
studied at the Beijing Information Technology Institute from August 1993 to July 1997 and obtained a Bachelor’s degree
with a major in Information Management and Information Systems.

fljlt
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Ms. Shen Jian (L &% 1), aged 42, was appointed as the Senior Vice President of the Company on 2 July 2014. Ms.
Shen is also the chairman of Shenzhen Yifangyidai Information Technology Service Company Limited OFIJIIEE=E &
BRITREBR AR (“First House Loan”), a subsidiary of the Company. She is responsible for the internet housing loan
financing business. Ms. Shen possesses abundant experience in successfully implementing internet business platforms,
media development and customer resources management. Prior to joining First House Loan, she was the general manager
of the marketing division of CCTV Music Channel. Before that, she was the deputy general manager of sales for China of
sina.com (FRM TR BB R A7) . She had worked for sina.com for eight years, where she led the team to achieve
brilliant sales performance exceeding that of other sales districts and generated a significant revenue contribution to the
company’s results. Ms. Shen obtained an EMBA degree from the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business and a

Master’s degree in Economics from the China Center for Economic Research at Peking University.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for
the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the important roles of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the business of
the Group, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company’s operations. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions as set
out in the “Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code save for the
deviations as disclosed in this report. Key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are summarized below.

A. THE BOARD
A.1 RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The overall management and control of the Company’s
business are vested in the Board. The Board is responsible for
establishing policies, strategies and plans, providing leadership
in creating value and overseeing the Company’s financial
performance on behalf of the Shareholders. All Directors carry
out their duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.
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A. THE BOARD (continued)

A.1 RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

53

(Continued)

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those involving conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
senior management, with a view to ensuring that the
Board procedures and all applicable laws and regulations
are followed. Each Director is able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses, upon making a reasonable request to
the Board.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities
to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of
the Company. These responsibilities include implementing
decisions of the Board and directing and co-ordinating day-to-
day operation and management of the Company.

The delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions being entered into by
the foregoing officers and senior management.
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Corporate Governance Report

A. THE BOARD (continued)
A.2 BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprised the following Directors during the Year
and up to the date of this report:

Executive Directors

Mr. Phang Yew Kiat (Vice-chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chng Swee Ho

Mr. Sheng Jia

Mr. Yang Jianhui (appointed on 8 November 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Mingshan (Chairman)

Mr. Li Gang

Mr. Zhang Zhenxin

Ms. Zhou Youmeng

Mr. Wong Sai Hung (resigned on 5 February 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ge Ming

Dr. Ou Minggang

Dr. Wang Songqi (appointed on 27 June 2017)

Dr. Yin Zhongli
Mr. Wang Wei (resigned on 1 April 2017)

A list of all Directors (by category) is set out under the section
headed “Corporate Information” in this annual report and is
also disclosed in all corporate communications issued by
the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules from time
to time. The INEDs are expressly identified in all corporate
communications of the Company. There is no relationship
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. There
was no financial, business, family or other material relationship
among the Directors. The biographical details of the Directors
are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
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THE BOARD (continued)

A.2 BOARD COMPOSITION (Continued)

95

During the Year, save as disclosed below, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.

Following the resignation of Mr. Wang Wei as an INED on
1 April 2017, the Company did not have sufficient INEDs
representing at least one-third of the Board under Rule 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules. In compliance with Rule 5.06 of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company appointed Dr. Wang Songgqi
as an INED on 27 June 2017 and has fulfilled the aforesaid
requirements of Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. Dr. Wang
was re-elected as INED on 27 July 2017.

Upon the appointment of Mr. Yang Jianhui as an ED on 8
November 2017, the Company did not have sufficient INEDs
representing at least one-third of the Board under Rule 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules. Immediately after the resignation
of Mr. Wong Sai Hung as a NED on 5 February 2018, the
Company has fulfilled the aforesaid requirements of Rule 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and
objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement. Each ED supervises areas of the Group’s business
in accordance with his expertise. The INEDs bring different
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board and they are invited to serve on the
Board committees of the Company. Through participation in
Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving
potential conflicts of interests and/or serving on the Board
committees, the INEDs have made contributions to the
effective operation of the Company and provided adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of both the
Group and the Shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report

A. THE BOARD (continued)
A.2 BOARD COMPOSITION (Continued)

The Company has received a written annual confirmation from
each INED of his independence pursuant to the requirements
of the GEM Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation and
other information available, the Company considers all INEDs
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

A.3 CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are carried out by different individuals.

The Chairman is Mr. Li Mingshan, who provides leadership for
the Board and ensures its effectiveness in all aspects. With
the support of the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at the Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Phang Yew Kiat, who is
in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations and focuses on implementing the objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
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THE BOARD (continued)

A.4 APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF

57

DIRECTORS

Each of the EDs is engaged on a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years. The Company has also
issued a letter of appointment for a term of three years to each
of the NEDs.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an AGM at least once every three years. All of the retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the 2018 AGM. The Board may from time to time and at
any time appoint any person to be a Director, either to fill a
casual vacancy of the Board, or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the
Shareholders after his/her appointment, and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions of the Articles of
Association, five Directors, namely Mr. Yang Jianhui, Mr.
Zhang Zhenxin, Ms. Zhou Youmeng, Dr. Ou Minggang and
Dr. Yin Zhongli, shall retire at the forthcoming 2018 AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election thereat.
A circular which contains detailed information of the retiring
Directors pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules will be sent to the
Shareholders in due course.
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A. THE BOARD (continued)
A.4 APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are laid down in the Articles of
Association. The Company has established a Nomination
Committee which is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of the Directors and assessing the independence of
the INEDs. The criteria for selection of the Directors are mainly
based on the professional qualification, experience and time
commitment to the Company of the candidates. Details of the
Nomination Committee and its work performed are set out in
the section headed “Board Committees” below.

A.5 INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FOR
DIRECTORS

All Directors received induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

The existing Directors are continually updated with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
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A.5 INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS A5

59

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FOR
DIRECTORS (Continued)

According to the records maintained by the Company,
the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars and/or reading materials
during the Year.
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Reading Attended
Materials Seminars
& & B HiEHsg
EDs HITEF
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat TGRS v
Mr. Chng Swee Ho GSGE ks v
Mr. Sheng Jia RELE %
Mr. Yang Jianhui BEER L v
NEDs FEHITEE
Mr. Li Mingshan FHLEE %
Mr. Li Gang = e %
Mr. Wong Sai Hung =L E v
(resigned on 5 February 2018) (R=ZF—/N\F=FAHAFE)
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin RIRFTEE v
Ms. Zhou Youmeng ARBEZE v v
INEDs BLFEHITEE
Mr. Ge Ming BEHELE %
Dr. Ou Minggang BRI 8 £ v
Dr. Wang Songgi ITNRFEL v
Dr. Yin Zhongli FHUELT %

Note: Mr. Wang Wei who resigned as an INED on 1 April 2017 had
attended seminars during his tenure of office.

CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Wi FHEALR-FE—+FOH—AFEET
HHITEF BLHEFHALHTE -



Corporate Governance Report

T EERRE

AL EEE @)

ACEEEEH
AGIEFEEHZEH RIERE

A. THE BOARD (continued)
A.6 BOARD MEETINGS

A.6.1 Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Schedules for regular Board meetings are normally agreed with
the Directors in advance in order to ensure their attendance.
In addition, notice of at least 14 days is given for a regular
Board meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given.

Draft agenda of each of the Board meetings is usually sent
to all Directors together with the notice in order to give them
an opportunity to include any other matters in the agenda for
discussion at the meeting.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each regular Board meeting to provide them with
materials relating to the transactions to be discussed in the
meeting in order to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and other relevant
senior management normally attend the regular Board
meetings and, where necessary, other Board and Board
committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the Group.

The Compliance Department of the Company is responsible to
keep the minutes of all Board and Board committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the
final version is open for the Directors’ inspection.
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A. THE BOARD (continued)

A.6 BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

A.6.1 Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

(Continued)

According to current Board practice, any material contract,
transaction or arrangement which involves a conflict of interest
for a substantial shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) of the Company, a Director or the Chief Executive
Officer, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting. The Articles of Association
contain provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving contracts, transactions or arrangements in which
such Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) have a material interest.

A.6.2 Directors’ Attendance Records

61

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings are held when significant events or
important issues are required to be discussed and resolved.
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A. THE BOARD (continued)

A.6 BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

A.6.2 Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued)

During the Year, the Board held four regular Board meetings
at approximately quarterly intervals on 21 March 2017, 9 May
2017, 8 August 2017 and 7 November 2017, respectively, the
AGM on 9 May 2017 and an EGM on 27 July 2017. There was
one additional Board meeting held and attended by certain
EDs, NEDs and INEDs during the normal course of business
throughout the Year. The attendance of each Director during
the Year is as follows:

T EERRE

AL EEE @)

A6 EEETEEHE (&)
A62EEZHELER (8)

REAFER BEF@0RIR_T—tF=A
—t-B - ZFT—tFHAAA T+t
FNANBER - ZE—tF+—AEBETHE
REREFGERE (RNEBFERTKR)
R-ZE—tFAANBERTERRBFREN
ERZZT—+tF+ AT HERITRERR
ARG REEAFERN ETHITES 3F
HITESRB L FRTEERAEXRBHE
TREFET —REIEFESH -NAFE
N BEESFZHFRENAT:

Number of

regular Board

meetings attended/ 2017 AGM attended/
Eligible to attend

EGM attended/

Eligible to attend Eligible to attend

HEER HE-F—tEERX HERRE
Exgas/ BEXE /S8 BAXE/ AEE
FERLEE HEZF-tERE HER R
ETEERNY BEXERY HRAXERH
EDs HITEE
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat YRERE 5/5 11 1/1
Mr. Chng Swee Ho IS 5/5 il 11
Mr. Sheng Jia BELE 5/5 11 il
Mr. Yang Jianhui 1BREBLAE 0/0 0/0 0/0
(appointed on (R-F—+%
8 November 2017) F—A/\HEZ(E)
NEDs FHTEE
Mr. Li Mingshan EXNIPES 3/5 0/1 0/1
Mr. Li Gang FHEE 5/5 11 1/1
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin FIRINLAE 4/5 0/1 0/1
Ms. Zhou Youmeng BRELL 5/5 11 0/1
Mr. Wong Sai Hung R A 5/5 il 0/1
(resigned on 5 February 2018) (R=F—-/1F
ZHAEARE)
INEDs BLHHTEE
Mr. Ge Ming ERLLE 5/5 11 1/1
Dr. Ou Minggang BEARIEL 5/5 11 1/1
Dr. Wang Songaj ITRFEL 2/3 0/0 1/1
(appointed on 27 June 2017) (R=F—+%F
NAZTEHEZF)
Dr. Yin Zhongli FoUEL 4/5 il 0/1
Mr. Wang Wei FHREE 11 0/0 0/0
(resigned on 1 April 2017) (R-F—+%
- HE )
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THE BOARD (continued)

A.6 BOARD MEETINGS (Continued)

A.6.2 Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued)

63

Apart from the said meetings, matters requiring the Board’s
approval were arranged by means of circulation of written
resolutions of all Board members.

All businesses transacted at the Board meetings and by written
resolutions were well-documented. Minutes of the Board
meetings and written resolutions of the Directors are kept by
the Company and are available to all Directors.

During the Year, the 2017 AGM was held on 9 May 2017.
An EGM was held on 27 July 2017. The attendance of each
Director thereof is set out on page 62 of this annual report.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to
other engagements, certain NEDs were unable to attend the
2017 AGM and one INED and certain NEDs were unable to
attend the EGM held on 27 July 2017. To mitigate the above,
future general meetings would be scheduled earlier to avoid
timetable clashes.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires the Chairman
to attend the AGM. Due to other business commitments which
must be attended by Mr. Li Mingshan, he was not able to
attend the 2017 AGM. Mr. Phang Yew Kiat, the Vice-Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer, acted as the chairman of the
2017 AGM to ensure an effective communication with the
Shareholders. Mr. Li Mingshan had a follow-up with Mr. Phang
Yew Kiat in respect of the opinions expressed or concerns
raised, if any, by the Shareholders at the 2017 AGM. To
mitigate the above, the 2018 AGM has been scheduled earlier
to avoid the timetable clashes.
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A. THE BOARD (continued)
A.7 REQUIRED STANDARD OF DEALINGS

The Company has adopted its securities dealing code (the
“Own Code”) regarding dealings in the Company’s securities
by the Directors, senior management and certain employees of
the Group (who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information in relation to the Company or its securities)
on terms no less exacting than the required standard of
dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
(the “Required Standard of Dealings”). A specific enquiry has
been made by the Company with each of those who were the
Directors during the Year and all of them have confirmed that
they had complied with the required standards set out in the
Required Standard of Dealings and the Own Code throughout
the Year.

No incident of non-compliance of the Required Standard
of Dealings and the Own Code by the Directors, senior
management and relevant employees was noted by the
Company.

When the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify
the Directors, senior management and relevant employees in
advance.

ARFCHAEEES SRAEEERET
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are published on the respective websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange, and are available to the
Shareholders upon request. All the Board committees should
report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations
made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of the Board committees are in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings set out in sub-section
A.6.1 above.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee comprises all the EDs with Mr.
Phang Yew Kiat acting as the chairman of such Committee.
The Executive Committee operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board to increase
the efficiency for the business decision. It monitors the
execution of the Company’s strategic plans and operations
of all business units of the Group and discusses and makes
decisions on matters relating to the management and day-to-
day operations of the Company.

B.1
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
B.2 AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises a total of four
members, namely Mr. Ge Ming (chairman), Dr. Ou Minggang,
Dr. Wang Songgi and Dr. Yin Zhongli. All of them are INEDs.
The chairman of the Audit Committee also possesses the
appropriate accounting and financial management expertise
as required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant
or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff responsible
for the accounting and financial reporting function, compliance
officer or external auditor before submission to the Board;
(i) review the Company’s relationship with the external
auditor by reference to the work performed by the external
auditor, their remuneration and terms of engagement, and
make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor; and (i)
review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting, internal control and risk management
systems and associated procedures.
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

B.2 AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee met five times. Two of
the meetings were attended by the external auditor and the
Audit Committee members under a private session without the

67

EDs.

Apart from the said meetings, matters requiring the Audit

Committee’s approval were arranged by means of circulation
of written resolutions. During the Year, the Audit Committee
performed the following major tasks:

Review and discussion of the relevant draft quarterly,
half-yearly and annual financial statements,
announcements and reports, the related accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the
relevant audit findings;

results

Review and discussion of the financial reporting, internal
control and risk management systems of the Group;

Review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment
of the external auditor; and

B. EEg€ETHNZES @)
B2 EZEZEET (@)

RAFERN BEREZBEBRITAREH
H AR & 3 NS AZ 2D M B R B &K

%ﬁfﬂlﬁ$ﬂ17§$ﬁfﬁﬁl SN ERT
ET-BRLdasih FEELZESHE
ZEEHNEREMARRIAEHEE R
AEERN BEREZBERTUTIEMES:

- EHRIWERERTE FFEMF
EHBHRER FRELERBE FA&H
RO BEEE TR LED L%
BER

—  FRAMTWASENMH RS N

B B B

—  ERAEEBRE 2R

— A SERER NSRBI &

- Review of the Company’s continuing connected —  REBEGEMLEMRAER AR QG RAF
transactions for the Year pursuant to the GEM Listing B RBERERS-
Rules.
During the Year, the attendance of each member of the Audit RAFERN BRZZEEZKE 2B Ficsk
Committee is as follows: R
Number of
meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HEEHE
FERUEERRY
Mr. Ge Ming (chairman) BPEE (EE) 5/5
Dr. Ou Minggang B BA B 158 =+ 5/5
Dr. Wang Songaj (appointed on 27 June 2017) EFREFEL (R=ZF—FF 1/2
NAZ A+ HEZE)
Dr. Yin Zhongli FHRyBLT 4/5
Mr. Wang Wei (resigned on 1 April 2017) FHREE (R=ZF—+F 2/2
/9 A —H gk /f)
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

B.2 AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the re-appointment of external auditor.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee setting out
its role and responsibilities are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

B.3 NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Company has established
the Nomination Committee which comprises a total of four
members, namely Dr. Ou Minggang (chairman), Mr. Ge Ming,
Dr. Wang Songgi and Dr. Yin Zhongli, all of whom being INEDs.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i)
review the Board composition; (i) identify qualified individuals
to become members of the Board; (jii) monitor the appointment
and succession planning of the Directors; and (iv) assess the
independence of the INEDs.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee met twice. Apart
from the said meetings, matters requiring the Nomination
Committee’s approval were arranged by means of circulation of
written resolutions. During the Year, the Nomination Committee
performed the following major tasks:

- Review and discussion of the existing structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group;

- Assessment of the independence of the existing INEDs;
- Recommendation on the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors at the 2017 AGM pursuant to the Articles of

Association; and

- Recommendations on the appointments of an ED and an
INED.
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) B. EX€E THMZET @)
B.3 NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued) B3iRBZEE (@)
During the Year, the attendance of each member of the RAFERN BELZEGSKE 2 HETE
Nomination Committee is as follows: LUNNE
Number of
meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
HEEE
FERHFEEHRRE
Dr. Ou Minggang (chairman) BRAAMIE + (£ /) 2/2
Mr. Ge Ming BEEE 2/2
Dr. Wang Songaji (appointed on 27 June 2017) FREEL (R=ZF—FF 0/1
NAZ++HEZF)
Dr. Yin Zhongli FehiE T 2/2
Mr. Wang Wei (resigned on 1 April 2017) THREE(RZFE—+F 11
/9 A — B EEHEF)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee setting
out its role and responsibilities are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

B.4 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

69

The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of four
members, namely Dr. Yin Zhongli (chairman), Mr. Ge Ming, Dr.
Ou Minggang and Dr. Wang Songgqii. All of them are INEDs.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
(i) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for remuneration of all the Directors
and senior management and the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing a policy on such
remuneration; (i) make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the EDs and senior management;
and (i) review and approve performance-based remuneration
proposals by reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time.

B.4
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B. BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
B.4 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the Year is set out below:

PEEAHRE

B. EEg€ETHNZES @)
B4 FFitNZEE (&)

REBEEEEATAST AN EBASF KA
FERHFWARNE D 22 RERABFTHE
FIEA

In the band of

Number of individuals

A9 F A"
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 0
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001;% 7T £3,000,0007% 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001% 7T 24,000,000/ 7T 0
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001;% 7T £5,000,0007% 7T 2

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the Year are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements
contained in this annual report.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee met twice. Apart
from the said meetings, matters requiring the Remuneration
Committee’s approval were arranged by means of circulations
of written resolutions. During the Year, the Remuneration
Committee performed the following major tasks:

- Review and making of recommendation on the payment
of a year-end bonus and a special bonus to the Directors
and senior management of the Group; and

- Review and making of recommmendation on the current
remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

B.4 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

71

During the Year, the attendance of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is as follows:

B.

EEEETHEEE @9

B4 HMEEE (@)

E
RAFERN HFWEEGEKE 2 HFE L

LIS

Number of
meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HEE#E

EERHEBEERERE

Dr. Yin Zhongli (chairman) FhuET (FE) (RZF—+F 2/2

(appointed as chairman on 27 June 2017) NA - +EHEZEATE)
Mr. Ge Ming BHEE 2/2
Dr. Ou Minggang B BA B 1 =+ 2/2
Dr. Wang Songaj (appointed on 27 June 2017) EFREFEL (R=ZF—FF 0/1
NAZAF+EHEZE)
Mr. Wang Wei (resigned on 1 April 2017) FHELE 11

(RZF—+FMH—HEFE)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee setting
out its role and responsibilities are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy on 13 March
2014, which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company considers that diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity
on the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of quarterly, interim and annual
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The management has provided such explanation
and information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board
to make an informed assessment of the financial information
and position of the Group put forward to the Board for
approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate risk
management and internal control systems (including the
internal audit function) of the Group to safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and the Group’s assets and, with the
support of the Audit Committee, for reviewing the adequacy
and effectiveness of such system on an ongoing basis at least
annually. The senior management reviews and evaluates the
control process and monitors any risk factors on a regular
basis and reports to the Board and the Audit Committee on
any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.

D.
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CONTROLS (Continued)

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The objectives of the risk management and internal control
systems include:

o to strengthen the Group’s risk management and internal
control in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
requirements;

° to establish and constantly improve the risk management
and internal control systems;

° to implement a top-down and group-wide risk
management system that covers every aspect of the
business; and

o to keep baseline risks within the acceptable range.

The Group has complied with the code provisions C.2.4 in
relation to the risk management and internal control set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules by having adopted
a three-tier risk management approach to identify, assess,
mitigate and handle risks. At the first line of defence, business
units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring
risks associated with each business or deal. The management,
as the second line of defence, defines rule sets and models,
provides technical support, develops new systems and
oversees portfolio management. It ensures that risks are
within the acceptable range and that the first line of defence
is effective. As the final line of defence, the Audit Committee,
with the professional advices and opinions from the Group’s
internal audit function, ensures that the first and second lines
of defence are effective through constant inspection and
monitoring.

The Company has reviewed the need for an internal audit
function during the Year and considered it appropriate
to outsource the internal audit function. Accordingly, the
Company has engaged an external independent professional
company to perform internal audit services to the Group for the
Year.

E.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (Continued)

The aim of internal control is to reasonably guarantee the
compliance of its operation and management with regulations
and laws, assets security, and authenticity and integrity of
financial report and related information, improve the efficiency
and effectiveness of operating activities and promote the
realization of development strategy of the Group.

During the Year, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems (including the internal audit functions) of the Group
and considered them effective and adequate.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR AND ITS
REMUNERATION

The statement of the Independent Auditor on its reporting
responsibilities for the Group’s financial statements for the Year
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”
in this annual report.

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements which
give a true and a fair view of the state and results of the Group.

The fees paid/payable to SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the
Independent Auditor, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the Year are analyzed below:

Type of services provided
by the Independent Auditor
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Fees paid/payable

BAREMRERFEEE 2t & A
HK$
AT
Audit services Fal IR 2,950,000
Non-audit services FEEET R
— Professional services rendered in — AL EES TR I M2
connection with the agreed-upon WERF TR 2 BER
procedures regarding review of
sufficiency of working capital 420,000
— Others —HAth 120,500
540,500
TOTAL: CEE 3,490,500

There have been no changes of the Independent Auditor in the
preceding three years.
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EXERHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE G.
FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report
contained in the Company’s annual reports.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board has
reviewed and performed the said (a), (), (c) and (e) corporate
governance functions.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS H.

As one of the measures to safeguard Shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual Directors, for Shareholders’ consideration and
voting. Besides, various rights of Shareholders, including the
right to propose resolutions, are contained in the Articles of
Association.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

A summary of certain rights of the Shareholders is disclosed
below:

Procedures for convening EGMs and putting forward proposals
at general meetings

Each general meeting other than an AGM shall be called an
EGM. General meetings may be held in any part of the world
as may be determined by the Board. According to article
58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such EGM shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Any requisition to convene an EGM or proposal to be put
forward at the general meeting can be addressed to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary. The requisitionists
must state in their requisition their names and respective
shareholding in the Company and the objects of the EGM
to be convened, and such request must be signed by all
the requisitionists. Upon receipt, the Company will verify the
requisitionists’ particulars and if the request is in order, the
Company will convene the EGM in accordance with the Articles
of Association.

Procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director
The procedures for proposing a person for election as a

Director are posted under the Investor Relations section of the
Company’s website at www.csfgroup.com.
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XERME

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board believes that a transparent and timely disclosure
of the Group’s information will enable Shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision and to have
better understanding on the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
sustainable investor relations with the Company’s existing and
potential investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.csfgroup.com” as
a communication platform with the Shareholders and investors,
where the Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings or their notification of change of correspondence
address or their dividend/distribution instructions to the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited and for other enquiries, Shareholders
and investors may also write directly to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Rooms 3533-39,
Level 35, Two Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong or
via email to “ir@csfgroup.com”. Enquiries are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for the Shareholders to exchange
their views with the Board. The Chairman as well as the
chairmen and/or other members of the Board committees
will endeavor to be available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by the Shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and
relationship with its investors. Designated senior management
officers maintain regular dialogues with institutional investors
and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Siu Man (“Mr. Kwok”) has been appointed as the
Company Secretary since 7 July 2014. All Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable law, rules and
regulations are followed.

Mr. Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services
(HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to assume such office and
Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial
services to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter
entered into between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been
contacting in respect of company secretarial matters is Mr. Yu
Wai Cheong, the Financial Controller of the Company.

Mr. Kwok had delivered and attended over 15 hours’ relevant
professional training during the Year pursuant to rule 5.15 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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EXERHE

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of price-sensitive information, the
Company is aware of its obligations under Part XIVA of the
SFO and the GEM Listing Rules and has established the inside
information/price-sensitive information disclosure policy (the
“Disclosure Policy”) with close regard to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong.

The Disclosure Policy includes, among other things:

(@  only designated persons are authorised to communicate
the Company’s corporate matters with investors,
analysts, the media or other members of the investment
community;

(b) Directors or senior management shall report to the
Chief Executive Officer any potential/suspected inside
information as soon as practicable for him to consult
(if appropriate) the Board thereafter for determining
the nature of developments, and if required, making
appropriate disclosure;

(c) disclosure of inside information must be made in a
manner that can provide for equal, timely and effective
access by the public to the disclosed inside information;
and

(d) inside information must be kept strictly confidential until a
public announcement is made and shall be disseminated
in accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules before it is released via other channels.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Report of the Directors

The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment company. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
traditional financing services and related financing consultancy
services including entrusted loan service, real estate-backed loan
service, pawn loan service, other loan service and mircofinance
service, and internet financing services including third party payment
service, online investment and technology-enabled lending service
and related activities on loan portfolio management, as well as
provision of social gaming, IT solution services and provision of
blockchain service.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group at 31 December 2017 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 206 to 413 of this annual
report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the Year (2016: Nil), and intends to reinvest our
profits in accelerating our growth momentum, with the aim of further
reinforcing our leading position in the Fintech industry and ultimately
building long term shareholders’ value.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB51,000 (2016: RMB130,000).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year is provided
in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 17 of
this annual report, and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development is provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 25 to 27 of this annual report. Description of possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found in the
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the Year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights on page 10 of
this annual report. Also, the Company’s communications with its
investors are contained in the Corporate Governance Report on
page 77 of this annual report.

Sustainability and Environmental Initiatives

The Group is committed to sustainable development of the
environment and our society. We work to advance environmental
and social progress and conduct business in a way that creates
value for our clients and employees. The Group complies with all
relevant environmental regulations and practice “Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle” with the following initiatives:

o Promotes the knowledge of environmental protection to staff
and advocates to sort their trash into separate bins.

o Saves power by implementing automatic lights off during non-
business hours.

° Adjusts the air conditioning and refrigeration system to low
settings when necessary.

For further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of this annual report.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognizes that our employees, customers and business
associates are keys to our sustainability journey. We strive to achieve
corporate sustainability through engaging our employees, providing
quality services for our customers, collaborating with business
partners and supporting our community.

XBOE

AEERAFEAZZHRBEHENANFRF14E
FIUTEZEEER®BEIN AEBRKREBH
BZAWENAFRFBEF2AZEREN W
BT o AR A BEE R 2 B AR KA HETE H
RN A F AR A M MR E5M - (£ R 5
RRABESHARERANFRE ZREMEDT
TR ANFREFAOEMPBRERM < LI AR A
BEKEEZBBENAFRETTAEZLEER

HE -

A RIRRIEE
AEBPNRBHERRIE G 2 TRHEEERE -
AMEBARMNES RESAIEREEZ T &
NHERRRAL G S - A EBRTHAABR
(RAS - BT DR ERRBRFA ) WHITHU
T

s MEIENRARMB BESLUTETH

B

o HIRERRE NILXRENETEDRE-

B S BENATHLER R RE
AR

o

REEHMEZHRF

AEERHBE AMOES BPREEBHDR
MAREERRE 2B RMEARAER RE
PRUEEARY HREBHAERALERE
SFBNRRLENTHERR -

81 CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Report of the Directors

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Relationships with Key Stakeholders (Continued)

The Company places a significant emphasis on human capital.
The Company provides a fair workplace and constant physical
exercise training classes, and promotes non-discrimination and
diversity to our staff, together with competitive remuneration and
benefits, as well as a range of opportunities for career advancement
based on employees’ merits and performance. The Company
provides periodical trainings for staff to keep them abreast of the
latest developments in the market and industry, in the form of both
internal trainings and trainings provided by experts from external
organizations.

To enhance customers’ satisfaction and promote a customer-
oriented culture within the Group, we value the feedback from
customers through setting enquiring email to guarantee accessible
communication and satisfaction surveys. When dealing with a
customer’s complaint, we treat it as an opportunity to improve our
relationship with the customer, addressing the concern in a timely
manner.

As regards the communication with our business associates,
we proactively collaborate with our contractors to deliver quality
sustainable products and services, and make spot checks on goods
and services during the contractual periods.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
secured harmless out of assets and profits of the Company against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/
she shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
incurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her duties.

The relevant provision of the Articles of Association was in force
during the Year and as of the date of this annual report.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2018 AGM is scheduled for Tuesday, 8 May 2018. For
determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to attend and
vote at the 2018 AGM, the Register of Members will be closed
from Thursday, 3 May 2018 to Tuesday, 8 May 2018, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of the Shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2018
AGM, unregistered holders of the Shares should ensure that all share
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 2 May 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five years is set out in the financial summary on
page 414 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

ISSUE OF EQUITY SECURITIES

On 26 January 2017, the Group subscribed for an aggregate
number of 68,639 Series A Preferred Shares in BitFury Group at a
consideration of US$10,000,015.91 (equivalent to approximately
RMB115,714,000) satisfied by issuing a total of 124,397,247 Shares.

On 21 April 2016, the Group acquired a 51% equity interest in
Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology Company Limited for a total
consideration of RMB204.0 million, of which RMB85.0 million was
satisfied in cash and the remaining RMB119.0 million was satisfied
by the issuance of consideration shares of 255,753,200 shares by
the Company on 15 May 2017.

Save for the above disclosures and the share option plan of the
Company as set out in the section of “Share Option Scheme” in
this Report of Directors and the convertible bonds disclosed in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 358 to 361,
no equity-linked agreement that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing shares was
entered into by the Company during the Year, or subsisted at the end

of the Year.

83

HiEmERNMBRERLTE

“E-N\FRERAEFASIR_ZE—AFHAN
A(EBD) BT -AEBETRENE_Z—N\FRK
RAFRSYRG ERBEZERN ARAHRZ
T NFRAZA(EHME-FE—NFHEAN
H(EH D) (BREEME)EEMRERMDABR
ERFE HETETTAROZBEERL A
FAHEFE T \FRRBEASINE LRE
MER KRELDNRMDEEABBRIERG B
PRBERBEAREVENR_ZE—\FHA-H
(B D) THUBE =+ 2RI ZE AR FRESN
BB REEEREELERAT it
BEBERFRER18IFA AP 221 LAHIER
PETFE-

RS
AEEERLREEE 2 EMRAERERHE

BRAREFAAE B E - XM EYL TR
REZEAMBHRERN—E D -

Az 7

ARRBEARRNFERNZE
KM REA2 ©

BT S B

BITRAES

RIE—+F—AZ+B AEEUARHKE
10,000,015.91% 7T (FHE R4 AR ¥115,714,000
7C) FRB&BitFury GroupZ AR BB S I 4 68,639
B BB IAEITA 124,397, 247/ B 17 £
o

RIE—RFNA-Z+—HB KNEEUREREBA
R 204,000,000 T 4 B /R IIERIR R T REHE B R A
A)251%M 1 - R E A A R %85,000,0007T AR
& A A R #119,000,0007T A A& 2 7 A
2 —+tF A A1+ A HE17255,753,200/% R (E %
AR

BEXFIEBREERAZESSRE [BRETE] —
BnFT Sl 2 AR BIBERR AT B LA K 5358 A & 55361
BB IEHMAR WO E 2 ATk &5 2 I -
ARG ARFEEERT AR B HES A
Bia N AFERTFE MBeAkrSHAR
BIBTRD  RBEARR BB EHAES
B R B BT R D B ] 155 5 o

CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Report of the Directors

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group revalued its investment property at the year end date.
Details of such revaluation are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2017 are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in note 51(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity holders comprising share premium account less
accumulated losses amounted to approximately RMB2,946.1 million
(2016: RMB2,651.1 million).
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In view of the nature of the business activities of the Group as
a financial services provider, no major customers and suppliers
has contributed significantly to the Group’s total revenue and
total purchases during the Year. During the Year, the Group’s five
largest suppliers combined contributed less than 30 per cent of the
total value of purchases; and the Group’s five largest customers
combined contributed less than 30 per cent of its total revenue.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors nor their close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) nor any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are
named as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Phang Yew Kiat (Vice-chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chng Swee Ho

Mr. Sheng Jia

Mr. Yang Jianhui (appointed on 8 November 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Mingshan (Chairman)

Mr. Li Gang

Mr. Zhang Zhenxin

Ms. Zhou Youmeng

Mr. Wong Sai Hung (resigned on 5 February 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ge Ming

Dr. Ou Minggang

Dr. Wang Songaqi (appointed on 27 June 2017)
Dr. Yin Zhongli

Mr. Wang Wei (resigned on 1 April 2017)
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Yang Jianhui would retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-
election at the 2018 AGM.

In accordance with articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Zhang Zhenxin, Ms. Zhou Youmeng, Dr. Ou
Minggang and Dr. Yin Zhongli would retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2018 AGM.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 37 to 51 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years, which is
renewable automatically for successive terms for one year unless
and until () terminated by either party thereto giving not less than
three months’ prior written notice, with the last day of the notice
falling on the last day of the initial term or any time thereafter; or (i)
the Executive Director not being re-elected as a Director or being
removed by the Shareholders at a general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Each of the NEDs and INEDs has been appointed for a fixed term
of three years and shall be subject to retirement, re-election and
removal in accordance with the Articles of Association.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed herein, during the Year, none of the Directors,
or any entity connected with them, had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year, to which the Company, any of its controlling shareholders,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure of remuneration of all the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meeting every year. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
upon the recommendation of the remuneration committee of the
Board by reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments, pension and compensation arrangements
of the Directors, the past Directors and five individuals with
the highest emoluments are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

COMPETING INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

For the Year, the Directors were not aware of any business or
interest of the Directors, the controlling shareholders (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company nor their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that competed
or might compete, directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such person or
entity has or may have with the Group, save that Mr. Zhang, a Non-
executive Director and a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) of the Company, has an interest in the continuing
connected transactions relating to a sub-tenancy and master
agreement for a business centre, and a sub-tenancy agreement
and tenancy agreements for the premises in Beijing, the PRC, as
announced by the Company on 23 October 2014, 25 January
2017 and 15 December 2017, respectively. Details of the continuing
connected transactions (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of
the Company are set out in the section headed “Non-exempt
Continuing Connected Transactions” below. Mr. Zhang also has
an indirect shareholding interest of 51.5% in NCF Wealth Holdings
Limited (formerly known as First P2P Limited) (“NCF”). Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 12 January 2015 for further
details. The Board considers that Mr. Zhang’s interest in NCF is not
competing with the Group in any material respect because NCF and
the Group have different business focuses. Whilst NCF focuses on
the investor/lender end of a fintech system, the Group focuses on the
borrower end of a fintech system. As a result, NCF and the Group
target at different market segments and are not competing with each
other in any material respect. None of the controlling shareholders
of the Company or the Directors or their respective close associates
has any interest in any business which competes or potentially
competes, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
in any material respect.
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Report of the Directors

EFTHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required: (a) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were
as follows:

Interests in the Shares and the underlying
Shares

EERFETHAEREIAARE
HBGER Z B - BE RS RES
ZERARKE

R_E—+tF+_A=+—B BFREARXFE
ZITBRABRARNG RERAEEZE (& REFH
MEAEIEBIEXVER) 2 B85 - IR REHT
BAE: @REESRHBERGIFEXVEETRSD H
MERNNA KRB ERE (RREREES R
ERABEREHESHEER G AER 2 ERE X
KB (OB IEEF R EIEHIE35218 8 E 5
SRTEZIEFT I 2 B M 2 R (R IEGEM E
MRAES46EFo.67IRAME RN T RERFT 2
EmBEARIT

Wi RAERRGD ZE R

Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
Name of Directors/ Capacity/Nature Shares Total the Company’s
Chief executive of interests interested Note interests issued Shares*
mAEEZZ [ N
B th/ tE B B 40 2ETRMZ
B/ TETBAEHRA St/ #EHE HE it & D BAE >
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat Beneficial owner 175,000,000 1 175,000,000 0.78%
TRELE EREAA
Mr. Chng Swee Ho Beneficial owner 23,700,000 63,700,000 0.28%
HRREE ExEBA
Beneficial owner 40,000,000 1
EGlBA
Mr. Sheng Jia Beneficial owner 40,000,000 1 40,400,000 0.18%
BRELE ERBAA
Family interest 400,000 2
RikER
Mr. Li Gang Beneficial owner 28,000,000 1 28,000,000 0.12%
FRI%E ExEEA
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EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERTETBAERARGARE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN HE LB Y AR RES
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES ZHEERRE @)

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(Continued)

Interests in the Shares and the underlying R KRB < E (8

Shares (Continued)

Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
Name of Directors/ Capacity/Nature Shares Total the Company’s
Chief executive of interests interested Note interests issued Shares*
BEESZ [ N
R& 4,/ H B BR 1 BETRMRZ
EE/TETBAEHA L1YR §:4:3-1 £ gE Bt st BEs BAE Stk
Mr. Wong Sai Hung Beneficial owner 28,000,000 1 28,000,000 0.12%
(resigned on 5 February 2018)
R E EGBBA
(R=F—\E= A AFHT)
Mr. Zhang Beneficial owner 593,148,000 3,933,308,000 17.55%
RAEE EGBBA
Interest in controlled 3,250,160,000 3
corporations
WEEEEE 2 R
Family interest 90,000,000 4
FkER
Ms. Zhou Youmeng Beneficial owner 8,000,000 5 9,140,000 0.04%
ARBRT EGBBEA
Beneficial owner 1,140,000
EGBBEA
Mr. Ge Ming Beneficial owner 18,400,000 6 18,400,000 0.08%
ERLAE EGBBA
Dr. Ou Minggang Beneficial owner 13,400,000 7 13,400,000 0.06%
BREA NI &+ EGBBA
Dr. Yin Zhongli Beneficial owner 13,400,000 7 13,400,000 0.06%
FHRIUBL EalBA
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(Continued)

Inte
Sha

Notes:

1.

rests in the Shares and the underlying
res (Continued)

These interests represented the total underlying Shares comprised in
the share options granted by the Company on 11 December 2014, 11
December 2015 and 8 November 2016.

These interests represented the Shares held by Ms. Hu Haichen, the
wife of Mr. Sheng Jia. Therefore, Mr. Sheng Jia was deemed to be
interested in these Shares under the SFO.

These Shares were held by Asia FinTech Company Limited* (“Asia
FinTech”), which was wholly-owned by Oceanic Plus Limited
(“Oceanic Plus”), the entire issued share capital of which was owned by
Mr. Zhang. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in these
Shares under the SFO.

These Shares were held by Ms. Zhang Xiaomin (“Ms. Zhang”) who
is the wife of Mr. Zhang. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be
interested in these Shares under the SFO.

These interests represented the underlying Shares comprised in the
share option granted by the Company on 8 November 2016.

These interests represented the total underlying Shares comprised in
the share options granted by the Company on 11 December 2014, 11
December 2015 and 12 December 2016.

These interests represented the total underlying Shares comprised in
the share options granted by the Company on 11 December 2015 and
12 December 2016.

All interests stated above are long positions.
The percentage represents the total number of the Shares and the
underlying Shares interested divided by the number of issued Shares

as at 31 December 2017 (i.e. 22,412,777,005 Shares).

The name of “First Pay Limited” has been changed to “Asia FinTech
Company Limited” with effect from 3 March 2017.

Details of the above share options granted by the Company are set
out under the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(Continued)

Interests in the Shares and the underlying
Shares (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at 31 December 2017, the full exercise of all the outstanding
convertible bonds issued by the Company would have led to the
issue of 2,397,730,117 new Shares, which would have diluted the
shareholding of the substantial shareholder of the Company (namely
Mr. Zhang) from approximately 17.55% to approximately 15.85%.

As the conversion prices of the outstanding convertible bonds
issued by the Company, ranging from HK$0.52 to HK$0.6952, are
significantly lower than the market price of the Shares, it would be
more financially advantageous for the holder of convertible bonds
to convert such bonds than to have the same redeemed by the
Company.
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EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons and entities, other than a Director and the chief
executive of the Company, had interests or short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Interests in the Shares - Long Position

FTEREREMATHRERG RER
BROFHERRKE

RZE—tF+_A=+—HB BEEHRHM T
WAL REBEE (ESEARBREZTHRABRIN
R RABREERD F HBREES KR E GRS
BBOIHFAFNARRIATFE ZERMA SN

N
KRB

Wi ZEZ TR

Approximate
percentage of
Name of substantial Capacity/Nature Number of Total the Company’s
Shareholders of interests Shares interested Note interests issued Shares*
EALNRE &
FEEERZ R Z B4
TERRER HE L8 131 8B i HES B
Asia FinTech Beneficial owner 3,250,160,000 3,250,160,000 14.50%
Asia FinTech BRBEBA
Oceanic Plus Interest in a controlled 3,250,160,000 1 3,250,160,000 14.50%
corporation
B REEHEE 2 #w
Ms. Zhang Beneficial owner 90,000,000 3,933,308,000 17.55%
Rt ERBAA
Family interest 3,843,308,000 1
KikiER
Jiefang Media (UK) Co. Limited Beneficial owner 1,848,012,000 1,848,012,000 8.25%
(“Jiefang Media”)
AR (HE) FRAR ERBAA
:2:4 590
Shanghai Xinhua Publishing Group Interest in a controlled 1,848,012,000 2 1,848,012,000 8.25%
Limited (“Xinhua Publishing”) corporation
RN ERTEEERAT RREHEE 2 %
(I#EHT])
Shanghai United Media Group Interest in controlled 1,848,012,000 2 1,848,012,000 8.25%
(“United Media”) corporations
TEREEE ([LER%]) WEEHEE 2 #5
Shanghai Greenland Group Company Interest in controlled 1,848,012,000 2 1,848,012,000 8.25%
Limited (“Greenland Group”) corporations
DBk (RE)FRAR R EHNEE 2 s
([#HKE])
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Inte

rests in the Shares - Long Position

(Continued)

Notes:

Q)

Save

Out of the total 3,843,308,000 Shares, 3,250,160,000 Shares were
held by Asia FinTech, which was wholly-owned by Oceanic Plus, the
entire issued share capital of which was owned by Mr. Zhang who is
the husband of Ms. Zhang, and the remaining 593,148,000 Shares
were held by Mr. Zhang. Therefore, Ms. Zhang was deemed to be
interested in these Shares under the SFO.

These Shares were held by Jiefang Media. Jiefang Media was wholly-
owned by Xinhua Publishing which was in turn owned by United Media
and its associates as to approximately 50.8% and Greenland Group
as to approximately 39%. Therefore, under the SFO, Xinhua Publishing
was deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Jiefang Media,
and each of United Media and Greenland Group was deemed to be
interested in all the Shares which Xinhua Publishing was deemed to be
interested in.

The percentage represents the total number of the Shares interested

divided by the number of issued Shares as at 31 December 2017 (i.e.
22,412,777,005 Shares).

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, according to the

register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, there was no person who or entity which had any interest
or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares, which would fall

to be

disclosed to the Company under the SFO.

EEgHE

FEREREMALTRERG REE
BRHPRHEZRERE @)

RENZEZ-F8 (@)

A4 $£3,843,308,0008% i {5 7 - 3,250,160,0008%
fi% {7 B AsiaFinTech$% & * AsiaFinTech /& 12 &
A MEMZ 2B BITRARRKEE (Rt
SCR) A - T 8 593,148,0008% B 17 /1 5K %t 4
B EHI RIBBERIEER R HRE
Rz ER D P A -

ZEBRMDBHBREESE BN E R ERT
2EHER MMERTAHEEREREBEA
¥ 4950.8%H 7 K FA 4% Hb & B #E B £939% 1
e EI  IRIBEF LIS IEG) ERITER A
REREEFENETROPEAEZS MLEE
WMERGHEBREFR BRI ERITEREANE
Pl RESN RN EEES

* FZEDH T HEEZRZRGBEEUAR-F
—tFEF A=+ —HZEZETRHEAF (A
22,412,777,0050 %17 ) °

BLEdESN R—FE—tEF+-A=1T—H RE
ARBRBES R EIRPIEIBOHATE 2 #
mERMATR 8 A LS E R AR R A
DHRERAREESKPEEROBERARBHED
EfTEmIRR
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EEEHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolution of the
Shareholders on 4 November 2010 for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to the eligible participants for their contribution
to the Group and/or enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the Directors, INEDs, employees of the Group, customers of the
Group and consultants, advisers, managers, officers or entities that
provide research, development or other technological support to the
Group. The Company amended and refreshed the scheme mandate
limit under the Share Option Scheme by ordinary resolutions passed
by the Shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on 26
January 2016.

The Company underwent a share subdivision of each issued and
unissued ordinary share of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the
Company into five ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each (the “Share
Subdivision”).

Upon the Share Subdivision becoming effective on 19 September
2016, the exercise prices of the outstanding options granted under
the Share Option Scheme were adjusted from HK$1.814 per share,
HK$2.13 per share, HK$3.37 per share and HK$3.49 per share to
HK$0.3628 per Share, HK$0.426 per Share, HK$0.674 per Share
and HK$0.698 per Share, respectively and the numbers of Shares to
be issued upon the exercise of the share options were adjusted from
182,125,000 shares, 30,629,000 shares, 91,920,000 shares and
137,600,000 shares to 910,625,000 Shares, 153,145,000 Shares,
459,600,000 Shares and 688,000,000 Shares, respectively. The
above adjustments became effective on 19 September 2016.

Share options comprising a total of 7,250,000 underlying Shares
were granted during the Year (2016: 1,099,500,000 Shares, if taking
into consideration the effect of the Share Subdivision). Thus, there
were 871,355,000 Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme, representing approximately 3.87% of issued Shares as
at the date of this report (as at 31 December 2016: 860,042,500
Shares, representing approximately 4.00% of the Company’s then
issued Shares). Options comprising a total of 18,562,500 underlying
Shares had lapsed, and options comprising a total of 331,499,500
underlying Shares had been exercised as at 31 December 2017.
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B ESE

ARBER_F—TF+-ANBRERRZE
EDRZRRA—IRBAE S ([RBAEE))
IEEAER2EE[AKREEL RS TR
SEERSEAEECARELRESERRE
BRWSIHAEEEEENANER - BIRAET
B EER2RERRES BUFNTEE K
SEER AEEEF B FHAA KEAR-
= AR B A AR B AT B R E AT SRS
BER-ARAN_T-—R"F-A-t+RBETZ
BRERBFRIAS L iR EREE T BRBERAET R
FHBRE AT A EIREREE -

ARREARBIRATFREEO BT B ET
RARFETEBRFAR/AREREE0.02E T2
Bak it ([RBHFE]) -

RRDIFAR =T —~FNATNBERE BT
BRI 2 RITEERENTTEE D RS
H%1.8148 7T Hi%2.138 0 BFR3.37E RS
[1%3.497%8 T HEE TR K 0.3628% 7T - TR
0.4267 7T ~ I AL 190.67478 7T X =B 1% 150.698
B Mz EBREETES TEITZROEE
% Al 182,125,000% * 30,629,0008% + 91,920,000
fi% % 137,600,000/ 58 % £910,625,000 % %
5~ 153,145,0008% % 1 ~ 459,600,0008% % 17 &
688,000,0000% B {7 > A L TR = —XFNA
TRBER-

RAREE R ¥ & 48 H7,250,0000% #8 B A% 19 (=
T —7N4F 1 1,099,500,000 B B8R (K485t M %
MIFHcFE) ) 2 ERECERL - AltiERE
&1 £118 T £871,355,000/% i 15 A (£ 3517 - 4B E R
REFE A BBITRNA3.87% (BHEZT—X
F+ = F=+—H :860,042,5000 %17 B E R
RATERDETRMD Z2H4.00%) - R=ZF—+
FHZA=1+—8 " F k& *18,562,500/% 8 7%
2 BB B R R Kog B & H£331,499,5000% 46
BRRD 2 IR BT -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of movements of the share options granted under the Share

Report of the Directors

EEgHE

BIRESTE (@

RIFEREA SR EBRERAFEANZE

Option Scheme for the Year were as follows: BT
Number of underlying Shares comprised in the share options
BRESRERRHEE
Exercise Weighted As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
price average 1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period per Share  closing price 2017 the period the period the period the period 2017
7
S 3%
. mETY Rtk i ‘ +27
£l £HAH TS BRITER KfE -A-H B HniTiE iR HRER =t+-H
HKS HK$
BT BT
Directors
iz
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 0.3628 - 50,000,000 @ - - - - 50,000,000
10 December 2024
UREEE “E-mE+-A+-B —E-RE+-At+-RE
“E-MEFZATH
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 0.674 - 25,000,000 - - - - 25,000,000
10 December 2025
ZE-RFTZAT-R ZE-R"FT-A+-RE
ZZZREFATH
8 November 2016 8 November 2017 to 0.98 - 100,000,000 @ - - - - 100,000,000
7 November 2026
“2-RE+-ANR Z2-tE+-RAABRZE
- FT-AtA
Mr. Chng Swee Ho 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 0.3628 - 15,000,000 @ - - - - 15,000,000
- 10 December 2024
HRREE “I-mE+ZA+-B ZE-AF+t-At+-R%E
“E-MEFZATH
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 0.674 - 15,000,000 - - - - 15,000,000
10 December 2025
ZE-RFTZAT-R ZE-R"FT-A+-RE
ZZZREFATH
8 November 2016 8 November 2017 to 0.98 - 10,000,000 @ - - - - 10,000,000
7 November 2026
Z2-RE+-ANB Z2-tE+-RABZ
- 5 T-AtAR
Mr. Sheng Jia 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 0.3628 - 15,000,000 @ - - - - 15,000,000
\ 10 December 2024
BELE “T-mE+ZA+-B ZE-AF+t-A+-R%E
“E-MEFZATH
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 0.674 - 15,000,000 - - - - 15,000,000
10 December 2025
ZE-RFTZAT-R ZE-R"FT-A+-RZE
ZZZRETATH
8 November 2016 8 November 2017 to 0.98 - 10,000,000 @ - - - - 10,000,000
7 November 2026
Z2-RE+-ANR Z2-tE+-RABZ
- 5 T-AtR
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EFTHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

BERE

Number of underlying Shares comprised in the share options

=&l (=)

BRESRZERRHEE
Exercise Weighted As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
price average 1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period per Share  closing price 2017 the period the period the period the period 2017
S “F-tf
. mEEY  Z2-t% i ‘ +-7
bl £HAH TS BRITER K -A-H B HniTiE il HRER =t+-H
HKS HK$
BT BT
Mr. Li Gang 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 0.3628 - 10,000,000 @ - - - - 10,000,000
10 December 2024
FRI%E “R-MmE+ZA+t-B ZE-I¥t-At-B%
ZE-MEFZATH
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 0.674 - 10,000,000 # - - - - 10,000,000
10 December 2025
ZE-AF+tZA+-B ZE-R"¥+t-A+-R%E
—Z-n¥+t-ATH
8 November 2016 8 November 2017 to 0.98 - 8,000,000 9 - - - - 8,000,000
7 November 2026
ZZ-RE+-AN\B  ZZ—tE+-BARZ
- 5T-AtAR
Mr. Wong Sai Hung* 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 0.3628 - 10,000,000 @ - - - - 10,000,000
10 December 2024
BtERE “R-mE+ZA+t-B ZE-I¥t-At-B%
ZE-MEFZATH
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 0.674 - 10,000,000 # - - - - 10,000,000
10 December 2025
ZZ-AF+tZA+-B ZE-R"¥+t-A+-R%E
—Z-n¥+T-ATH
8 November 2016 8 November 2017 to 0.98 - 8,000,000 9 - - - - 8,000,000
7 November 2026
ZZ-RE+-ANB  ZZ—tE+-BNBZ
- 5T-AtAR
Ms. Zhou Youmeng 8 November 2016 8 November 2017 to 0.98 - 8,000,000 © - - - - 8,000,000
7 November 2026
BRERL “E-7E+-ANR ZE—tH+-ANRZE
ZERET-AtH
Mr. Ge Ming 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 0.3628 - 5,000,000 @ - - - - 5,000,000
10 December 2024
BHREE ZI-mE+ZA+-B ZE-Af+-At+-RE
—Z-MmE+T-ATA
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 0.674 - 7,400,000 ¢ - - - - 7,400,000
10 December 2025
ZE-RFTZAT-R ZE-R"Et-A+-R%E
ZZZRFEFTZATH
12 December 2016 12 December 2017 to 0.786 - 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
11 December 2026
ZR-RETZATZE ZB—tFr-At=R%
ZEIRETCAT-H
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Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

BRRESTE (@

Number of underlying Shares comprised in the share options

BRESRZERRHEE
Exercise Weighted As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
price average 1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period per Share  closing price 2017 the period the period the period the period 2017
7 “F-tf
. mEEY  ZP-t% . ‘ +27
bl £HAH TS BRITER K -A-H B HniTiE il HRER =t+-H
HKS HK$
BT BT
Dr. Ou Minggang 11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 0.674 - 7,400,000 ¢ - - - - 7,400,000
; 10 December 2025
EARIEL ZE-RETZAT-A ZR-RETZAT-HE
ZECRETCATH
12 December 2016 12 December 2017 to 0.786 - 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
11 December 2026
“E-AE+ZA+ZR ZE—tF+t-At-RZE
“Z-RETZAT-B
Dr. Yin Zhongli 11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 0.674 - 7,400,000 - - - - 7,400,000
10 December 2025
Fyft ZE-RFtTZAT-R ZE-R"Et-A+-R%E
ZZZREFATH
12 December 2016 12 December 2017 to 0.786 - 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
11 December 2026
ZR-RETZATZE ZB—tFr-At-R%
ZZZRFTZAT-B
Former Director
HES
Mr. Wang Wei* 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 0.3628 - 5,000,000 % - - - - 5,000,000
10 December 2024
IRKL ZZ-mE+ZA+-R ZZ-RF+t-A+-RA%
ZZZMEFZATH
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 0.674 - 7,400,000 ¥ - - - - 7,400,000
10 December 2025
“R-RFtZAT-B ZB-R¥r-At-B%
ZECRETCATH
12 December 2016 12 December 2017 to 0.786 - 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
11 December 2026
“E-AF+ZA+ZR ZE—+F+t-At+-RE
“EZRETZAT-B
382,600,000 - - - - 382,600,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) R HERTE] (a)

Number of underlying Shares comprised in the share options

BRESRZERRHEE
Exercise Weighted As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
price average 1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period per Share  closing price 2017 the period the period the period the period 2017
7 “F-tf
. mEEY  ZP-t% . ‘ +27
bl £HAH TS BRITER K -A-H B HniTiE il HRER =t+-H
HKS HK$
BT BT
Employees 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 0.3628 1.0397 117,830,000 @ - (21,000,000) - - 96,830,000
(in aggregate) 10 December 2024
&8 (85) —Z-mF+-A+-B ZZ-Af+t-At+-RA%
—Z-mETZATA
8 June 2015 8 June 2016 to 0.426 10610 135,442,500 @ - (32,020,000) - (8,562,500) 94,860,000
7 June 2025
—E2-RE5ANR ZE2-R"ERANAE
“ZCREAALA
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 0.674 1.0415 85,000,000 ¢ - (28,000,000) - - 62,000,000
10 December 2025
ZE-RE+tZA+-B ZEZ-RETZAT-HE
ZZZREFTZATH
5 July 2016 5 July 2017 to 0.698 1.0847 112,000,000 © - (14,649,500) - (8,750,0000 88,600,500
4 July 2026
- £tA1R “Z-t5tARAZE
“ZCRELANA
12 December 2016 12 December 2017 to 0.786 10200 43,500,000 ™ - (1,400,000) - - 42,100,000
11 December 2026
ZE-"§tZA+ZR ZE—+F+t-A+=R%E
ZZ-RETZAT-B
31 March 2017 31 March 2018 to 1.05 - - 7,250,000® - - (1,250,000) 6,000,000
30 March 2027
ZEtF=f=+-A ZZ-N\E=A=1-HE
ZECHEZA=TH
493,772,500 7,250,000 (92,069,500) - (18,562,500) 390,390,500
Consultants 11 December 2014 11 December 2015 to 0.3628 1.0367 647,100,000 @ - (40,430,000) - - 606,670,000
10 December 2024
B “5-ME+ZA+-B ZE-Rf+-At+-HE
“Z-mETZATA
11 December 2015 11 December 2016 to 0.674 1.0200 270,000,000 - (10,000,000) - - 260,000,000
10 December 2025
ZE-A§+tZA+-B ZE-R"¥+t-A+-R%E
—Z-n%+t-ATH
5 July 2016 5 July 2017 to 0.698 1.0500 575,000,000 © - (189,000,000) - - 386,000,000
4 July 2026
ZZ2-REtLALE T-+5tAnAZE
ZECRELANA
12 December 2016 12 December 2017 to 0.786 - 200,000,000 ™ - - - - 200,000,000
11 December 2026
ZR-RETZATZE ZB—tFr-AtZR%
ZZZRFTZAT-B
1,692,100,000 - (239,430,000) - - 1,452,670,000
Total 2,568,472,500 7,250,000 (331,499,500) - (18,562,500) 2,225,660,500
&t

*Mr. Wong Sai Hung resigned as a NED with effect from 5 February 2018.

# Mr. Wang Wei resigned as an INED with effect from 1 April 2017.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes:

Q)

@

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until
the commencement of the exercise period.

The share options are exercisable according to the following vesting
schedule:

(i) one-fourth of the share options shall vest on 10 December

2015;

(i one-fourth of the share options shall vest on 10 December
2016;

(i) one-fourth of the share options shall vest on 10 December
2017; and

(iv)  one-fourth of the share options shall vest on 10 December
2018.

The closing price of the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted was HK$1.79
per share (equivalent to HK$0.358 per Share).

The share options are exercisable according to the following vesting
schedule:

(i) one-fourth of the share options shall vest on 7 June 2016;

(i) one-fourth of the share options shall vest on 7 June 2017;

(i) one-fourth of the share options shall vest on 7 June 2018; and

(iv)  one-fourth of the share options shall vest on 7 June 2019.

The closing price of the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted was HK$2.13
per share (equivalent to HK$0.426 per Share).

The share options are exercisable according to the following vesting
schedule:

(i) 40% of the share options shall vest on 10 December 2016;

(i) 30% of the share options shall vest on 10 December 2017; and

(i) 30% of the share options shall vest on 10 December 2018.

The closing price of the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted was HK$3.43
per share (equivalent to HK$0.686 per Share).
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) R HERTE] (a)

Notes: (Continued) BizE: (&)

(5)  The share options are exercisable according to the following vesting  (5)
schedule:

(i) 40% of the share options shall vest on 4 July 2017;

(i) 30% of the share options shall vest on 4 July 2018; and

(i)~ 30% of the share options shall vest on 4 July 2019.

The closing price of the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted was HK$3.04
per share (equivalent to HK$0.61 per Share).

(6)  The share options are exercisable according to the following vesting  (6)
schedule:
(i) 40% of the share options shall vest on 7 November 2017;
(i) 30% of the share options shall vest on 7 November 2018; and
(i)~ 30% of the share options shall vest on 7 November 2019.
The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which

the share options were granted was HK$0.97 per Share.

(7) The share options are exercisable according to the following vesting (7)
schedule:
(i) 40% of the share options shall vest on 11 December 2017;
(i) 30% of the share options shall vest on 11 December 2018; and

(i)~ 30% of the share options shall vest on 11 December 2019.

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which
the share options were granted was HK$0.76 per Share.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(8)  The share options are exercisable according to the following vesting
schedule:

(i) 40% of the share options shall vest on 30 March 2018;
(i) 30% of the share options shall vest on 30 March 2019; and
(i)~ 30% of the share options shall vest on 30 March 2020.

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which
the share options were granted was HK$1.02 per Share.

Please refer to note 49 to the consolidated financial statements for
details of the fair value of share options granted in 2017.

The fair value of share options granted to the Directors and
employees were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

EEgHE

BIRESTE @
ar: (48)
(8) HZEEREARETIGEBRERITE:
[0} EREZ4I0%ER - N\F=A=1+H
RS

iy EBEREZOWEHR_ZT—IAF=ZA=+H
SE &

iy HWREZOWER_TE_TF=A=+H
R

BN EZEREERE B Z KT EAETR
1.02/8 7T °

EE T+t FERNEREATFEZFS:
%F‘ éﬁ’zi&i\%wﬂgo

RTEFRRERECBEREZAFENEREBL
R-FRZEEERAFE AR ZH
BAR

11 December 8June 11 December 5July 8 November 12 December 31 March

2014 2015

2015 2016 2016 2016 2017

Zg-mE  ZE-1f Z%-1F ZE-nE  IB-R"E  ZE-Rf ZF-tf

+ZA+-H ~ANB +ZRAt+-H

tRIH +-ANB +ZA+ZH =ZA=+-H

Inputs into the model PN Ewad 6

Exercise price’ T4 HKS0.3628%T  HKS0.42637  HKSOG74BTT  HKS0.98%TT  HKS0.98%BT  HKSO786HBT  HKST.08%7T
Expected volatility BHRE 41.71%-42.35% 44.56%-49.47% 48.48%-50.96% 36.00% 38.6%-52.79% 44.32%-53.52% 40%
Expected life BHEH 2-5 years 2-5 years® 2-4yearsF  2.5-10 yearsF 10 years 10 years 10 years
Expected dividend yield AR s 0.676% 0.219% 0.287% 0.264% 0.164% 0.215% 0.12%
Risk-free rate EE R = 0.43%-1.237%  0.48%-1.31% 0.404%-0.895%  0.42%-0.93% 1.12% 1.57% 1.59%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The expected volatility of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme was determined by using the historical volatility
of the share price of comparable companies and the Company
respectively. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting period or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share-based payment reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

The fair values of share options granted to consultants were
measured at the fair value of the services received. With regard to the
subjectivity and uncertainty of the values of the share options, such
values are subject to a number of assumptions and the limitation of
the model.

The Group recognised total expenses of approximately
RMB160,684,000 for the Year (2016: RMB109,986,000) in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

Further particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in Note
49 to the consolidated financial statements.

# restated as a result of share subdivision effective on 19 September
2016.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year did the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company (including their respective
spouses and children under 18 years of age) have any interest in,
or were granted, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and/or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO). In addition, none of
them exercised any such rights during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, associated companies, fellow
subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or the chief executive of the Company to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in,
or debentures of, the Company and/or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO).
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiGSRBELEFRLA)
(“Shanghai Yintong”)

Shanghai Yintong recorded revenue and a net loss of
RMB104,000 and RMB1,333,000, respectively, for the Year
(for the year ended 31 December 2016: revenue and a net
profit of RMB2,097,000 and RMB118,800, respectively). As
at 31 December 2017, the total assets and net assets of
Shanghai Yintong were RMB42,849,000 and RMB43,057,000,
respectively (as at 31 December 2016: RMB44,534,000 and
RMB44,390,000, respectively).

On 11 June 2003, Shanghai Yintong, a limited liability company
established in the PRC, entered into the structured contracts
(the “Yintong Structured Contracts”) with Lucky Target
Property Consultants (Shanghai) Company Limited (I 1442
¥EM(L8)BAR2AF) (‘Lucky Consultants”), a limited
liability company established in the PRC and an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its equity
holders, namely, Shanghai Jinhan Investment Development
Limited ( L8858 E B AR A F]) (‘Jinhan Investment”),
a limited liability company established in the PRC and Xinrong
Asset Management Limited (FTEtEEEE AR A 7))
(“Xinrong Asset”), a limited liability company established in the
PRC, pursuant to which all the business activities of Shanghai
Yintong are managed by Lucky Consultants and all economic
benefits and risks arising from the business of Shanghai
Yintong are transferred to Lucky Consultants.

Shanghai Yintong is primarily engaged in pawn loan business.

*  For identification purpose only
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiGSRBELEFRLA)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

Principal terms of the Yintong Structured
Contracts

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the
Yintong Structured Contracts:

(1)

Management Agreement

On 25 February 2010, Jinhan Investment, Xinrong
Asset, Shanghai Yintong and Lucky Consultants entered
into a management agreement (the “Management
Agreement”), pursuant to which Lucky Consultants
agreed to manage and operate the business, including
pawn loan and entrusted loans, of Shanghai Yintong.
Under the Management Agreement, Lucky Consultants
is responsible for the management and operation of
Shanghai Yintong.

Under the Management Agreement, Lucky Consultants
shall assume all economic benefits and risks arising
from the business of Shanghai Yintong. The revenue
of Shanghai Yintong, after deducting all relevant costs
and expenses (including taxes) shall be paid to Lucky
Consultants after the financial statements of Shanghai
Yintong have been audited.

The term of the Management Agreement is 10 years
commencing on 25 February 2010, and renewable at the
request of Lucky Consultants.

*  For identification purpose only
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiBIREBAEFR LA
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

Principal terms of the Yintong Structured
Contracts (Continued)

@

Pledge Agreement

On 25 February 2010, Jinhan Investment, Xinrong Asset,
Shanghai Yintong and Lucky Consultants entered into a
pledge agreement (the “Pledge Agreement”), pursuant
to which Jinhan Investment and Xinrong Asset granted
to Lucky Consultants a continuing first priority security
interest over their respective equity interests in the
registered capital of Shanghai Yintong (the “Pledged
Securities”). The Pledged Securities represent the entire
equity interests in the registered capital of Shanghai
Yintong, and the entering into of the Pledge Agreement
secures due performance of the contractual obligations
by Jinhan Investment, Xinrong Asset and Shanghai
Yintong under the Yintong Structured Contracts.

The Pledge Agreement is for a term commencing on 25
February 2010 and ending on the date of termination of
the Management Agreement.
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Report of the Directors

EFTHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiBIREBAEFR LA
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

Reasons for use of the Yintong Structured
Contracts

The pawn loan business currently engaged by Shanghai
Yintong is regulated by, amongst others, the Measures for
the Administration of Pawning (£ & & 1 ##%) (‘Pawning
Measures”), which was jointly issued by the Ministry
of Commerce of the PRC (/% AR H F1E 7 7% =6)
(“MOFCOM") and the Ministry of Public Security of the PRC
(REAREMBEALZEL) on 9 February 2005 and came
into effect on 1 April 2005. In accordance with the Pawning
Measures, an application for the establishment of a new
pawnshop must be submitted to local commerce authorities
and thereafter must undergo examination and approval by
provincial level commerce authorities and finally the MOFCOM
before the MOFCOM can issue the requisite Pawn Operations
Business Licence. Further, a transfer (or accumulated transfers)
to a third party of more than 50% of the equity interests
in a pawnshop must receive approval from the provincial
level commerce authorities and thereafter must undergo
examination and approval by the MOFCOM. However, as at 31
December 2017, except for those applicable to free trade area,
no relevant rules and regulations had been announced by the
PRC governmental authorities regulating this sector. Approval
for investment in pawn business by foreign invested companies
in the PRC falls under an administrative act, which means that
if there are no established laws governing the investment by
foreign invested companies in pawn business, no approval can
be granted and no licence can be issued to a foreign invested
company.

*  For identification purpose only
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiGSRBELEFRLA)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

Reasons for use of the Yintong Structured
Contracts (Continued)

Given the above, the Pawning Measures relate only to
domestic investment in the pawn industry, in practice means
Pawn Operations Business Licences may not be issued to
foreign invested enterprises. Any direct or indirect acquisition
by Lucky Consultants of the equity interests or assets of
Shanghai Yintong would, for the purpose of the Pawning
Measures and based on the relevant foreign investment laws,
constitute foreign investment in the pawn industry and would
render Lucky Consultants or the acquiring entity ineligible to
receive a Pawn Operations Business Licence.

Moreover, because Lucky Consultants was established as
a wholly foreign owned enterprise prior to the promulgation
of the Regulations of Mergers and Acquisitions of Domestic
Enterprises by Foreign Investors (B i 4NE 1 & & (18 15
N1 % &) #8 F ) adopted by MOFCOM and certain PRC
governmental authorities on 8 August 2006 (the “M&A
Rules”), the M&A Rules would not be applicable to any
acquisition by Lucky Consultants of the equity or assets of a
domestic enterprise, including Shanghai Yintong.

Accordingly, the Yintong Structured Contracts were entered
into in order for the Group to manage and operate the business
of Shanghai Yintong in the PRC, under which all the business
activities of Shanghai Yintong are managed and operated by
Lucky Consultants and all economic benefits and risks arising
from the business of Shanghai Yintong are transferred to Lucky
Consultants by means of management and operation fee
payable by Shanghai Yintong to Lucky Consultants.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiGSRBELEFRLA)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Yintong Structured
Contracts

(1)

The PRC Government may determine that the Yintong
Structured Contracts are not in compliance with
applicable PRC laws, rules, regulations or policies.

The pawn business currently engaged by Shanghai
Yintong is regulated by amongst others, the Pawning
Measures. According to the Pawning Measures, rules
and regulations governing the investment by foreign
invested companies in pawn business in the PRC shall be
separately announced by MOFCOM and other relevant
authorities.

As at 31 December 2017, no relevant rules and
regulations have been announced by MOFCOM or the
FETmEEZ B € (Shanghai Municipal Commission of
Commerce) (“‘SMCC"). According to the then F#E AR
HMBIFTEEFA]E (the Administrative Licensing Rules of
the PRC), administrative licensing regimes may only be
set up and implemented where there are established laws
setting out relevant procedures, parameters, conditions
and scope of administrative power. As the approval
of investment in a pawn business by foreign invested
companies in the PRC falls under an administrative act,
no approval can be granted and no licence can be issued
to a foreign invested company if there are no established
laws governing the investment by foreign invested
companies in a pawn business.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiGSRBLEFGRLA)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Yintong Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

The Group understands that the PRC governmental
authorities may not as a matter of practice grant the
Pawn Operations Business Licence to foreign invested
companies and do not accept any application for
investment in the pawn business by foreign invested
companies in Shanghai.

In order for the Group to manage and operate the
secured financing business of Shanghai Yintong in China,
the Yintong Structured Contracts were entered into under
which all the business activities of Shanghai Yintong are
managed and operated by Lucky Consultants and all
economic benefits and risks arising from the business of
Shanghai Yintong are transferred to Lucky Consultants
by means of management and operation fee payable by
Shanghai Yintong to Lucky Consultants.

There are risks involved with the operation of the Group
under the Yintong Structured Contracts. If the Structured
Contracts are considered to be in breach of any existing
or future PRC laws or regulations or governmental policy,
the relevant regulatory authorities would have broad
discretion in dealing with such breach, including:

o imposing economic penalties;

° discontinuing or restricting the operations of
Shanghai Yintong;
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1. Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company 1.
Limited* ( LiBSREALERRQF)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Yintong Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)  (Continued)

° imposing conditions or requirements in respect of
the Yintong Structured Contracts with which the
Group may not be able to comply;

° requiring the Group to restructure the relevant
ownership structure or operations;

° taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that
could adversely affect the business of the Group;
and

° revoking the business licences and/or the licences
or certificates of Shanghai Yintong and/or voiding
the Yintong Structured Contracts.

Any of these actions could have a material adverse
impact on the Group’s business, financial condition and
results of operations.

The Group depends upon the Yintong Structured
Contracts in conducting its secured financing business in
China and receiving payments through Shanghai Yintong,
which may not be as effective as direct ownership.

The Group conducts its secured financing business in
China and generates the relevant revenues through the
Yintong Structured Contracts. The Yintong Structured
Contracts may not be as effective in providing the Group
with control over Shanghai Yintong as direct ownership.

*  For identification purpose only *
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiGSRBELEFRLA)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Yintong Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

The Yintong Structured Contracts are governed
by the PRC law and provide for the resolution of
disputes through arbitration in accordance with the
arbitration rules of China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission in force at that time (the
“CIETAC Arbitration Rules”) in China. Accordingly, the
Yintong Structured Contracts would be interpreted in
accordance with the PRC law and any disputes would
be finally resolved by arbitration in accordance with the
CIETAC Arbitration Rules. If Shanghai Yintong fails to
perform its obligations under the Yintong Structured
Contracts, the Group may have to rely on legal remedies
under PRC law, including seeking specific performance
or injunctive relief, and claiming damages. The legal
environment in China is not as developed as in other
jurisdictions. As a result, uncertainties in the PRC legal
system could limit the ability of the Group to enforce the
Yintong Structured Contracts.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiGSRBELEFRLA)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Yintong Structured
Contracts (Continued)

©)

Should the Group decide to exercise the option to
purchase the equity interest in and/or the assets of
Shanghai Yintong, the Group may need to pay a
purchase price higher than that stipulated in the Yintong
Structured Contracts

Under the Management Agreement, Lucky Consultants
or its nominee has the exclusive option, as and when
permitted by PRC law, to acquire any or all of the equity
interest of Shanghai Yintong from Jinhan Investment and
Xinrong Asset. The price for the acquisition of the equity
interest shall be the higher of the capital investment of the
relevant equity holder and the book value of the equity
interest, subject to the laws and regulations governing
the management of state-owned assets.

As the equity interest in Shanghai Yintong held by
Xinrong Asset is considered a state-owned asset, any
transfer thereof must, in accordance with the State
Owned Assets Law of the PRC (FR#E A R MBI %
BlH&EL), be completed in a public market place by
means of listing for sale. In the case there are competing
bidders for the equity interest, Jinhan Investment may
exercise its right of first refusal in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC (F#E A R X MBI A &EE)
to ensure that the equity interest is not sold to a third
party, however any such exercise may result in a higher
purchase price than would otherwise have to be paid by
Lucky Consultants in order to acquire the equity interest
in Shanghai Yintong directly from Xinrong Asset.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiGSRBLEFGRLA)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Yintong Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(4)

The pricing arrangement under the Yintong Structured
Contracts may be challenged by the PRC tax authorities.

The Group may face adverse tax consequences if the
PRC tax authorities determine that the Yintong Structured
Contracts were not entered into based on arm’s length
negotiations. If the PRC tax authorities determine that
the Yintong Structured Contracts were not entered into
on an arm’s length basis, they may adjust the income
and expenses of the Group for PRC tax purposes which
could result in higher tax liability.

The Group relies on the Pawn Operations Business
Licence and _E & #1773 FF A #& (Shanghai City
Special Industry Licence) held by Shanghai Yintong and
any deterioration of the relationship between Shanghai
Yintong and the Group could materially and adversely
affect the overall business operation of the Group.

The Group operates its pawn loan business in China
on the basis of the Pawn Operations Business Licence
and B TMEFETEHFAF (Shanghai City Special
Industry Licence) as well as other requisite licences held
by Shanghai Yintong. If Shanghai Yintong is not able to
renew its licences or certificates when their terms expire
with substantially similar terms as the ones they currently
hold, the Group’s operations, reputation and business
could be materially affected.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiGSRBLEFGRLA)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Yintong Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(5) (Continued)

On 25 February 2010, Lucky Consultants, Shanghai
Yintong, Jinhan Investment and Xinrong Asset, entered
into the Yintong Structured Contracts, pursuant to
which Lucky Consultants was granted the right to
acquire the equity interests or assets of Shanghai
Yintong. The Yintong Structured Contracts may not be
effective in providing control over the application for and
maintenance of the licences required for the Group’s
business operations. Shanghai Yintong could violate the
Yintong Structured Contracts, go bankrupt, suffer from
difficulties in its business or otherwise become unable
to perform its obligations under the Yintong Structured
Contracts and, as a result, the Group’s operations,
reputation and business could be materially affected.

Actions taken by the Group to mitigate the
risks

The Group incorporated and adopted relevant requirements
of industrial and regulatory policies to various management
guidelines and procedural guidelines, and performed timely
monitoring of new trends in the market and regulatory policies.
All information collected was summarized and communicated
to the relevant personnel forthwith. New trends and regulatory
policies were collected and risks were controlled vigorously.

In addition, the applicable laws and regulations are timely
reflected in the business activities and operations of our Group
through the implementation of process management in various
business areas.

*  For identification purpose only
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

1.

Shanghai Yintong Dian Dang Company
Limited* ( LiGSRBLEFGRLA)
(“Shanghai Yintong”) (Continued)

Actions taken by the Group to mitigate the
risks (Continued)

To foster an enabling culture for risk management, the Group
compiled and prepared training courses for risk management,
helping with the dissemination of knowledge and keeping
abreast of the market development. The Group seeks and will
continue to seek legal or other specialist advice as appropriate
in order to effectively monitor the legal and regulatory risks.

Material changes to and the unwinding of the
Yintong Structured Contracts

There were no material changes to the Yintong Structured
Contracts and/or the circumstances under which they were
adopted, nor was there any unwinding of them or of a failure
to do the same due to the restrictions that led to their adoption
being removed.

For detailed information relating to the Yintong Structured
Contracts, please refer to the prospectus of the Company
dated 15 November 2010.

*  For identification purpose only
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

2.

UCF Pay

For the Year, UCF Pay recorded revenue and a net profit
of RMB355,232,000 and RMB160,679,000, respectively
(for the year ended 31 December 2016: RMB203,185,500
and RMB122,001,000, respectively). As at 31 December
2017, the total assets and net assets of UCF pay were
RMB1,069,001,000 and RMB500,975,000 respectively (as at
31 December 2016: RMB591,146,000 and RMB340,296,000
respectively).

In October 2013, the Group entered into structured contracts
(the “UCF Pay Structured Contracts”) with Bt& Bl ¥ £ E
B BR A A] (United Venture Guarantee Group Co. Ltd.”), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability and
98.17% indirectly owned by Mr. Zhang (“UVG Group”), and
BB AP/ ERERRE (b)) AR 2AE (Guorong United
SME Investment Consultancy (Beijing) Co. Ltd.*), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability and owned by an
independent third party (“Guorong Investment”). The UCF
Pay Structured Contracts relate to the effective control over
and the rights to enjoy the economic benefits in and/or assets
of UCF Pay.

UCF Pay is principally engaged in the provision of online third
party payment services and prepaid card issuance business in
the PRC and which has a third party payment licence issued
by the People’s Bank of China (the “PBOC”). Online payment
profit is primarily obtained from transaction fee and interest
income from reserve fund accounts.

The UCF Pay Structured Contracts include an exclusive
management and operation contract, an exclusive call option
contract, a shareholders’ entrustment contract and an equity
pledge contract, together with powers of attorney ancillary to
such agreements (collectively, the “Control Contracts”).
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

2.

UCF Pay (Continued)

Principal terms of the Control Contracts:

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Control
Contracts:

(@)

UCF Pay has agreed to (i) engage the Group to
provide exclusive and comprehensive management
and operation services to UCF Pay; and (i) pay an
annual management service fee to the Group equal to
the revenue generated by UCF Pay after deducting all
relevant costs and expenses (including taxes), losses and
related reserve funds;

UVG Group and Guorong Investment () have granted
the Group the exclusive right to acquire any or all the
equity interests in UCF Pay at the lowest price as and
when permitted under the relevant PRC laws and
regulations on the condition that such acquisition shall
be in compliance with relevant PRC laws and regulations;
(i) have pledged all their equity interests in UCF Pay to
the Group for the purpose of securing the performance
of their and UCF Pay’s respective contractual obligations
under the Control Contracts; and (iii) have entrusted
the Group or its designated party to exercise all their
respective rights as shareholders of UCF Pay, including
but not limited to the rights to vote in a shareholders’
meeting, sign shareholders’ resolutions and file
documents with the relevant registration authority and
the rights to receive the remaining assets of UCF Pay
upon the winding-up of UCF Pay. The Control Contracts
shall be legally binding on the successors of UVG Group
and Guorong Investment in the event of any change in
their holding of the “equity interest of UCF Pay due to
bankruptcy, winding-up, termination of operation or any
other reason”; and
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

2.

UCF Pay (Continued)

Principal terms of the Control Contracts:
(Continued)

()

in case of a dispute in relation to the Control Contracts,
the parties to the Control Contracts shall negotiate in
good faith to resolve the dispute. If the dispute cannot be
settled through negotiation within 45 days, any party may
refer the dispute to the Dalian Arbitration Commission in
the PRC for an arbitration award which shall be final and
binding on the parties concerned. In addition, pursuant to
the terms of the Control Contracts, the Dalian Arbitration
Commission has the power to effect actions or arbitral
awards on any shares, assets or business of UCF Pay,
including the grant of compensation orders, restraining
orders or winding up order. Such arbitration awards will
be enforced by the People’s Courts of the PRC with
jurisdiction.

The Control Contracts are valid for a term of ten years
commencing on 21 November 2013 and may be extended
for such further ten-year period as may be requested by the
Group. The Group is entitled to effect the early termination
of the Control Contracts at its own discretion. Neither UCF
Pay nor its shareholders may vary or terminate the Control
Contracts.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

2.

UCF Pay (Continued)

Reasons for use of the Control Contracts

The payment service business engaged by UCF Pay is
subject to regulations in accordance with, among others,
the administrative measures relating to payment services by
non-financial institutions ( 3 & @ # & % o AR 15 & 3 0%,
the “Payment Service Measures”). The Payment Service
Measures, which were issued by the PBOC on 19 May 2010
and came into effect on 1 September 2010, defined “payment
services” as the provision by non-financial institutions of
intermediary services for the transfer of funds between a
transferor and transferee, including with respect to online
payments, the issue and acceptance of prepaid cards, and
point of sale (POS) systems. The Payment Service Measures
stipulate that non-financial institutions must not engage in the
provision of payment services without first obtaining approval
and a payment services licence (3 11 #7555 7] 3% ) from the
PBOC. In accordance with Article 9 of the Payment Service
Measures, regulations and rules addressing the scope of
business and ownership restrictions for foreign investment in
non-financial institutions engaged in payment services shall be
separately stipulated by the PBOC and approved by the State
Council of the PRC. However, as at 31 December 2017, no
such regulations and rules had been stipulated by the PBOC,
nor had the PBOC, as a matter of practice, granted any
Payment Services Licence to any foreign invested enterprise
engaged in the provision of online payment services.
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Report of the Directors

EFTHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

2.

121

UCF Pay (Continued)

Reasons for use of the Control Contracts
(Continued)

In circumstances where foreign invested enterprises are not
granted approval and licences to engage in online payment
services, the Group is not able to acquire the equity interests
in UCF Pay. To enable the Group to engage in the online
payment service business in the PRC, the Group entered into
the Control Contracts with UCF Pay, UVG Group and Guorong
Investment. The Control Contracts will enable the Group to
manage and operate the business of UCF Pay, and exercise
effective control over and, to the extent permitted by PRC laws
and regulations, have the right to acquire the equity interest in
UCF Pay.

As a result, the Control Contracts, taken as a whole, allow the
Group to effectively control UCF Pay and therefore recognise
and receive substantially all of the economic benefits of the
business and operations of UCF Pay.

The risks relating to the Control Contracts

(1) The PRC Government may determine that the
Control Contracts are not in compliance with
applicable PRC laws, rules, regulations or policies.

If the Control Contracts are considered to be in breach
of any existing or future PRC laws or regulations or
governmental policy, the relevant regulatory authorities
would have broad discretion in dealing with such breach,
including:

o imposing economic penalties;

° discontinuing or restricting the operations of UCF
Pay;

A
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

2. UCF Pay (Continued)

The risks relating to the Control Contracts
(Continued)

(1)

@)

The PRC Government may determine that the

Control Contracts are not in compliance with

applicable PRC laws, rules, regulations or policies.

(Continued)

° imposing conditions or requirements in respect of
the Control Contracts with which the Group may
not be able to comply;

° requiring the Group to restructure the relevant
ownership structure or operations;

° taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that
could adversely affect the business of the Group;
and

° revoking the business licences and/or the licences
or certificates of UCF Pay and/or voiding the
Control Contracts.

The Control Contracts may not be as effective in
providing the Group with control over UCF Pay as
direct ownership.

The Group conducts third-party payment and prepaid
card business in the PRC and generates the relevant
revenues through the Control Contracts. The Control
Contracts may not be as effective in providing the Group
with control over UCF Pay as direct ownership.

The Control Contracts are governed by the PRC law and
if UCF Pay fails to perform their respective obligations
under the Control Contracts, the Group may have
to rely on legal remedies under PRC law, including
seeking specific performance or injunctive relief, and
claiming damages. The legal environment in the PRC is
not as developed as in other jurisdictions. As a result,
uncertainties in the PRC legal system could limit the
ability of the Group to enforce the Control Contracts.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

2. UCF Pay (Continued)

The risks relating to the Control Contracts
(Continued)

3

“)

The pricing arrangement under the Control
Contracts may be challenged by the PRC tax
authorities.

The Group may face adverse tax consequences if
the PRC tax authorities determine that the Control
Contracts were not entered into based on arm’s length
negotiations. If the PRC tax authorities determine that
the Control Contracts were not entered into on an arm’s
length basis, they may adjust the income and expenses
of the Group for PRC tax purposes which could result in
higher tax liability.

The Group relies on the third-party payment
licences held by UCF Pay and any deterioration of
the relationship between UCF Pay and the Group
could materially and adversely affect the overall
business operation of the Group.

The Group operates third-party payment business in the
PRC on the basis of the third-party payment licence held
by UCF Pay. If UCF Pay is not able to renew its licences
when their terms expire with substantially similar terms as
the ones they currently hold, the operations, reputation
and business of the Group could be materially affected.

The Control Contracts may not be effective in providing
control over the application for and maintenance of the
licences required for the third-party payment business
operations of the Group. UCF Pay could violate the
Control Contracts, go bankrupt, suffer from difficulties
in its business or otherwise become unable to perform
its obligations under the Control Contracts and, as a
result, the third-party payment operations, reputation and
business of the Group could be materially affected.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

2.

UCF Pay (Continued)

The risks relating to the Control Contracts
(Continued)

(4)  The Group relies on the third-party payment
licences held by UCF Pay and any deterioration of
the relationship between UCF Pay and the Group
could materially and adversely affect the overall
business operation of the Group. (Continued)

The industry in which UCF Pay operates is regulated and
any failure by UCF Pay to adhere to relevant laws and
regulations and/or obtain requisite licences and permits
may have a significant impact on the third-party payment
business, results of operations and financial conditions of
the Group.

Actions taken by the Group to mitigate the
risks

The Group incorporated and adopted relevant requirements
of industrial and regulatory policies to various management
guidelines and procedural guidelines, and performed timely
monitoring of new trends in the market and regulatory policies.
All'information collected was summarized and communicated
to the relevant personnel forthwith. New trends and regulatory
policies were collected and risks were controlled vigorously.

In addition, the applicable laws and regulations are timely
reflected in the business activities and operations of our Group
through the implementation of process management in various
business areas.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

2.

UCF Pay (Continued)

Actions taken by the Group to mitigate the
risks (Continued)

To foster an enabling culture for risk management, the Group
compiled and prepared training courses for risk management,
helping with the dissemination of knowledge and keeping
abreast of the market development. The Group seeks and will
continue to seek legal or other specialist advice as appropriate
in order to effectively monitor the legal and regulatory risks.

Material changes to and the unwinding of the
Control Contracts

There were no material changes to the Control Contracts and/
or the circumstances under which they were adopted, nor was
there any unwinding of them or of a failure to do the same due
to the restrictions that led to their adoption being removed. The
Group intends to unwind the Control Contracts arrangement
and directly hold the equity interests of UCF Pay when the
relevant restrictions no longer exist.

For further details of the Control Contracts, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 9 October 2013.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
~8l) (“Qiyuan”)

For the Year, Qiyuan recorded revenue and a net profit of
RMB121,437,000 and RMB19,268,000, respectively (for the
year ended 31 December 2016: revenue and net profit were
RMB89,189,000 and RMB62,891,000, respectively). As at 31
December 2017, the total assets and the net assets of Qiyuan
were RMB133,063,000 and RMB87,374,000 respectively
(as at 31 December 2016: total assets and net assets were
RMB146,207,000 and RMB68,106,000 respectively).

On 21 April 2016, Amazing Express Development Limited
(the “Investor”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an acquisition agreement with Mr. Wong Zheng
(the “Seller”) to acquire a 51% equity interest in Qiyuan which
includes #IIIE& R —RBHEZAB R A A (Shenzhen Wanhezhongyi
Technology Company Limited*) (the “WFOE”) through
structured contracts (the “Qiyuan Structured Contracts”)
at a consideration of RMB55.0 million, which was satisfied by
cash and a contingent consideration by the issue of shares
of HK$0.1 each (HK$0.02 each after the effect of the Share
Subdivision on 19 September 2016). The transaction was
completed on 21 April 2016.

Qiyuan is engaged in the provision of mobile gaming service.
The existing shareholders of Qiyuan includes one nominee
shareholder (the “Nominee Shareholder”), who is nominated
by the Investor and holds 51% of Qiyuan’s registered
capital. The Nominee Shareholder is a member of the senior
management of the Company and is a third party independent
of the Company, the Investor and their respective connected
persons (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules).

*  For identification purpose only
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (Continued) REEL @

3. Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology 3.
Company Limited* (iR YIFEIE X TRIZFIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

On 21 April 2016, the Qiyuan Structured Contracts were
executed among Qiyuan, the WFOE, the Seller and the
Nominee Shareholders, to enable the financial results, the
entire economic benefits and risks attributable to the interest in
Qiyuan’s business (through WFOE) to flow to the Seller and the
Investor to enjoy control over the equity interest in Qiyuan.

Principal terms of the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Qiyuan
Structured Contracts:

1) Exclusive Option Agreement
The Seller and the Nominee Shareholder irrevocably
agree, to the extent permitted under the laws of the PRC,
to transfer to the WFOE or any persons(s) designated by
the WFOE at any time all or part of their equity interests in
Qiyuan.

The WFOE may exercise its rights as stated in the
paragraph above at any time at its sole discretion as
permitted under the laws of the PRC. The exercise price
of each of the rights under the paragraph above shall be
the nominal price, subject to other price requirements
(if any) as may be imposed or required by relevant PRC
governmental authorities or law, in any case being the
lowest possible price permissible.

The Seller and the Nominee Shareholder undertake that,
among other things, they will not (i) amend the articles
of association of Qiyuan; (i) increase or decrease the
registered capital of Qiyuan; (iii) sell, transfer, mortgage
or create any security interest or third party rights in their
equity interests in Qiyuan; or (iv) approve any merger
or acquisition activities of Qiyuan without prior written
permission of the WFOE.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3. Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

Principal terms of the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

@

3

Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement

Qiyuan has agreed to engage the WFOE on an exclusive
basis to provide services in connection with the business
of Qiyuan, such as business assistance, technical
services, consulting services etc. Qiyuan has further
agreed not to, and agreed to procure that its subsidiaries
will not, without the WFOE’s prior written consent,
participate, be interested, engage, acquire or hold any
business which competes directly or indirectly with the
WFOE in the PRC. In exchange, Qiyuan will pay the
WFOE service fee, on a yearly basis, equivalent to all of
its income and economic interests following deduction of
any necessary costs, expenses, taxation and mandatory
social insurance and housing funds etc., which are
determined by the WFOE.

Equity Pledge Agreements

The Seller has agreed to pledge all equity interests in
Qiyuan held by him, being 49% of all the equity interests
in Qiyuan (including all present and future rights and
benefits derived from such equity interests and any
additional interests in Qiyuan acquired by him subsequent
to the date of the Seller's Equity Pledge Agreement) to
the WFOE, as continuing first priority collateral security
for the performance of all payment obligations of Qiyuan
(including but not limited to those under the Exclusive
Business Cooperation Agreement as stated in paragraph
(2) above and relevant interests, costs and expenses).

The Nominee Shareholder, as another registered
shareholder of Qiyuan holding 51% of all the equity
interests in Qiyuan, together with the WFOE and Qiyuan,
entered into the Nominee Shareholder’s Equity Pledge
Agreement, the terms of which are substantially the same
as those set out in the Seller’s Equity Pledge Agreement.
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3. Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology 3.
Company Limited* (iR YIFEIE X TRIZFIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

RFEREESHIAE EIR (H)

Principal terms of the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

“)

Entrustment Agreement for Shareholders’ Vioting
Rights

The Seller and the Nominee Shareholder, among other
things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertake to
authorise any person designated by the WFOE (including
but not limited to the members of the board of directors
of the WFOE and their respective successors or
liquidators) to exercise on their behalf all shareholders’
rights under the articles of association of Qiyuan and
applicable PRC laws and regulations, including but not
limited to (i) propose, call together, attend, be counted
for quorum and vote at shareholders meetings, (i) act
as, appoint and/or replace Qiyuan’s legal representative,
chairman, executive directors, supervisors, managing
director and/or other senior management, (iii) sign
minutes of shareholders meetings and resolutions and
other documents to be filed with relevant companies
registrars, (iv) represent and exercise any voting powers
and receive any distributions on their behalf in the event
of Qiyuan’s insolvency or winding up or similar events,
and (v) file documents with the relevant companies
registrar.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

Reasons for use of the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts

The use of the Qiyuan Structured Contracts is due to
applicable PRC law, which stipulates the business of research
and development, operation, and distribution of computer
and mobile games and production of media content of Qiyuan
would require the internet publication licence ( & B 48 H i 5F
"] 7% ) and online cultural business licence (481 X L 48 & &F
A% ) , which are subject to restrictions on foreign investment,
which will be difficult for the Company to comply with, as is
more fully set out in the sub-paragraph 1 under the heading
“The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured Contracts” below.

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts

WFOE does not have any direct equity ownership in Qiyuan
and has relied on the Qiyuan Structured Contracts to control,
operate, and be entitled to the economic benefits and risks
arising from Qiyuan and thereby an indirect 51% interest
in Qiyuan’s business in the PRC. However, there are risks
involved with the use of the Qiyuan Structured Contracts to
enjoy the economic benefits flowing from Qiyuan.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)

There is no assurance that the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts could comply with future changes in the
regulatory requirements in the PRC and the PRC
government may determine that the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts do not comply with applicable regulations.

According to the Company’s PRC legal advisers, current
PRC laws and regulations place certain restrictions on
foreign ownership of companies that engage in the
business of Qiyuan. Specifically, foreign ownership of
value-added telecommunications services providers,
including Internet content providers, may not exceed
50%. The business of Qiyuan is regarded as value-
added telecommunication services and internet culture
services (including the issuance of online game virtual
currency). The Circular regarding Strengthening the
Administration of Foreign Investment in the Operation of
Value-added Telecommunications Business issued by the
PRC Ministry of Information Industry (the “MIIT”) on 13
July 2006 (the “MIIT Circular”) provides that a domestic
company that holds an Internet Content Provider (“ICP”)
licence is prohibited from leasing, transferring or selling
the licence to foreign investors in any form, and from
providing any assistance, including providing resources,
sites or facilities, to foreign investors to illegally operate
telecommunications business in the PRC. The Company
is a Cayman lIslands incorporated company and its
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary, WFOE, may not
itself operate such business under current PRC law.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

Further, if a foreign-owned enterprise like the Company
applies for an ICP licence, as compared to domestic
enterprises in the PRC, it will be subject to more stringent
requirements or additional requirements imposed
by the MIIT or its local counterparts, such as prior
experience in operating value-added telecommunications
businesses, a proven track record of providing value-
added telecommunication services in the PRC, the
identity of the ultimate individual shareholders. And there
is no clear guidance or interpretation on the assessment
criteria for the prior experience and track record by the
MIIT or its local counterparts. Lacking such quantitative
and qualitative guidance or interpretation in terms of
how those requirements can be satisfied, applicants
like the Company are therefore unable to follow such
requirements when applying for an ICP licence to the
MIIT or its local counterparts, and hence there would
be a prolonged process of application with unknown
results if it were to take a direct equity interest in Qiyuan.
Hence, there exists great difficulty and uncertainty for
the foreign-owned enterprise to conduct the business of
Qiyuan in the PRC. Due to the lack of clarity on how the
above requirements can be satisfied, an applicant like
the Company will be unable to follow such requirements
when applying for an ICP licence to the relevant PRC
governmental authorities, and hence there will be a
prolonged process of application with unknown results.
Hence, there exists great difficulty and uncertainty for the
foreign-owned enterprises to apply for an ICP licence
from the relevant PRC governmental authorities.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

In addition, according to the Several Opinions on
Canvassing Foreign Investment into the Cultural Sector,
which were promulgated by the Ministry of Culture, State
Administration of Radio, Film and Television, General
Administration of Press and Publication (the existing
State Administration of Press, Publication, Radio, Film
and Television of the PRC), National Development and
Reform Commission and the Ministry of Commerce on 6
July 2005, a foreign investor is prohibited from investing
in internet culture business, except that a service provider
from Hong Kong or Macau is allowed to establish a PRC-
controlling network culture entity or business place where
the internet access service is provided. The Company is
a Cayman lIslands incorporated company and its indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary, WFOE, may not itself
operate such business under current PRC law.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3. Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)  (Continued)

On 28 September 2009, the General Administration
of Press and Publication (‘GAPP”), the existing State
Administration of Press, Publication, Radio, Film
and Television of the PRC), the National Copyright
Administration and the National Office of Combating
Pornography and lllegal Publications, jointly issued the
Notice Regarding the Consistent Implementation of the
“Regulation on Three Provisions” of the State Council
and the Relevant Interpretations of the State Commission
Office for Public Sector Reform and the Further
Strengthening of the Administration of Pre-examination
and Approval of Online Games and the Examination and
Approval of Imported Online Games, or the GAPP Notice.
Article 4 of the GAPP Notice prohibits foreign investors
from investing or engaging in online game operations
in the PRC through wholly-owned subsidiaries, equity
joint ventures or cooperative joint ventures, and from
gaining control over or participating in such business
indirectly through other forms of joint venture companies,
contractual or technical support arrangements. As no
detailed interpretation of the GAAP Notice has been
issued to date, it is not clear how the GAAP Notice will
be implemented. Furthermore, as some other primary
governmental regulators, such as MOFCOM, the Ministry
of Culture (the “MOC”) and the MIIT, did not join the
GAAP in issuing the GAAP Notice, the scope of the
implementation and enforcement of the GAAP Notice
remains uncertain.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

It is expected that the “grandfathering” of the existing
Qiyuan Structured Contracts will be possible in
circumstances in which Chinese investors have
historically controlled the existing Qiyuan Structured
Contracts but have lost controlling status because of
a public listing or offshore financing. As the Seller is
Chinese national and the Target has been held as to
49% by the Seller, the Qiyuan Structured Contracts
are expected to be recognized under the draft Foreign
Investment Law published by the PRC Ministry of
Commerce (the “draft Foreign Investment Law”).
However, there remain significant questions and
uncertainties. The draft Foreign Investment Law will
undergo revisions and further legislative procedures
before being issued as law. While it remains possible that
the final version of the law will be very different from the
draft, the trend toward regulating the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts will likely continue.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

Although to the Company’s knowledge there is no
indication that the Qiyuan Structured Contracts will be
interfered or objected by any PRC regulatory authorities,
the Company’s PRC legal advisers have advised
there is a possibility that the MOFCOM and/or other
competent authorities may have different opinions on
the interpretation of the relevant regulations and would
not agree that the Qiyuan Structured Contracts comply
with current PRC law, regulations or rules or those that
may be adopted in the future, and such authorities may
deny the validity, effectiveness and enforceability of the
Qiyuan Structured Contracts. In addition, due to a lack of
interpretative materials from the authorities, the Company
cannot be assured that the MIIT will not consider the
contractual arrangements as a kind of foreign investment
in telecommunication services. In such case Qiyuan
may be found in violation of the MIIT Circular and as a
result may be subject to various penalties, including fines
and the discontinuation of or restrictions on Qiyuan’s
operations.

If the authorities deny the validity, effectiveness and
enforceability of the Qiyuan Structured Contracts, it could
have a material adverse impact on WFOE’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

@

The Qiyuan Structured Contracts may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the 100%
economic interest in Qiyuan as direct ownership.

The Qiyuan Structured Contracts may not be as effective
in providing WFOE with control over and entitlement to
the economic interests in Qiyuan as direct ownership
of a 100% interest in it. If WFOE had direct ownership
of Qiyuan, WFOE would be able to directly exercise its
rights as a shareholder to effect changes in the board
of directors of Qiyuan. However, under the Qiyuan
Structured Contracts, WFOE can only look to and
rely on Qiyuan to perform their contractual obligations
under the Qiyuan Structured Contracts in order for
WFOE to effectively exercise its indirect 100% interest
in Qiyuan. Qiyuan and its shareholders may not act in
the best interests of WFOE and may not perform its/
their obligations under the Qiyuan Structured Contracts.
WFOE may replace Qiyuan’s directors by its other
nominees pursuant to the Qiyuan Structured Contracts.
However, if any dispute relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts remains unresolved, WFOE will have to enforce
its rights under the Qiyuan Structured Contracts and
seek to interpret the terms of the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts in accordance with PRC law and will be
subject to uncertainties in the PRC legal system.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

@

(Continued)

The Qiyuan Structured Contracts are governed by PRC
law. When a dispute arises under any of the Qiyuan
Structured Contracts, the relevant parties thereto shall
settle the dispute through negotiation in an amicable
manner. In case the dispute is not resolved, the parties
to the dispute may have to rely on legal remedies
under PRC law. The Qiyuan Structured Contracts
provide that dispute will be submitted to the Shenzhen
Arbitration Commission for arbitration. The decision of
such arbitration is final and binding on the parties to the
dispute.

Since the legal environment in the PRC is different from
that in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions, uncertainties
in the PRC legal system could limit the ability of WFOE
to enforce the Qiyuan Structured Contracts. There is no
assurance that such arbitration awards will be in favour
of WFOE and/or that there will not be any difficulties in
enforcing any arbitral awards granted, including specific
performance or injunctive relief and claiming damages
by WFOE. As WFOE may not be able to obtain sufficient
remedies in a timely manner, its ability to exert effective
control over its indirect 100% interest in Qiyuan and the
conduct of its business could be materially and adversely
affected, and may disrupt the business of WFOE and
have a material adverse impact on WFOE’s business,
prospects and results of operation.
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Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

©)

Potential conflicts of interest among WFOE and the
shareholders of Qiyuan may exist.

WFOE will rely on the Qiyuan Structured Contracts to
exercise control over and to draw economic benefits from
an indirect 100% interest in Qiyuan. WFOE may not be
able to provide sufficient incentives to the shareholders of
Qiyuan in order to encourage it to act in the best interests
of WFOE, other than stipulating the relevant obligations
in the Qiyuan Structured Contracts. the shareholders
of Qiyuan may breach the Qiyuan Structured Contracts
in the event of conflicts of interest or deterioration of its
relationship with WFOE, the results of which may have a
material adverse impact on WFOE’s business, prospects
and results of operation.

There can be no guarantee that if conflicts arise, the
shareholders of Qiyuan will act in the best interests of
WFOE or that the conflicts will be resolved in favour
of WFOE. If the shareholders of Qiyuan fail to perform
its respective obligations under the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts, WFOE may have to pursue legal proceedings
in reliance on legal remedies under PRC law, which
may be expensive, time-consuming and disruptive to
WFOE's operations and will be subject to uncertainties,
as discussed above.

*  For identification purpose only
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(4)

The Qiyuan Structured Contracts may be subject to the
scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may
be imposed.

The Qiyuan Structured Contracts may be subject to
scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax
may be imposed on WFOE. WFOE may face adverse
tax consequences if the PRC tax authorities determine
that the Qiyuan Structured Contracts were not entered
into based on arm’s length negotiations. If the PRC
tax authorities determine that the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts were not entered into on an arm’s length basis,
they might adjust the income and expenses of WFOE
for PRC tax purposes, which could result in higher tax
liabilities for WFOE.

The operation results of WFOE may be materially and
adversely affected if the tax liabilities of Qiyuan or its
shareholders or those of WFOE increase significantly or if
they are required to pay interest on late payments.
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EEHRE

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology 3.
Company Limited* (iR YIFEIE X TRIZFIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

The risks relating to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(6) WFOE'’s ability to acquire the entire equity interests
in Qiyuan may be subject to various limitations and
Substantial costs.

In case WFOE exercises its option to acquire all or part of
the equity interests of Qiyuan under the Exclusive Option
Agreement, the acquisition of the entire equity interests
in Qiyuan may only be conducted to the extent permitted
by and subject to necessary approvals and relevant
procedures under applicable PRC law. In addition,
the abovementioned acquisitions may be subject to a
minimum price limitation (such as an appraised value for
the entire equity interests in Qiyuan) or other limitations
as imposed by applicable PRC law. Further, a substantial
amount of other costs (if any), expenses and time may
be involved in transferring the ownership of Qiyuan,
which may have a material adverse impact on WFOE’s
businesses, prospects and results of operation.

Actions taken by the Group to mitigate the
risks

The Group incorporated and adopted relevant requirements
of industrial and regulatory policies to various management
guidelines and procedural guidelines, and performed timely
monitoring of new trends in the market and regulatory policies.
All information collected was summarized and communicated
to the relevant personnel forthwith. New trends and regulatory
policies were collected and risks were controlled vigorously.

*  For identification purpose only *
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

3.

Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia Technology
Company Limited* (GRIIFEFE X TR FIR
»a) (“Qiyuan”) (Continued)

Actions taken by the Group to mitigate the
risks (Continued)

In addition, the applicable laws and regulations are timely
reflected in the business activities and operations of our Group
through the implementation of process management in various
business areas.

To foster an enabling culture for risk management, the Group
compiled and prepared training courses for risk management,
helping with the dissemination of knowledge and keeping
abreast of the market development. The Group seeks and will
continue to seek legal or other specialist advice as appropriate
in order to effectively monitor the legal and regulatory risks.

Material changes to and the unwinding of the
Qiyuan Structured Contracts

There were no material changes to the Qiyuan Structured
Contracts and/or the circumstances under which they were
adopted, nor was there any unwinding of them or of a failure
to do the same due to the restrictions that led to their adoption
being removed.

For detailed information of the Qiyuan Structured Contracts,
please refer to the announcement issued by the Company on
21 April 2016.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4.

Shanghai Jifu

For the Year, Shanghai Jifu recorded revenue and a net profit
of RMB1,923,671,000 and RMB313,458,000, respectively (for
the year ended 31 December 2016: revenue and net profit
of RMB707,159,000 and RMB115,380,000 respectively). As
at 31 December 2017, the total assets and the net assets of
Shanghai Jifu were RMB688,015,000 and RMB295,297,000
respectively (as at 31 December 2016: total assets and
net liabilities were RMB489,125,000 and RMB18,161,000
respectively). Share of results of associates for the Year was
approximately RMB109,710,000 (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB40,400,000.

On 30 October 2015, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (as amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 24 February 2016) with Bonus Partners
Worldwide Limited and Essential Perfection Enterprise Limited,
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to acquire
a 100% equity interest in Genesis Business Holdings Limited
(“Genesis”) and indirectly a 35% equity interest in Shanghai
Jifu through structured contracts (the “Jifu Structured
Contracts”) for a total consideration of approximately RMB560
million, of which RMB160 million was satisfied in cash and
RMB400 million was satisfied by the issuance of 258,318,335
new Shares at HK$1.89 each (equivalent to RMB1.55 per
share). The acquisition was completed on 30 April 2016.

The principal business of Shanghai Jifu is providing mobile
payment service.

The existing shareholders of Shanghai Jifu include one
nominee shareholder, namely, Shenzhen Laimeiju Trade Co.,
Ltd.r ORI EREE HHER AR (‘Shenzhen Laimeiju’),
which holds 35% of its registered capital.

*  For identification purpose only
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4.

Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

On 19 February 2016, the Jifu Structured Contracts were
entered into between Shenzhen Laimeiju and its shareholders
and Shanghai Jirui Information Technology Co., Ltd
(“Shanghai Jirui”) to the effect that the financial results,
the entire economic benefits and risks attributable to a 35%
interest in the Shanghai Jifu shall flow to Genesis (through
Shanghai Jirui) and for Genesis to enjoy control over Shenzhen
Laimeiju, which is interested in 35% of the equity interest in
Shanghai Jifu.

Principal terms of the Jifu Structured
Contracts

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Jifu
Structured Contracts:

(1)  Exclusive Option Agreement

Shenzhen Laimeiju irrevocably agrees, to the extent
permitted under the laws of the PRC, to transfer to
Shanghai Jirui or any persons(s) designated by Shanghai
Jirui at any time all or part of its equity interests in
Shenzhen Laimeiju. Shanghai Jirui may exercise its rights
as stated in the paragraph above at any time at its sole
discretion as permitted under the laws of the PRC. The
exercise price of each of the rights under the paragraph
above shall be the nominal price, subject to other price
requirements (if any) as may be imposed or required by
relevant PRC governmental authorities or law, in any case
being the lowest possible price permissible. Ms. Huang
Juan and FINTHXEEREM AR A F (Shenzhen
Wenxin Xianshi Technology Co., Ltd.*) (“Shenzhen
Wenxin”) undertake that, among other things, they will
not () amend the articles of association of Shenzhen
Laimeiju; (ii) increase or decrease the registered capital
of Shenzhen Laimeiju; (i) transfer, mortgage or create
any security interest or third party rights in their equity
interests in Shenzhen Laimeiju; or (iv) approve any merger
or acquisition activities of Shenzhen Laimeiju without prior
written permission of Shanghai Jirui.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

Principal terms of the Jifu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

@

3

Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement
Shenzhen Laimeiju has agreed to engage Shanghai Jirui
on an exclusive basis to provide services in connection
with the business of Shenzhen Laimeiju, such as
business assistance, technical services, consulting
services etc. Shenzhen Laimeiju has further agreed not
to, and agreed to procure that its subsidiaries will not,
without Shanghai Jirui’s prior written consent participate,
be interested, engage, acquire or hold any business
which competes directly or indirectly with Shanghai Jirui
in the PRC (in each case whether as a shareholder,
partner, agent, employee or otherwise).

In exchange, Shenzhen Laimeiju will pay Shanghai Jirui
a service fee, on a yearly basis, equivalent to all of its
income and economic interests following deduction of
any necessary costs, expenses, taxation and mandatory
social insurance and housing funds etc., which are
determined by Shanghai Jirui.

Equity Pledge Agreement

Ms. Huang Juan and Shenzhen Wenxin have agreed to
pledge all equity interests in Shenzhen Laimeiju held by
them (including all present and future rights and benefits
derived from such equity interests and any additional
interests in Shenzhen Laimeiju acquired by them
subsequent to the date of the Equity Pledge Agreement)
to Shanghai Jirui, as continuing first priority collateral
security for the performance of all payment obligations
of Shenzhen Laimeiju (including but not limited to those
under the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement
as stated in paragraph (2) above and relevant interests,
costs and expenses).
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

Principal terms of the Jifu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(4)  Authorisation and Entrustment Agreement

Ms. Huang Juan and Shenzhen Wenxin, among other
things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertake to
authorise any person designated by Shanghai Jirui
(including but not limited to the members of the board
of directors of Shanghai Jirui and their respective
successors or liquidators) to exercise on their behalf all
shareholders’ rights under the articles of association
of Shenzhen Laimeiju and applicable PRC laws and
regulations, including but not limited to (i) to attend,
be counted for quorum and vote at shareholders
meetings, (i) to act as, appoint and/or replace Shenzhen
Laimeiju’s legal representative, chairman, executive
directors, supervisors, managing director and/or other
senior management, (i) to sign minutes of shareholders
meetings and resolutions and other documents to be
filed with relevant companies registrars, (iv) to represent
and exercise any voting powers and receive any

Report of the Directors
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distributions on their behalf in the event of Shenzhen ZX Mo
Laimeiju’s insolvency or winding up or similar events,
and (v) to file documents with the relevant companies

registrar.

Notes:

(i) On 26 June 2017, Ms. Huang Juan entered into an equity (i)
transfer agreement with Ms. Li Hong, pursuant to which
Ms. Huang Juan agreed to transfer the entire equity
interest (being 1% of the registered capital) in Shenzhen
Laimeiju held by her to Ms. Li Hong. The transfer was

completed on 29 June 2017.

(ii) On 26 June 2017, Ms. Huang Juan, Ms. Li Hong, (ii)

Shenzhen Wenxin, Shenzhen Laimeiju and Shanghai
Jirui entered into a supplemental agreement, pursuant
to which, among other things, () Ms. Huang Juan
agreed to assign and Ms. Li Hong agreed to accept
all the rights and obligations of Ms. Huang Juan under
the Jifu Structured Contracts; and (i) all parties to the
supplemental agreement agreed this arrangement.
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4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

Reasons for use of Jifu Structured Contracts

The use of the Jifu Structured Contracts is due to applicable
PRC law, which stipulates the value-added telecommunications
services of Shanghai Jifu and its subsidiaries (the “Shanghai
Jifu Group”) will be subject to certain restrictions on foreign
ownership, as well as qualification requirements for foreign
investors, which will be difficult for the Company to comply
with, as is more fully set out in sub-paragraph 1 under the
heading headed “The risks relating to the Jifu Structured
Contracts” below.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

The risks relating to the Jifu Structured
Contracts

(1)

There is no assurance that the Jifu Structured Contracts
could comply with future changes in the regulatory
requirements in the PRC and the PRC government may
determine that the Jifu Structured Contracts do not
comply with applicable regulations.

According to the Company’s PRC legal advisers, current
PRC laws and regulations place certain restrictions on
foreign ownership of companies that engage in the
Shanghai Jifu Group’s business. Specifically, foreign
ownership of value-added telecommunications services
providers, including Internet content providers, may
not exceed 50%. Shanghai Jifu’s principal business is
regarded as Internet content provision business. The MIIT
Circular provides that a domestic company that holds
an ICP licence is prohibited from leasing, transferring
or selling the licence to foreign investors in any form,
and from providing any assistance, including providing
resources, sites or facilities, to foreign investors to
provide ICP services illegally in the PRC. The Company is
a Cayman lIslands incorporated company and its indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary, Shanghai Jirui, may not itself
operate such business under current PRC law.

T
Huj
+

EEgHE

BT REEZRES KA E B
BEMEZRKEZE) A BT AIFEE
FENEREE RIS E B ZH

BARBZHEERBRRR REF
BOARMEARERE LENESREE
B2 AR ZINERBRERIES TIRS -
Higm s RESARGRER (B
ER@ARRHERE) 2IERBETA
H8iB50% - LRI E 2 X EE B R
REBREATRERS - TERBRAR
E o EARA EBRBARRMAE
RAETNFAEREZ A RINEIRE H &
FREME BREILEFAIE BT EN
EAEARIEREEETBEREAE
EREBEEEBRHER S Rk
FgM - ARBANF SRS EMKL
ZAE REREPEIEE HEE2
EMBAR EBRRAF A EEH
EESE

2017« mFRRREERsRAs 148



Report of the Directors
EEEHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

The risks relating to the Jifu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

Further, if a foreign-owned enterprise like the Company
applies for an ICP licence, as compared to domestic
enterprises in the PRC, it will be subject to more stringent
requirements or additional requirements imposed by the
MIIT or its local counterparts, such as prior experience in
operating value-added telecommunications businesses, a
proven track record of overseas business operations, the
identity of the ultimate individual shareholders. And there
is no clear guidance or interpretation on the assessment
criteria for the prior experience and track record by the
MIIT or its local counterparts. Lacking such quantitative
and qualitative guidance or interpretation in terms of
how those requirements can be satisfied, applicants
like the Company are therefore unable to follow such
requirements when applying for ICP to the MIT or
its local counterparts, and hence there would be a
prolonged process of application with unknown results if
it were to take a direct equity interest in the Shanghai Jifu
Group. Hence, there exists great difficulty and uncertainty
for the foreign-owned enterprise to conduct the Shanghai
Jiftu Group’s business in the PRC. Due to the lack of
clarity on how the above requirements can be satisfied,
an applicant like the Company will be unable to follow
such requirements when applying for an ICP licence to
the relevant PRC governmental authorities, and hence
there will be a prolonged process of application with
unknown results. Hence, there exists great difficulty and
uncertainty for the foreign-owned enterprises to apply
for an ICP licence from the relevant PRC governmental
authorities.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

The risks relating to the Jifu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

Separately, the Company understands from its PRC
legal advisers that the draft PRC Foreign Investment Law
would look through to the ‘actual control’ of a business
entity to determine whether it is controlled by foreign
investors and consequently prohibited under applicable
PRC law and regulations. “Actual control” would broadly
mean, whether directly or indirectly, having a 50% or
more interest in the relevant business entity’s voting
rights or equity interest, or having the power to exert
decisive influence over the entity’s operations, financial
matters or other key aspects of its business operations.

Under the revised structure, the Group would be
interested in, and exercise control over, only 35% of
the Shanghai Jifu Group (through Shenzhen Laimeiju).
The other shareholders of the Shanghai Jifu Group
are Chinese nationals or legal persons which hold the
remaining 65% equity interest in Shanghai Jifu and
thereby the Shanghai Jifu Group. Consequently, if the
draft PRC Foreign Investment Law were adopted in its
current form and the Jifu Structured Contracts were
subjected to ‘look through’, the Group would not be
in ‘actual control’ of the Shanghai Jifu Group. The Jifu
Structured Contracts would therefore comply with the
draft PRC Foreign Investment Law and applicable PRC
law and regulations.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

151

The risks relating to the Jifu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

Although to the Company’s knowledge there is no
indication that the Jifu Structured Contracts will be
interfered or objected by any PRC regulatory authorities,
the Company’s PRC legal advisers has advised there is
a possibility that the PRC Ministry of Commerce and/or
other competent authorities may have different opinions
on the interpretation of the relevant regulations and would
not agree that the Jifu Structured Contracts comply
with current PRC law, regulations or rules or those that
may be adopted in the future, and such authorities
may deny the validity, effectiveness and enforceability
of the Jifu Structured Contracts. In addition, due to a
lack of interpretative materials from the authorities, the
Group cannot be assured that the MIIT will not consider
the Shanghai Jifu Group’s corporate structure and
contractual arrangements upon Completion as a kind
of foreign investment in telecommunication services.
In such case the Shanghai Jifu Group may be found
in violation of the MIIT Circular and as a result may be
subject to various penalties, including fines and the
discontinuation of or restrictions on the Shanghai Jifu
Group’s operations.

If the authorities deny the validity, effectiveness and
enforceability of the Jifu Structured Contracts, it could
have a material adverse impact on Shanghai Jirui's
business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

The risks relating to the Jifu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

@

The Jifu Structured Contracts may not be as effective
in providing control over and entitlement to the 35%
economic interest in Shanghai Jifu as direct ownership.

The Jifu Structured Contracts may not be as effective in
providing Shanghai Jirui with control over and entitlement
to the economic interests in Shanghai Jifu as direct
ownership of a 35% interest in it. If Shanghai Jirui had
direct ownership of Shanghai Jifu, Shanghai Jirui would
be able to directly exercise its rights as a shareholder
to effect changes in the board of directors of Shanghai
Jifu. However, under the Jifu Structured Contracts,
Shanghai Jirui can only look to and rely on Shenzhen
Laimeiju to perform their contractual obligations under
the Jifu Structured Contracts in order for Shanghai Jirui
to effectively exercise its indirect 35% interest in Shanghai
Jifu. Shenzhen Laimeiju and its shareholders may not
act in the best interests of Shanghai Jirui and may not
perform its/their obligations under the Jifu Structured
Contracts. Shanghai Jirui may replace the Shenzhen
Laimeiju directors by its other nominees pursuant to the
Jifu Structured Contracts. However, if any dispute relating
to the Jifu Structured Contracts remains unresolved,
Shanghai Jirui will have to enforce its rights under the Jifu
Structured Contracts and seek to interpret the terms of
the Jifu Structured Contracts in accordance with PRC
law and will be subject to uncertainties in the PRC legal
system.
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Report of the Directors

EFTHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

The risks relating to the Jifu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

@

(Continued)

The Jifu Structured Contracts are governed by PRC law.
When a dispute arises under any of the Jifu Structured
Contracts, the relevant parties thereto shall settle the
dispute through negotiation in an amicable manner.
In case the dispute is not resolved, the parties to the
dispute may have to rely on legal remedies under PRC
law. The Jifu Structured Contracts provide that dispute
will be submitted to the Shanghai International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission for arbitration. The
decision of such arbitration is final and binding on the
parties to the dispute.

Since the legal environment in the PRC is different from
that in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions, uncertainties in
the PRC legal system could limit the ability of Shanghai
Jirui to enforce the Jifu Structured Contracts. There is no
assurance that such arbitration awards will be in favour of
Shanghai Jirui and/or that there will not be any difficulties
in enforcing any arbitral awards granted, including
specific performance or injunctive relief and claiming
damages by Shanghai Jirui. As Shanghai Jirui may not
be able to obtain sufficient remedies in a timely manner,
its ability to exert effective control over its indirect 35%
interest in Shanghai Jifu and the conduct of its business
could be materially and adversely affected, and may
disrupt the business of Shanghai Jirui and have a material
adverse impact on Shanghai Jirui’s business, prospects
and results of operation.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

The risks relating to the Jifu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

©)

Potential confiicts of interest among Shanghai Jirui and
Shenzhen Laimeijju may exist

Shanghai Jirui will rely on the Jifu Structured Contracts
to exercise control over and to draw economic benefits
from an indirect 35% interest in Shanghai Jifu. Shanghai
Jirui may not be able to provide sufficient incentives
to Shenzhen Laimeiju in order to encourage it to act
in the best interests of Shanghai Jirui,
stipulating the relevant obligations in the Jifu Structured
Contracts. Shenzhen Laimeiju may breach the Jifu
Structured Contracts in the event of conflicts of interest
or deterioration of its relationship with Shanghai Jirui,

other than

the results of which may have a material adverse impact
on Shanghai Jirui’s business, prospects and results of
operation.

There can be no guarantee that if conflicts arise,
Shenzhen Laimeiju will act in the best interests of
Shanghai Jirui or that the conflicts will be resolved
in favour of Shanghai Jirui. If Shenzhen Laimeiju fails
to perform its respective obligations under the Jifu
Structured Contracts, Shanghai Jirui may have to pursue
legal proceedings in reliance on legal remedies under
PRC law, which may be expensive, time-consuming
and disruptive to Shanghai Jirui’s operations and will be
subject to uncertainties, as discussed above.
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Report of the Directors

EFTHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

The risks relating to the Jifu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(4)
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The Jifu Structured Contracts may be subject to the
scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may
be imposed

The Jifu Structured Contracts may be subject to scrutiny
of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may be
imposed on Shanghai Jirui. Shanghai Jirui may face
adverse tax consequences if the PRC tax authorities
determine that the Jifu Structured Contracts were not
entered into based on arm’s length negotiations. If the
PRC tax authorities determine that the Jifu Structured
Contracts were not entered into on an arm’s length basis,
they may adjust the income and expenses of Shanghai
Jirui for PRC tax purposes, which could result in higher
tax liabilities for Shanghai Jirui.

The operation results of Shanghai Jirui may be materially
and adversely affected if the tax liabilities of Shanghai Jifu
or Shenzhen Laimeiju or those of Shanghai Jirui increase
significantly or if they are required to pay interest on late
payments.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4. Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

The risks relating to the Jifu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

)

Shanghai Jirui’s ability to acquire the entire equity
interests in Shenzhen Laimeijju may be subject to various
limitations and substantial costs

In case Shanghai Jirui exercises its option to acquire all
or part of the equity interests of Shenzhen Laimeiju under
the Exclusive Option Agreement, the acquisition of the
entire equity interests in Shenzhen Laimeiju may only
be conducted to the extent permitted by and subject
to necessary approvals and relevant procedures under
applicable PRC law. In addition, the abovementioned
acquisitions may be subject to a minimum price limitation
(such as an appraised value for the entire equity interests
in Shenzhen Laimeiju) or other limitations as imposed
by applicable PRC law. Further, a substantial amount of
other costs (if any), expenses and time may be involved
in transferring the ownership of Shenzhen Laimeiju, which
may have a material adverse impact on Shanghai Jirui’s
businesses, prospects and results of operation.

Actions taken by the Group to mitigate the
risks

The Group incorporated and adopted relevant requirements
of industrial and regulatory policies to various management
guidelines and procedural guidelines, and performed timely
monitoring of new trends in the market and regulatory policies.
All'information collected was summarized and communicated
to the relevant personnel forthwith. New trends and regulatory
policies were collected and risks were controlled vigorously.
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Report of the Directors

EFTHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

4.

Shanghai Jifu (Continued)

Actions taken by the Group to mitigate the
risks (Continued)

In addition, the applicable laws and regulations are timely
reflected in the business activities and operations of our Group
through the implementation of process management in various
business areas.

To foster an enabling culture for risk management, the Group
compiled and prepared training courses for risk management,
helping with the dissemination of knowledge and keeping
abreast of the market development. The Group seeks and will
continue to seek legal or other specialist advice as appropriate
in order to effectively monitor the legal and regulatory risks.

Material changes to and the unwinding of the
Jifu Structured Contracts

There were no material changes to the Jifu Structured
Contracts and/or the circumstances under which they were
adopted, nor was there any unwinding of them or of a failure
to do the same due to the restrictions that led to their adoption
being removed.

For detailed information relating to the Jifu Structured
Contracts, please refer to the circular issued by the Company
on 7 April 2016.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5.

Leyu

For the Year, Leyu recorded revenue and a net profit of
RMB3,208,090,000 and RMB517,303,000, respectively (for
the year ended 31 December 2016: revenue and net profit of
RMB121,045,000 and RMB28,772,000 respectively). As at 31
December 2017, the total assets and the net assets of Leyu
were RMB2,030,483,000 and RMB503,050,000 respectively
(as at 31 December 2016: total assets and net liabilities were
RMB289,269,000 and RMB14,252,000 respectively).

On 31 October 2016, Marvel Paradise Group Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition
agreement to acquire a 48% equity interest in Leyu which
includes It RERUM G AR EFE AR (Beijing Weshare
Software Technology Limited*), (the “Beijing WFOE”) through
structured contracts (the “Leyu Structured Contracts”) at
a total consideration of RMB800 million, of which RMB320.0
million was satisfied in cash and the remaining RMB480 million
was satisfied by the issuance of 714,147,470 new Shares at
HK$0.7681 each (equivalent to RMBO0.6548 per Share). On
24 November 2016 and 14 December 2016, the Company
allotted and issued 541,251,368 Shares and 172,896,102
Shares to the sellers respectively. However, the completion
of the transaction should be subject to the terms of the
acquisition agreement signed between the sellers and the
Company. The transaction was completed on 14 December
2016. Leyu and its subsidiaries and consolidated affiliated
entities are principally online consumer finance marketplaces,
connecting investors and individual borrowers from a variety of
channels to facilitate loans through mobile applications.

The existing shareholders of Leyu include one nominee
shareholder which holds 48% of its registered capital.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5.

Leyu (Continued)

Principal terms of the Leyu Structured
Contracts

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Leyu
Structured Contracts:

(1)

@)

Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreements

The Beijing WFOE shall provide the OPCOs (the
“OPCOs’) (i.e. It RERBHI AR A Al (Beiing Weshare
Technology Limited*) (“Weshare Technology”) and
TRERUEEEERBR AT (Beijing Weshare
Wealth Management Limited*) (“Weshare Wealth”)),
with exclusive technical services, business advisory,
including, among others, computer software technology
development, technical consulting and business
management consulting. The Beijing WFOE shall issue
bills on a quarterly basis to the OPCOs in accordance
with an agreed price, adjusted depending on the
workload and commercial value of its services provided
to the OPCOs. The OPCOs shall pay the consulting
service fees to the Beijing WFOE accordingly.

Exclusive Option Agreements

The shareholders of the OPCOs (the “OPCO
Shareholders”) irrevocably and unconditionally grant
exclusive share options to the Beijing WFOE that
entitles the Beijing WFOE to require each of the OPCO
Shareholders to transfer, to the extent permitted by
the PRC laws, all or part of OPCO Shareholders’
equity interests in the OPCOs to the Beijing WFOE or
any person(s) designated by the Beijing WFOE at the
minimum consideration permitted by the PRC laws.
Pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreements, the OPCO
Shareholders shall not, among other things, (i) transfer
any of their equity interests in the OPCOs nor create any
pledge or any other security unless in the ordinary and
usual course of business and with prior written consent
from the Beijing WFOE, or (i) alter the registered capital of
the OPCOs or approve the distribution of dividends to the
OPCO Shareholders without prior written consent from
the Beijing WFOE.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5. Leyu (Continued)

Principal terms of the Leyu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

3

“)

Equity Pledge Agreements

The OPCO Shareholders agree to pledge all of their
equity interests in the OPCOs, equivalent to all the equity
interests in the OPCOs, to the Beijing WFOE to secure
the performance of all the contractual obligations and the
payment of guaranteed debts of the OPCO Shareholders
and the OPCOs under the Leyu Structured Contracts.
Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreements, absent
prior written consent from the Beijing WFOE, the OPCO
Shareholders shall not, among other things, (i) transfer
any of their equity interests in the OPCOs nor create any
new pledge or any other security thereon, or (i) transfer
any of their rights or obligations under the Exclusive
Business Cooperation Agreements and the Equity Pledge
Agreements to any third parties.

Powers of Attorney

Each OPCO Shareholder irrevocably authorises the
Beijing WFOE, or any person(s) designated by the Beijing
WFOE, to exercise on its or his behalf all of its or his
rights and powers as a OPCO Shareholder, including,
among other things, (i) acting as the agent of the OPCO
Shareholder to attend the shareholders’ meetings of
the OPCOs, (i) representing the OPCO Shareholder
and exercising the voting rights on matters requiring
discussion and approval at shareholders’ meetings of the
OPCOs, or (iii) proposing to appoint or remove directors
and other members of senior management.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5.

161

Leyu (Continued)

Principal terms of the Leyu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

(5) Spousal Consent Letter

The spouse of Mr. Zhang Jinghua unconditionally and
irrevocably, among other things, (i) acknowledges that all
the equity interests in the OPCOs registered under the
name of the OPCO Shareholders (as applicable) do not
form part of their matrimonial property, (i) undertakes
that she will not claim any remedy in respect of the
equity interests in the OPCOs obtained under the Leyu
Structured Contracts, and (i) undertakes that she will
not participate in the operation and management of the
OPCOs.

Reasons for use of the Leyu Structured
Contracts

The PRC State Council issued the Administrative Measures on
Internet Information Services (the “lIS Measures”) to regulate
the provision of internet information services. Under the IIS
Measures, commercial internal information service providers
must obtain the requisite content provider licence (the “ICP
Licence”) from the relevant authorities before engaging in the
provision of commercial internet information services in the
PRC.

The business that Leyu Group is engaged in falls under the
category of “value-added telecommunications services” in
the PRC and is regarded as a “restricted” business according
to the Foreign Investment Industries Guidance of the PRC
(Amended in 2015), promulgated by the Ministry of Commerce
and the National Development and Reform Commission of the
PRC.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5.

Leyu (Continued)

Reasons for use of the Leyu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

According to the Regulations on the Administration of
Foreign-invested Telecommunication Enterprises ( 4h &% &
EERFEEENHT) (the “FITE Regulations”), which were
promulgated by the PRC State Council on 11 December
2001 and amended on 10 September 2008, () the ratio of
investment by a foreign investor in a company providing
value-added telecommunications services shall not exceed
50% and (ii) a foreign investor who invests in a value-
added telecommunications services company shall have
a good track record and experience in providing value-
added telecommunications business (the “Qualification
Requirement”) in the PRC. Currently, no clear guidance as to
the interpretation of the Qualification Requirement has been
issued.

The MIIT Circular reiterates the regulations on foreign
investment in telecommunications business. Under the MIIT
Circular, a foreign investor who wishes to conduct any value-
added telecommunications business in the PRC must first set
up a foreign-invested enterprise and obtain an ICP License.
The MIIT Circular further provides that a domestic company
holding an ICP License is prohibited from leasing, transferring
or selling the license to foreign investors in any form, and
providing any assistance to foreign investors for illegal
operation of telecommunications business in the PRC.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5.

Leyu (Continued)

Reasons for use of the Leyu Structured
Contracts (Continued)

In light of the above legal restrictions, the Group cannot hold
any direct interest in the consolidated affiliated entities (the
“CAEs”) in Leyu Group (namely, Weshare Technology and
Weshare Wealth), which hold or will hold licenses and permits
required for their business operations. In order to comply
with PRC laws and regulations while allowing the Group to
operate the businesses of the CAEs, Beijing WFOE will enter
into certain Leyu Structured Contracts whereby Beijing WFOE
will acquire effective control over the financial and operational
policies of the CAEs and will become entitled to all economic
benefits derived from their operations.

The risks and limitations relating to the Leyu
Structured Contracts

(1) Economic risks and loss sharing

None of the agreements constituting the Leyu Structured
Contracts provide that the Company or Beiing WFOE
is obligated to share the losses of the CAEs or provide
financial support to the CAEs. Under PRC laws and
regulations, the Company or Beijing WFOE, as the
primary beneficiary of the OPCOs, is not required to
share the losses of the OPCOs or provide financial
support to the same. Moreover, as limited liability
companies, the OPCOs are solely liable for their own
debts and losses.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5. Leyu (Continued)

The risks and limitations relating to the Leyu
Structured Contracts (Continued)

(1)

Economic risks and loss sharing (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, given that the Group will conduct
business in the PRC through the OPCOs and their
financial condition and results of operations will be
consolidated into the Company’s combined financial
statements and results of operations under the applicable
accounting principles, the Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations would be
adversely affected if the CAEs suffer losses. Therefore,
the provisions in the Leyu Structured Contracts are
tailored so as to limit, to the greatest extent possible,
the potential adverse effect on Beijing WFOE and the
Company resulting from any loss suffered by the CAEs.

For instance, as provided in the Leyu Structured
Contracts, none of the assets of the CAEs are to be sold,
transferred or otherwise disposed of without the written
consent of Beijing WFOE. In addition, under the Leyu
Structured Contracts, none of the OPCO Shareholders
may transfer or permit the encumbrance of or allow any
guarantee or security to be created on any of his or her
equity interests in the OPCOs without the Company’s
prior written consent.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5. Leyu (Continued)

The risks and limitations relating to the Leyu
Structured Contracts (Continued)

(1)

@

Economic risks and loss sharing (Continued)

In addition, under the Leyu Structured Contracts,
without the prior written consent of Beiing WFOE, the
CAEs shall not change or remove the members of the
boards of directors who are appointed by Beijing WFOE
in accordance with the memorandum and articles of
association of each of the CAEs. Beijing WFOE also has
the right to appoint the financial controllers and other
senior managers of the CAEs. Beijing WFOE has absolute
control over the distribution of dividends or any other
amounts to the shareholders of the CAEs as the CAEs
and their shareholders have undertaken not to make any
distribution without the prior written consent of Beijing
WFOE. Beijing WFOE also has the right to periodically
receive or inspect the accounts of CAEs and the
financial results of the CAEs can be consolidated into the
Group’s financial information as if the were the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Limitations in exercising the option to acquire
ownership in the OPCOs

As foreign direct investment in value added
telecommunications services is governed by the FITE
Regulations, the Group will take steps to gradually
build up its overseas business record and experience,
for example by cooperating with other pioneering and
innovative internet finance companies in overseas market
and introducing them to China. Nonetheless, given the
lack of guidelines in this unclear area of the law, there is
no guarantee that the steps to be taken will be sufficient
to enable to Company to ultimately acquire direct
beneficial ownerships in the OPCOs.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5. Leyu (Continued)

The risks and limitations relating to the Leyu
Structured Contracts (Continued)

@

3

Limitations in exercising the option to acquire
ownership in the OPCQOs (Continued)

The exercise of the option to acquire the ownership of
the OPCOs may be subject to substantial costs. Under
the Exclusive Option Agreements (being part of the
Leyu Structured Contracts), Beijing WFOE has the sole
discretion to require the OPCO Shareholders to transfer
their equity interests in the OPCOs to Beijing WFOE
at the lower of (i) the amount of the registered capital
contributed by the shareholders in accordance with their
respective percentage of equity interest in the OPCOs
and (i) the lowest price permitted under the PRC laws.
The relevant PRC authorities may require Beijing WFOE
to pay a substantial amount of enterprise income tax for
the income from the ownership transfer if the purchase
price is set below the market value.

The PRC government may determine that Leyu
Structured Contracts are not in compliance with any
existing or future applicable PRC laws or regulations.

The PRC government may determine that the Leyu
Structured Contracts do not comply with the applicable
laws and regulations of the PRC. Although the PRC
legal advisers of Leyu Group are of the view that the
Leyu Structured Contracts are not in violation of the
relevant PRC laws and regulations, uncertainties still exist
regarding the interpretation and application of the PRC
laws and regulations especially in the area of value-added
telecommunications business. For instance, the PRC
regulatory authorities may issue further guidelines that
impose stricter foreign ownership requirements in that
area of business. Given the uncertain legal and business
environment in the PRC, it is difficult to foresee whether
the PRC regulatory authorities will take the same view
regarding the Leyu Structured Contracts as the PRC legal
advisers in the future.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5. Leyu (Continued)

The risks and limitations relating to the Leyu
Structured Contracts (Continued)

(4)

Beijing WFOE relies on the Leyu Structured Contracts
to control and obtain the economic benefits from the
OPCOs, which may not be as effective in providing
operational control as direct ownership.

The Leyu Structured Contracts may not provide control
as effective as direct ownership. Under the Leyu
Structured Contracts, the Group will operate its value-
added telecommunication services business through the
CAEs. The Company will have to rely on WOFE’s rights
under the Leyu Structured Contracts to effect changes in
the management of the OPCOs and make an impact on
its business decision making, as opposed to exercising
its rights directly as a shareholder. If the OPCOs or their
shareholders refuse to cooperate, the Company will face
difficulties in effecting control over the OPCOs’ operation
of business through the Leyu Structured Contracts,
which may adversely affect the Company’s business
efficiency.

The OPCO Shareholders may potentially have a conflict
of interests with the Group.

The OPCO Shareholders may have potential conflicts of
interest with the Company. Although there are provisions
under the Exclusive Option Agreements to prevent
those situations, conflicts of interest may still arise when
the interest of the OPCO Shareholders does not align
with that of the Company, and the OPCO Shareholders
may breach or cause the OPCOs to breach the Leyu
Structured Contracts. If the Company fails to resolve this
internally, it may have to resort to dispute resolution. If
ultimately the shareholder(s) has/have to be removed,
it will be difficult for the Company to maintain investors’
confidence in Leyu Structured Contracts.
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Report of the Directors

STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5. Leyu (Continued)

The risks and limitations relating to the Leyu
Structured Contracts (Continued)

©)

The contractual arrangements may be subject to
scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and transfer pricing
adjustments and additional tax may be imposed.

The Leyu Structured Contracts may be subject to
scrutiny by the tax authorities and additional tax may
be imposed. Under the Leyu Structured Contracts,
each of the OPCOs are required to pay Beijing WFOE a
service fee for the services rendered by Beijing WFOE.
Such service fee payments between related parties
may be subject to scrutiny or challenge by the PRC tax
authorities within ten years after the taxable year when
such transactions are conducted.

The Company does not have any insurance which covers
the risks relating to the Leyu Structured Contracts and
the transactions contemplated thereunder.

The insurance of the Group does not cover the risks
relating to the Leyu Structured Contracts and the
transactions contemplated thereunder and the Company
has no intention to purchase any new insurance in
this regard. If any risk arises from the Leyu Structured
Contracts in the future, such as those affecting the
enforceability of the Leyu Structured Contracts and the
relevant agreements for the transactions contemplated
thereunder and the operation of the OPCOs, the results
of the Group may be adversely affected. However, the
Group will monitor the relevant legal and operational
environment from time to time to comply with the
applicable laws and regulations. In addition, the Group
will implement relevant internal control measures to
reduce the operational risk.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS (continued)

5.

Leyu (Continued)

Actions taken by the Group to mitigate the
risks

The Group incorporated and adopted relevant requirements
of industrial and regulatory policies to various management
guidelines and procedural guidelines, and performed timely
monitoring of new trends in the market and regulatory policies.
All'information collected was summarized and communicated
to the relevant personnel forthwith. New trends and regulatory
policies were collected and risks were controlled vigorously.

In addition, the applicable laws and regulations are timely
reflected in the business activities and operations of our Group
through the implementation of process management in various
business areas.

To foster an enabling culture for risk management, the Group
compiled and prepared training courses for risk management,
helping with the dissemination of knowledge and keeping
abreast of the market development. The Group seeks and will
continue to seek legal or other specialist advice as appropriate
in order to effectively monitor the legal and regulatory risks.

Material changes to and the unwinding of the
Leyu Structured Contracts

There were no material changes to the Leyu Structured
Contracts and/or the circumstances under which they were
adopted, nor was there any unwinding of them or of a failure
to do the same due to the restrictions that led to their adoption
being removed.

For detailed information relating to the Leyu Structured
Contracts. please refer to the announcement issued by the
Company on 31 October 2016.
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Report of the Directors

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions which are subject to the reporting, annual review,

announcement and independent shareholders’ approval under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

1. Sub-tenancy Agreements and Beijing
Tenancy Agreements

(i

Sub-tenancy Agreements

On 23 October 2014, the Company as sub-lessee
entered into a sub-tenancy agreement with UCF
Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as “China UCF
Group Co., Limited”) (“UCF Holdings”) as sub-lessor
in respect of the sub-tenancy of an office premises in
Hong Kong (the “Office Premises”) at a monthly rent of
HK$471,360 for the period commencing on 25 October
2014 and ending on 31 December 2016 (the “Previous
Sub-tenancy Agreement”).

(@

On 25 January 2017, the Company as sub-
lessee entered into a sub-tenancy agreement
with UCF Holdings as sub-lessor in respect of the
renewal of the Previous Sub-tenancy Agreement
in respect of the Office Premises at a monthly
rent of HK$471,360 (inclusive of government
rates, government rent, air-conditioning fees and
management fees) for the period commenced on
1 January 2017 and ended on 31 December 2017
(the “2017 Sub-tenancy Agreement”’). Details
of the transactions under the 2017 Sub-tenancy
Agreement were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 25 January 2017.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED A E#EHEREL S (@)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

1.

171

Sub-tenancy Agreements and Beijing
Tenancy Agreements (Continued)

(i) Sub-tenancy Agreements (Continued)

(b)

On 15 December 2017, the Company as sub-
lessee entered into a new sub-tenancy agreement
with UCF Holdings as sub-lessor in respect of the
renewal of the sub-tenancy of an office premises
at a monthly rent of HK$471,360 (inclusive of
government rates, air-conditioning fees and
management fees) for the period commenced on
1 January 2018 and ending on 31 December 2018
(the “2018 Sub-tenancy Agreement”). Details
of the transactions under the 2018 Sub-tenancy
Agreement were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 15 December 2017.

(i) Beijing Tenancy Agreements

@)

CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2017

On 25 January 2017, UCF Pay, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) as lessee
entered into a tenancy agreement (the “Beijing
Tenancy Agreement 1") with It REEEEE XS
[R 2 7] (Beijing Xiaoyun Huayuan Real Estate Co.,
Ltd.*) (“Beijing Xiaoyun”) as lessor in respect of
the lease of an office premises in Beijing at a rental
of RMB11.56 per day per square meter (inclusive
of operation fees and property fees) for the period
commenced on 1 January 2017 and ended on 31
December 2017.

On 1 August 2016, It REFE =& 15 2 KTk
AR AT (‘Beijing Yifang Yidai’, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as lessee
entered into a tenancy agreement (the “Beijing
Tenancy Agreement 2”) with Beijing Xiaoyun as
lessor in respect of the lease of an office premises
in Beijing at a rental of RMB11.56 per day per
square meter (inclusive of operation fees and
property fees) for the period commenced on 1
August 2016 and ended on 31 December 2017.
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EEgHE

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED A E#EHEREL S (@)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

1.

Sub-tenancy Agreements and Beijing
Tenancy Agreements (Continued)

(i) Beijing Tenancy Agreements (Continued)

© On 25 January 2017, FINEEEEE BBl
fR#% B R A A (“Shenzhen Yifang Yidai’, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
as lessee entered into a tenancy agreement (the
“Beijing Tenancy Agreement 3") with Beijing
Xiaoyun as lessor in respect of the lease of an office
premises in Beijing at a rental of RMB11.56 per
day per square meter (inclusive of operation fees
and property fees) for the period commenced on 1
January 2017 and ended on 31 December 2017.

Details of the transactions under the Beijing Tenancy
Agreement 1, Beijing Tenancy Agreement 2 and Beijing
Tenancy Agreement 3 (collectively, the “Beijing Tenancy
Agreements”) were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 25 January 2017.

Mr. Zhang Zhenxin (“Mr. Zhang”) is a Director and substantial
shareholder of the Company. Beijing Xiaoyun is indirectly
controlled more than 30% by Mr. Zhang. UCF Holdings and
Beijing Xiaoyun are close associates of Mr. Zhang and hence
connected persons of the Company. The transactions under
the 2017 Sub-tenancy Agreement, the 2018 Sub-tenancy
Agreement and the Beijing Tenancy Agreements respectively
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.

1.
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EFTHE

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED A EHEHFEFEXF (@)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

2. Annual Caps 2. FELR
The maximum aggregate annual consideration for the aforesaid BEZ—R"ERZT—tF+-A=1t—
continuing connected transactions for the financial years ended AIEFRFE  BiHBHER S 2 REF
31 December 2016 and 2017 and the actual amounts of such EREBAEBERNAFEEEAR I ER S
transactions during the year are as follows: LU
Caps For The Year Ended
31 December
BE+ZA=1+—-H Approximate
LEEER Actual Amounts
Continuing connected transactions of the During The Year
Company 2016 2017 2018 KEE
ANABERERS ZE-1F —5—-tf ZE-\E  ZBHEREE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTT ARETFT ARBTT AREFTT

(i) With UCF Holdings as sub-lessor
() HErgmk(ERHPHEA)

(@) 2017 Sub-tenancy Agreements (HK$'000) 5,656 5,656 - 5,656
“E-tE5HBE (TET)

T =

b) 2018 Sub-tenancy Agreements (HK$'000) - - 5,656 -
b ZE-NFELHHE (FET)

(i) With Beijing Xiaoyun as lessor
i) HEERBE(ERLEA)

=

Beijing Tenancy Agreement 1 - 5,056 - 1,638
R E R

T =

Beijing Tenancy Agreement 2 - 428 - 112
R E w2

s =

Beijing Tenancy Agreement 3 - 2,126 - 7
R EHES

=)
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EEgHE

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED A E#EHEREL S (@)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Review by INEDs and Auditors

The INEDs have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that:

in respect of the 2017 Sub-tenancy Agreement, the
2018 Sub-tenancy Agreement and the Beijing Tenancy
Agreements respectively, the transactions carried out
during the year have been entered into (a) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on
normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on
normal commercial terms, on terms no less favorable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The independent auditors of the Company have performed
procedures on the above continuing connected transactions of
the Company and issued a letter to the Board of the Company
to confirm that:

i)

the above continuing connected transactions have been
approved by the Board of the Company;

for transactions involving the provisions of goods
or services by the Group, they have found that the
transactions were, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

they have found that the transactions were entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

the continuing connected transactions have not
exceeded their respective caps.
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EFTHE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no connected transactions between the Group and its
associates during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save for the transactions disclosed under the sections headed
“Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions” and “Connected
Transactions” above, details of the related party transactions entered
into by the Group during the Year are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements, which do not constitute notifiable
connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its Shares listed and traded on
the Stock Exchange, nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries
purchase or sell any of such Shares during the Year, save as
disclosed in the section headed “Issue of Equity Securities” of this
report above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Group were entered into or in existence during
the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and considers all the INEDs to be independent.
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Report of the Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all the
applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules and all the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules during the
Year, except for the following:

Following the resignation of Mr. Wang Wei as an INED on 1 April
2017, the Company did not have sufficient INEDs representing at
least one-third of the Board under Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing
Rules. In compliance with Rule 5.06 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company appointed Dr. Wang Songai as an INED on 27 June 2017
and has fulfilled the aforesaid requirements of Rule 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Upon the appointment of Mr. Yang Jianhui as an ED on 8 November
2017, the Company did not have sufficient INEDs representing at
least one-third of the Board under Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing
Rules. Immediately after the resignation of Mr. Wong Sai Hung as a
NED on 5 February 2018, the Company has fulfilled the aforesaid
requirements of Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. Due to other engagements, certain NEDs
were unable to attend the 2017 AGM and an INED and certain NEDs
were unable to attend the EGM held on 27 July 2017. To mitigate the
above, future general meetings would be scheduled earlier to avoid
timetable clashes.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires the Chairman to
attend the AGMs. Due to other business commitments which must
be attended by Mr. Li Mingshan, he was not able to attend the 2017
AGM held on 9 May 2017. Mr. Phang Yew Kiat, the Vice-Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer, acted as the chairman thereof to
ensure an effective communication with the Shareholders. To mitigate
the above, the 2018 AGM has been scheduled earlier to avoid the
timetable clashes.

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 52 to 79 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued Shares was held by the public throughout the Year and
thereafter up to the date of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above as well as
the 7% Convertible Bonds A, the 7% Convertible Bonds B, the US$
Convertible Bonds and the 6% Convertible Bonds, the particulars of
which are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements,
no equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or (i) require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
were entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.

REVIEW OF THE FINAL RESULTS BY
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Ge Ming
(chairman), Dr. Ou Minggang, Dr. Wang Songgi and Dr. Yin Zhongli,
all of them being INEDs.

The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the Year
and this annual report have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Board is of the opinion that such financial information has been
prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting standards,
the requirements under the GEM Listing Rules and any other
applicable legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have
been made.
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME, CHANGE
OF STOCK SHORT NAMES, COMPANY
LOGO AND COMPANY WEBSITE

Subsequent to the passing of a special resolution in relation to the
change of the English name of the Company from “Credit China
FinTech Holdings Limited” to “Chong Sing Holdings FinTech Group
Limited” and its dual foreign name in Chinese from “f1 Bl {& & &l
ZRARAR to “PIIEREIEEEFR AR (the “Change of
Company Name”) by the shareholders at the EGM held on 27 July
2017, a Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name was issued
by the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands certifying that
the Change of Company Name took effect on 27 July 2017.

The stock short names for trading in the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange was changed from “CREDIT CHINA” to
“CHONGSING HLDGS” in English and from ‘R E{Z&” to “FR#1%
f%” in Chinese with effect from 29 August 2017. The stock code of
the Company remains unchanged.

EEgHE

B R EE ROEHE 2FRE
Fb & A B A h

NBBEAR QA2 HXHBA [Credit China
FinTech Holdings Limited ] ¥ 2 % [Chong Sing
Holdings FinTech Group Limited | X £ /1 3 & & 5|
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E—tFHA-TEEBRTZREFIARE L&
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HLDGS ] ' M X RO @ AR [PEEE] Eik
BIREFER] A - E—+FENA-tHLEREE
e RNRNR 2RO RIRMERFTE -

with effect from 24 August 2017.

The website of the Company was changed from
“nttp://www.creditchina.hk” to “http://www.csfgroup.com” with effect
from 24 August 2017.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 24 August 2017
for further details.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events after the year end date of 31 December 2017.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have
been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING”),
which will retire at the 2018 AGM. The Board has taken the Audit
Committee’s recommendation that a resolution to re-appoint
SHINEWING as the Independent Auditor will be proposed at the
2018 AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Phang Yew Kiat
Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

THE SCOPE, MATERIALITY, AND
REPORTING PERIOD OF THIS REPORT

This report is to outline the performances on environmental, social
and governance aspects of the Group (‘ESG Report”). This ESG
Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) under Appendix 20
to the GEM Listing Rules and the provisions of “comply or explain”
set out therein.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG report covers the Group’s overall
performance, risks, strategies, measures and commitment in terms
of quality of workplace environment, environmental protection,
operating practice and community involvement for the business
operations in Hong Kong and China during the reporting period for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (“Reporting Period”).

During the Reporting Period, the Group was principally engaged
in two main areas: (i) fintech business (e.g. online investment and
technology enabling lending service and third-party payment service);
and (i) traditional loan financing business (e.g. entrusted loan, pawn
loan and other loan secured with assets or guarantees). These
operations were principally taken place in Mainland China. The Hong
Kong office is mainly responsible for the relevant compliance issues
in relation to listing on the GEM. Therefore, after conducting the
materiality testing, the Group decided to include all levels of major
subsidiaries which engage in the above businesses in Mainland
China and the office in Hong Kong. All information is from the official
documents or statistic reports of the Group.

Information about corporate governance structure of the Group
and other relevant information, please refer to page 52 to 79 of this
annual report.
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B HERERBRE

MISSION AND VISION OF THE GROUP

The Group was listed on the GEM in November 2010 and has
become a leading Fintech group with a focus on providing 24x7
online financial services to SMEs, merchants and individuals in China
and Asia through internet and mobile solutions.

We believe that our ecosystem, which offers services that touch
many aspects of people’s daily lives — from investment, loans, bill
payments and e-wallet services, to other service bookings — is having
an impact beyond the world of financial services. We are committed
to financial inclusion by making all of our service offerings available to
all segments of society, and in the process transforming the world for
the better.

As a responsible fintech service company, the Group understands
the rationale of keeping business, environment and society grow
together.
Company, at the same time of promoting business growth, the
Group has to strike a fine balance among the interests of investors
and shareholders, clients, employees, business partners, and other
stakeholders in society.

In order to realise sustainable development of the

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL
ASPECT

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We are mindful of the impact of our business operations on the
environment. Therefore, we are committed to enhancing our
environmental control through the inclusion of environmental
considerations raising the environmental awareness amongst our
employees. The Group has formulated series of environmental
rules and requires its employees to strictly complies with them. The
Group’s internal environmental policies and measures align with
industry standards.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of non-
compliance with local relevant environmental laws and regulations
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
that have a significant impact on the Group, and therefore no
penalties was imposed on the Group during the Reporting Period.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL
ASPECT (Continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

1.

Management of Emission

The Group is principally engaged in fintech services and
traditional loan financing services whereas its nature does not
involve any direct production procedure and therefore there
is no direct emission of exhaust gas and greenhouse gas,
discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste, etc. However, we still strive to better
utilize resources and minimise the adverse impact and indirect
carbon emission of our businesses on the environment through
enhancing operational efficiency and implementing eco-friendly
measures.

Use of Resources

During the Reporting Period, the Group implemented the
following measures on energy saving and environmental
protection in our daily operations:

- Promoting registration system of office supplies;
conducting regular check on consumption and proper
management of purchase, distribution and storage of
office supplies to reduce unnecessary waste;

- Encouraging conservation of electricity power by using
natural sunlight, adjusting the indoor lighting and ensuring
all lights to be switched off after work;

- Limiting use of air conditioning and lighting in offices of
some subsidiaries of our Company in accordance with
the regulations of the relevant management agencies of
the commercial buildings where the offices are located in
order to reduce power consumption;
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RIE-HEREGRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL
ASPECT (Continued)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Continued)

2.

1 83 CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Use of Resources (Continued)

- Promoting the use of telephone and video conference
system across a number of offices to reduce the need
of airplane travel by management and the corresponding
carbon emissions;

- Adopting paper separation, limiting staff from using
printers for non-work related purposes, reusing paper,
encouraging use of emails for document circulation and
use of computer and tablets so as to reduce; and

- Installing LED lighting system to reduce power
consumption.

Environment and Natural Resources

We strive to reduce office waste, in particular the electronic
solid waste. In general, we purchase electronic equipment
which passed the national inspection standards. We also try
our best to upgrade older computers with lower utilisation to
extend their lifespan. Electronic products which do not meet
our standard for office use will be resold or donated.

Our officers of various offices oversee the implementation
of the above initiatives from time to time to ensure that all
working procedures in the Group shall be complied with the
applicable laws and rules. We continuously review our policies
and practices to integrate environmental considerations into
working procedures. We will report to our management upon
review with recommended actions being adopted when
necessary.

Note: The Group does not run any factories nor involve any direct
production procedure. Therefore, the requirements for the
disclosure of the key performance indicators for the relevant
environmental protection aspects’ under the ESG Guide are not
applicable to the Group.
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REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

1.

Employment

Employment policies

We have a comprehensive human resource management
system which is strictly implemented. The system is fomulated
based on the Employment Ordinance ( {{&{& &%) ) of Hong
Kong, the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (
#FARLMBELENEL) ), the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Employment Contracts ( (& ZE A £ f1 5 &
A RYE) ) and other existing laws and regulations. During
the Reporting Period, we complied with these laws and
regulations. Meanwhile, the Group has given the employees the
documents and materials on the related entry guidelines and
clearly conveyed the messages about employment policies,
missions and visions of the Group, work ethics, occupational
safety and health guidelines. We strive to make sure our staff
know their rights and welfare while work in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations according to the system so as to
safeguard the rights and interests of both sides.

Due to our business nature, we have no specific requirements
or conventions on gender and age. During the Reporting
Period, the Group had no significant changes in composition
of employees (including gender ratio, age, etc.), whereas the
turnover rate aligned with industry condition.

To attract and retain staff, the Group has formulated a
competitive package of remuneration and welfare system,
including basic salary and overtime allowance, staff welfare
and rights, such as Mandatory Provident Fund, social
insurance, housing provident fund, directors and office liability
insurance, supplementary medical welfare, statutory and extra
annual leaves, sick leaves, various allowances and severance
payment. The Group determines and adjusts staff salaries and
benefits upon appraisal, with their job nature, experience, job
performance, financial results of the Company and market
conditions being taken into account.
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REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(Continued)

1.
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Employment (Continued)

Employment policies (Continued)

When an employee is dismissed (due to violation of the
Group’s regulations, or that whose performance is consistently
below an acceptable level or other reasons),
resources department will follow a range of procedures
pursuant to our human resources management system
to terminate his or her employment contract. Terms and
conditions for dismissal are outlined in the employment
contract and related policy manual. In all cases, supervisors
will consult our human resources department, legal
department and/or management to ensure that applicable legal
requirements are observed.

our human

Promotion

Besides salary adjustment, our employees join the annual
performance appraisal. Those who show outstanding work
performances will be entitled a job promotion. The Group will
also consider promoting staff who works long enough with
us and continues to have work performance that meet our
required standards.
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REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(Continued)

1.

Employment (Continued)

Equal opportunities, diversity and inclusion

As the employees of the Group are one of the key
stakeholders, diversity and equal opportunity form part of
our people strategy. Our employment practices support
the building of an inclusive work environment free from
discrimination such as gender, age, nationality, sexual
orientation, family status, race or religion. Each employee has
an equal job opportunity.

Communication with employees

We place high importance to caring and communicating
with our employees. Communication channels between
management and other employees are in place to foster better
relationship and improve operating efficiency.

Certain major subsidiaries hold meetings of “cross-department
sharing” on a weekly basis to facilitate cooperation among
different departments. Through regular team building activities,
such as Christmas party, staff gathering and annual dinner,
to deepen understanding among employees and create a
friendly atmosphere. In addition, we have established an
interview mechanism, which allows employees to effectively
reflect their views to management in a timely manner, with
a view to enhance cross-department and cross-operation
communication.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and
other benefits and welfare.
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RE-HERERHRSE

REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECT (continued) Lt EEHE®R & (@)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES BfERS ITER @
(Continued)
2. Health and Safety 2 RBERZZ

Work safety YN

We put health and safety of employees at the first priority,
and are determined to maintain a sound safety management
and comply with all relevant laws and regulations. We
identify potential risks, coordinating health and safety training
and providing related information to employees, equipping
adequate first aid supplies and fire service equipment.
Assessments on significant job risk and accident are reported
to management and necessary actions shall be taken.

We formulated, implemented and monitored a series of
code of practice for health and safety at work. The code
takes references to the industry conventions and supervision
regulations. As improving and amending, the code ensures the
protection of health and safety of the staff.

To enhance employees’ awareness of occupational health and
safety, the Group provides internal and external training and
safety meetings for employees. We also participate in fire drills
held by different departments or organisations regularly. Welfare
of our permanent staff includes annual medical examination,
medical insurance and pension.

Physical and mental health

Physical and mental development of employees is also an
integral part of occupational safety and health. Apart from
daily work, the Group regularly arranges various activities for
employees to strengthen exchange and understanding among
employees, such as “Run for Fun”, “6KM with the Sun”,
badminton and basketball games, yoga classes, and other
outdoor activities which are good to health. These activities are
to promote work life balance.

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant incident

of safety and work-related injury; as we complied with relevant
laws and regulations.
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REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(Continued)

3.

Development and Training

The Group believes that human resource is the key of our
success and is a valuable asset to us. The Group places high
importance on enticing and nurturing talents. Based on our
business nature, corporate development and needs, we bring
suitable people to improve our human resources structure. We
provide employees with business related training and industry
knowledge through a series of training programs to enhance
the quality, qualifications and skills of our staff, with a view to
fostering their development.

During the Reporting Period, we provided the following training
programs to our employees:

- Related party transaction

Taxation

- Merger and Acquisition — value creation

Fintech Industry Sharing

We evaluate the effectiveness of training and development
programs, and make suggestions for relevant staff policies.

We encourage and offer opportunities for advancement
within the organisation to promote employees with excellent
performance and potential. We also encourage our employees
to discuss with their managers about their career development,
promotion opportunities and career goals, as we seek to help
our employees unleash their potential and grow together with
the Company.
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REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(Continued)

4.
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Labour Standards

The Group strictly comply with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China ( (R A R HE T4 &%) ),
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Employment
Contracts ( (PEARKEMELESRE) ), the Regulation
on Labour Security Supervision ( (4 B){RFEEEREHI) ), the
Special Rules on the Labor Protection of Female Employees
((ZB T FHRERFRIFTE) ) promulgated by the State
Council of the People’s Republic of China. We also formulated
internal codes and guidelines as well as labour system with
reference to international labour standards. All recruitment
procedures and promotion activities are supervised under the
Group’s human resource management system to ensure no
child labour or forced labour occurs. The Group also strive to
offer employees with equal opportunities, and protect them
from rights deprived and any form of discrimination in relation
to gender, racial background, religious belief, age, marital and
family status or disability within the Group.

The Group clearly sets out the code of conduct for employees
in all employment contracts and staff codes. We also strictly
monitor the conduct of all employees, including directors
and employees at all levels, to prevent any harassment or
bullying in workplace. Employees are encouraged to report
any malpractice to their supervisors. Investigations will be
conducted subsequently and results will be submitted to our
human resources and senior management. Necessary actions
including punishment and dismissal of and legal actions against
the employees involved, and corrective measures will be made.

Saved as the Group’s policies of employees’ remuneration
and benefits disclosed above, we ensures reasonable working
hours which shall not exceed the limit stipulated by local laws
and employees are entitled to at least one day-off per week,
with no forced overtime work.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no child labour
or forced labour, nor had any case of discrimination relating to
ethnic group, religion, age, disability, etc, and complied with the
relevant laws and regulations mentioned above.
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REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)

OPERATING PRACTICES

5.

Supply Chain Management

The Group is principally engaged in providing integrated fintech
services to borrowers and investors. Therefore, we have no
major suppliers of products, raw materials or services; nor
does the Group directly participate in any negotiation between
corporate and institutional clients and their respective suppliers.
The Group does not make bulk purchase or enter into any
procurement agreement for stationery, paper or any other office
supplies or equipment. The Group closely communicates with
its subsidiaries and carries out necessary monitoring and risk
control measures in case of its subsidiaries or associates hiring
major suppliers.

Product Responsibility

Satisfying client’s needs

Our clients are mainly borrowers and investors of P2P online
financing platform, borrowers of traditional loan financing
businesses, etc.

Our products and services include:

- Online investment and technology-enabled lending
services; and

- Traditional loan financing services (including entrusted
loans, pawn loan and other loan secured with assets or
guarantees).

We are committed to providing excellent customer experience
as we undertake that our services are safe and in compliance
with applicable laws. We have been in adherence to applicable
laws and industry standards regulating health and safety,
personal privacy and product advertising. It is our objective that
our customers have confidence in our services with sufficient
information provided to make informed choices.

The Group’s major subsidiaries keep communicating with
clients and review on various communication channels in order
to receive feedback from customers and handle complaints in
time. Investigation on complaints and service are carried out to
improve our customer services.
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REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

6.

191

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Privacy policies

Financial industry involves dealing with large amount of
personal data of clients. Protecting our customers’ interest
and privacy is one of our top concerns to present outstanding
customer service. The Group has complied with Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance ( {{& A& # (FLF) 1) ) and other
applicable laws in safeguarding clients’ personal information,
and has formulated relevant guidelines to require employees to
carefully handle personal information and business records of
clients.

Aadvertising and labeling
To attract clients, we carry out marketing and promotional
works in an appropriate manner. We have been in compliance
with the Advertisement Law of the PRC ( {FZE A R HFIE
£3%) ), the Interim Measures for the Administration of
Internet Advertisement ( (BB @ E S B EETHH%) ) and
other applicable laws and regulations enacted by the nation,
regions and industry associations. Advertising campaign is
launched upon confirmation that we followed the requirements
for the use and execution of brand identity and advertisement
of our products and services. We also seek legal advices when
necessary.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters.
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REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

7.

Anti-corruption

We adhere to the values of honesty and integrity. The Group is
engaged in financial businesses and complies with all relevant
anti-corruption laws and regulations, such as the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance ( <F7LEFEE& &) ) of Hong Kong Laws,
the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (& %
ARFEMEIFE) ) and the Anti-Money Laundering Law of
the People’s Republic of China ( {(FF%E AR L FIE & 8
7&) ). According to these, we have formulated, and strictly
implemented and complied with a set of anti-corruption control
system.

The Board of Directors sets a tone of zero tolerance on bribery,
extortion and fraud. This is reflected in our business and staff
policies, as well as our operational procedures, as we are
determined to prevent any corruption by raising employees’
awareness of anti-corruption. We endeavour to maintain sound
corporate governance and risk management to protect the
interest of stakeholders. The Group is also in strict compliance
with Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance ( &
A REEEFY ) to forbid any fraudulent behaviour in the
capital market.

The Group implements measures for various businesses to
prevent money laundering and financing for improper purposes
through our Group by clients. Prior to offering credit and
infomediary products and services, we verify the identity of our
clients; require real name authentication for clients of third party
payment platform to avoid fraudulent card payment. We keep
an eye on work process to ward off any participation of money
laundering activities by our employees.
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REPORTING ON SOCIAL ASPECT (continued)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

7.

Anti-corruption (Continued)

Whistle-blowing policies

We have a comprehensive anonymous whistle-blowing
mechanism which allows our employees to report any form of
misconduct, such as abuse of authority and bribery of clients
or employees, as their identity will be protected.

We will investigate and verify upon reporting and report to our
management and the Board of Directors, as well as regulatory
and law enforcement bodies. We will review every case and
make appropriate improvement measures when necessary.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the
relevant laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

COMMUNITY

8.
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Community Investment

The Group put strong emphasis on corporate social
responsibility. Upholding the principle of “give back what
you have taken from society”, we promote the awareness of
community care and helping each other.

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively communicated
with different organisations in the local communities to
understand the local situation and organised various
community activities. For instance, we proactively participated
in the startup sharing and other art contest in the park area.

The Group will continue to explore other possible ways,
including organising activities or participating in those
coordinated by other institutions or governments, to help those
in need. We also encourage our employees to share their
learning and experience of participating in the activities so as to
appeal more employees to join and establish positive values.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Ele

Shine‘ZOan

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHONG SING
HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Credit China FinTech Holdings Limited)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chong
Sing Holdings FinTech Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 206 to 413, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

ERRER
EERBELBSMASEMNTEEED
(IFEETENDETERZ BFEXFELT
MEEEEFHREANZEE B ZRA MR
REAAENEE—E—TRL-REFEG
frgmBIRBEestaER TR ([R)) - &
FBEURN BEEER YCERTRETHMER
B -BFHE BEMES M§&5ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ
BEEMRESNERERIEHER

AEELER

REFSNELAN MREZFEATEEY
RAMBNRANBRRTREENFE- TS
EERFAMBRRRAUERERBER LS
FE MIERUSFEREBERER -
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Impairment of loan receivables

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages from 246 to 252.

The key audit matter

HEEZEE

The Group’s loan receivables, amounting to
RMB3,453,454,000 as at 31 December 2017,
represented loans granted to customers under the
secured and unsecured financing business. Most of loan
receivables were secured by collaterals including real
estate and equity interests of private companies or listed
companies and guaranteed by guarantors. The loan
amount was normally below the value of the collaterals.
RZBE—+F+-_A=+—RH EXENEKERA
AR ¥3,453,454,0007T - B A H 1 K MK M Gl & R 15 1R
TERTEFHER KD EEERTIUABELARA
3 _E T A B EY 55 AR N AR A P B HE R R N | B AR
AFTER - EREE—RENERRNEE-

We consider the impairment assessment of loan
receivables as a key audit matter due to the significance
of amounts and the subjective nature of the calculation
because the estimates on which these provisions
are based entail a significant degree of management
judgment and may be subject to management bias.
HeREAMAGERZSRERTEEELEARAG
EXEBEIHRZLZVE AMAtEBIEME HEF
W EFORET L REREREE-
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FEW & FRE
SIS S REN 0R B B2 E S
1R T -

2528

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EEEERPHRERE

Our procedures were designed to review the management’s
impairment assessment and challenge the reasonableness
of the methods and assumptions used to estimate the
allowance for doubtful debts.
EENEZEFEERN B REENMEN G RAS A RE
BERANTARBRNAEE -

We have discussed the indicators of possible impairment with
the management and, where such indicators were identified,
assessing the management’s impairment testing; and
EEHREEEBNWmAGERERENTR  TREEZETR
R ERERENR &

We have challenged the assumptions and critical judgment
used by the management by assessing the reliability of the
management’s past estimates and taking into account the
calculation methodologies, economic factors, the ownership
and valuation of recovery assets and collaterals, financial
position of the borrowers and guarantors and cash received
after year end, as well as the recent creditworthiness of each
debtor.
EEMERNAEEREBE G SR RELEBEA
WEEERBERmNAER L KERE RAERKGEE
BRAREBERANBBRAARBEWEER S UAREEHA
BT HEEE ZNEERBAMENRR RERAE-

2017« mFREREERsRAa 190



Independent Auditor’s Report

%8 37 1% S E 3 &

Acquisition of Amigo Technologies Joint Stock
Company (“Amigo Technologies”), Ping An
Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (“Ping An
Securities”) and Singapore Life Pte. Limited

(“Singapore Life”)

Refer to notes 23 and 45 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies on pages from 235 to 240.

The key audit matter

FAREZEE

On 25 January 2017, the Group completed the
acquisition of 51% equity interest in Amigo Technologies,
at fair value consideration of VND286,588,125,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB87,458,000) which
was satisfied by cash. Upon the completion, Amigo
Technologies became a subsidiary of the Group. This
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition
method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was RMB55,698,000. Amigo Technologies is
engaged in the provision of third party payment and IT
solution services with the post office in Vietnam.
R-TE—+tF—A=-+HH > BEE£BEZAKKEAMIgo
Technologies 2 51% % 4 - A AR E £286,588,125,000
HMrEE (IBEROARES7,458,0007T) - ARSI -
M FERL & - Amigo Technologiesfik & &£ B —RHHE
NABARWEREDEAWEEALRR AW EEENE
Z 55 A AR #55,608,0007T ° Amigo TechnologiesZ /1
MR RIRHE =7 N IRF RITHRIR 75 2R -

On 29 September 2017, the Group completed the
acquisition of 23.47% equity interest in Ping An Securities,
at fair value consideration of RMB294,848,000 which
was satisfied by cash. Upon the completion, Ping An
Securities became an associate of the Group. This
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition
method. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was RMB13,814,000.
RZZE—+FNARZ+IB BEXRETKKBETLZE
5 2 23.4T%HE - N FERE R ARKE294,848,0007T -
HUB &M -RElig  FTRIEHFKE BEEEH—H
BERNR - BAWBERDERKEEAR BREES
BEE SR ARK13,814,0007T ©

Y B Amigo Technologies Joint
Stock Company ([ Amigo
Technologies |) * FZ &5 &
(BR)ERARA ([ TRFEEH])
X Singapore Life Pte. Limited
(I'Singapore Life |)

2GS B RER W23 %45 K% F235H & £240
BEREETEUR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EEEERPHEREAE

With respect to the acquisition of 51%, 23.47% and 33.8%
equity interests in Amigo Technologies, Ping An Securities
and Singapore Life, respectively, we inspected the sale and
purchase agreements and other relevant documents to
determine whether the agreements gave rise to control of
Amigo Technologies under HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and significant influence of Ping An Securities
and Singapore Life under Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(‘HKAS”) 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Venture. Regarding the estimation of fair value at acquisition
date of the assets (including intangible assets) and liabilities
of the acquired entities, we had assessed management’s
identification and determination of the fair value of assets
and liabilities acquired, including the valuation methodology
applied and the assumptions underlying the acquisition date
valuation and input data.

L5 BIUEE Amigo Technologies %7 % & Singapore Life#]
51%°23.47% M33.8%MEM = - HFeE B & ihE M HE A
XM AEERBEEEV B REERNF10REE P ERE
1B R B S B Hl Amigo Technologies ' M IBEE B &t
AR ([HEGFHER]) 2285 (ZE——F) RNEE R al Kk
AREMEZIRE  HEWMERE S BY T L HES KSingapore
LifefTEEART E AT MRBEERNEE (BEETE
E)RABREBRHNATENS ESCHMEREY
FIBEER BB R FENBRNEE  BREMERMGE
JENMEE B A EAERERR M AR -
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The key audit matter (Continued)

MBEZSERE(E)

Ping An Securities is engaged in the business of property
leasing and development, trading of goods in mainland
China, provision of securities brokerage, securities
underwriting and placements and financial advisory
services.
FRBEHFTEZETEANMEEYEHERRME EmE
5 REEFLL BB RS DA K R RS %
7% o

On 8 May 2017, the Group completed the acquisition
of 33.8% equity interest in Singapore Life, at fair value
consideration of RMB145,069,000 which was satisfied
by cash. Upon the completion, Singapore Life became
an associate of the Group. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the acquisition method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of acquisition was
RMB34,606,000.

RZZE—tFRANE BEEEZHIKESIngapore Life
Z33.8% %1 - A FERER/AKRE145,069,0007T - AR
& o AR 1% > Singapore Lifefk & &HH£E 2 BE N
A o IR B AU R ARR - W%FiZﬁ@ R
A R #34,606,0007T °

Singapore Life is engaged in the business of the insurance
and wealth management sector in Singapore.

Singapore Life S ¥ IE SR R B EBITH 2 575 -

%) 37 1% S E ¥ &

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)
EEEERPHRERZ (B)
In particular, we reviewed the future cash flow forecast
prepared by management on whether it is agreed to the
budget approved by the board of directors of the Company
and compared the budget with actual results available up
to the report date. We also challenged the appropriateness
of the assumptions, including the sales growth rates and
gross margin, against latest market expectations. We also
challenged the discount rate employed in the calculation
of value in use by reviewing its basis of calculation and
comparing its input data to market sources.
LER EEnERARAEESS I ACTEET K EREE
ﬁ@iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁT%%Zi%m%ﬁﬁiﬁ'MmﬁmE
ﬂ@ﬁ%Z%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂJEgﬁ%mfkﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
ERX (BREEEERENENX)NEZL - EETELEE
ﬁﬂu#%E&%ﬁ%A%Fﬁm%Xﬁmiuﬁé HiE
REEMEAZAMIRE-
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The key audit matter (Continued)
HEEZSEE (&)
The accounting for the completed transactions of Amigo
Technologies, Ping An Securities and Singapore Life
involved determining whether the transactions should
be classified as equity accounting under HKAS 28
(2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Venture for
Ping An Securities and Singapore Life and business
combination under HKFRS 3 Business Combination for
Amigo Technologies and estimating the fair value of the
assets and liabilities of the acquired business, including
the identification and valuation, where appropriate,
of intangible assets and contingent consideration at
acquisition date. Significant judgment is involved in
relation to the assumptions used in this valuation process.
We therefore consider the acquisition of equity interest in
Amigo Technologies and Ping An Securities a key audit
matter.
# B 72 A I Amigo Technologies * F %2 7% %&Slngapore
LifeR G ARSI REEZERHEERBERS 4R
o8 {—4ﬁ%%§QT&A“ﬁ¥Z&§%$
L% M Singapore Lifen B AEm ST RIE - MBEBEES
B T 3 5 2 RIS 397 15 & #EBLAmigo  Technologies 7 48
REBE URMAEFAMEBEEBNEERABN AT
B BEEVEERIAREHNHNRMEE (WMER) -
AMEETRR S B HIAT B RER ﬁ&iﬁﬂ% Et - &
£ R B EE Amigo Technologies & “F % %E’UHX*%EE*IE
B ERER-

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)
EEAEERPHNRERZE (B)
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Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Refer to notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 237 and from 243 to 245.

The key audit matter

HREEZEE

The Group has goodwill of RMB976,382,000
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives of
RMB132,014,000 as at the end of the reporting period. In
addition, an aggregate amounting of goodwill amounting
to RMB951,311,000 was recognised in the investment
cost of associates. An assessment is required annually to
establish whether any impairment is required.
RBEHR BEEEZHE/ARKI?6,382,0007T K
BVEE (ABEEREMAFR) SARK132,014,0007T ©
Lo B A 2 AR %951,311,0007T HER FA Bt 2 B H)
BERAR BERFIELEMRETGFETHMGE

The Group’s assessment on impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets is a judgemental process which requires
estimates concerning the forecast future cash flows
associated with the goodwill and intangible assets held,
the discount rates and the growth rate of revenue and
costs to be applied in determining the value-in-use. The
selection of valuation model, adoption of key assumptions
and input data may be subject to management basis
and changes in these assumptions and input to valuation
model may result in significant financial impact.

EEEHEREEERENTE I AGT AR ER
%&%%ﬁﬁé%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%Xﬁéwg,%ﬁ$&
WARRERETEBEEMBRARNHERRE EEF
HERK ROBRRERBABBAIRAREERE
BEEET MzERERGERANEABIRNE EsL
EEABERMBEE-

The extent of judgment and the size of the goodwill and
intangible assets resulted in this matter being identified as
a key audit matter.
WLEEANMSENHEREARFEREFLEEN KN
WO REAREZFIR -
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BERELEERE

B4R B B SRR M 5E20 %21 2 552378 K 5243
BEF2U5EMNETHR

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EEEERYHRERE

In order to address this matter in our audit, we obtained
management’s assessment and the one prepared by their
valuation specialist and challenged the reasonableness of the
selection of valuation model, adoption of key assumptions
and input data. In particular, we reviewed the future cash
flow forecast prepared by management on whether it is
agreed to the budget approved by the board of directors
of the Company and compared the budget with actual
results available up to the report date. We also challenged
the appropriateness of the assumptions, including the
sales growth rates and gross margin, against latest market
expectations.

REEZPRENEE EECISEEEBNGEERAR
R WS BERAERRS  RAERRRREABE
WEBMt-LHE EEHERERRAE ERFESE %&
ZHEBEWKEREEEAEEREAHILRECERAER
TR AR AR KRIRERETEN - EZNHE L ER m%ﬁ
HAEKRRX (RREEEREREMNE)NESE-

We also challenged the discount rate employed in the
calculation of value-in-use by reviewing its basis of calculation
and comparing its input data to market sources.

FE NG BT B H AT 8 2 K H i A SR B 35 SRR LR
NABHEEREBEMRABZMIRX

As any changes in these assumptions and input to valuation
model may result in significant financial impact, we tested
management’s sensitivity analysis in relation to the key inputs
to the impairment assessment which included changes in the
sales growth rate, gross margin and discount rate employed.
ZERBEMEEERNNHABRBENE N EEFLERYH
B BEAFAEEBABAENGNBREARE (25
PRERAEHEERE EMNXRBERENEH) NBRED
e
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Information Other than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the management discussion and analysis (but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and (the chairman’s statement, environmental, social and
governance (ESG) report, corporate governance report and report
of the directors) which are expected to be made available to us after
that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed on the other information that we
have obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the chairman’s statement, ESG report, corporate
governance report and report of the directors, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement herein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

201

HAMBHRRUSIMIER RRE RN
Y% BB 3R &

BERAERAHHEHMENAR HMENBREE
SEAZBENHE BATRISHER ENHED T
(ETEREGEMBHRRRESFORBMES) -

M&EWAE$V%%ﬁ¢EéH SHEFE®RS
R HE@MEARE CEEARSTREFER
Lo

T A rb
&S H4 7f

BRIEFEMBERYEBRELME
THEMERERTAEANZE

RESERZEAMBREAME  BENAERE
BEMER KMEBEMEN S EERE T
BAXBFEEZBRETESNENFEEAS
T HUFEFEEAERRL - WEEEENRE
ERNAZBENRE AR S E SN HEMERETT
%I%'m%ﬁ@éﬂﬁﬁiﬁ%%@k.%%ﬁ
BEEMEE - EEXERUERRSE-

%Q@Ifﬁiiﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ
ARENEFERER - HMEFRE
RE ﬁk_ﬂgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ AE
WEREFH EETT

==
[=]
&)
K

@Hﬂ%@rﬂn}

CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Independent Auditor’s Report

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

%) 31 1% S E ¥ &

EERERZEEANGAMBERE
REWEE

BERREFRAAERBETEGFMAGRONE
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
21 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

22 25 B 2 WK 25
GEEZEREMERWNER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE
2017 2016
—E—t#H —E—RF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BT 5 AR¥ET T ARET T
Turnover BEH 7 4,805,010 1,075,677
Interest income R B U A 7 455,276 376,935
Interest expenses FERX 11 (383,354) (238,184)
Net interest income FEBNFEE 71,922 138,751
Financial consultancy service B RE R T U
income 7 70,685 53,053
Third party payment service income ¥ = 7 X {1 BRFFUT N 7 338,950 189,983
Online investment and technology- 7E#47#% & & # # 5E &)
enabled lending service income EENETON 7 3,334,003 366,517
Transaction verification ZEEZRBUEN
service income 7 289,063 -
Gain on transfer of rights on HEEUERFIEERZ
interests on loan receivables I 25 7 31,132 -
Others Hith 7 285,901 89,189
4,421,656 837,493
Other income EH AU A 9 32,829 26,949
Other gains and losses H b hzs M g5 18 10 20,625 4,414
Administrative and other operating THREAMSERT
expenses (3,250,302) (874,474)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 2 46 408,098 37
Gain on deemed disposal of BIEHEWB AR 2 W
subsidiaries 23 3,303 -
Loss on deemed disposal of an RIEHE —BBE R [l
associate E518 23 - (2,029)
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—EBE AT EE 23 - (797)
Change in fair value of investment WEWMEZ NTFEE
property 19 2,000 -
Change in fair value of mEgs s A FEE
crypto currencies 53,346 -
Change in fair value of derivative and $TAE T AR A[#@RES 2
embedded derivative components of EPAETIEX D Z
convertible bond NEEED) - (208)
Change in fair value of —fRf B AR ZEERZ
preference share of a subsidiary NEEES) (47,007) (461)
Share-based payment expenses VAR 0 3277 2 F =2 49 (160,684) (109,986)
Share of results of associates Ry NG e 64,283 45,747
Profit before tax F& %% A1 328 A1 12 1,548,147 426,685
Income tax Frig# 13 (449,699) (84,438)
Profit for the year EEEF 1,098,448 342,247
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
e aEkHMEEW TR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+t#H ZE—RF
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥ET T ARET T
Other comprehensive (expense) Hivzm (X)) B
income
Items that may be reclassified HEAHEEFEZE
subsequently to profit or loss: R ZEH:
Exchange differences on translating ~ # & /84N & B A 7
foreign operations PE 5 =% (82,160) 61,146
Share of other comprehensive Sak Iy AN
income of associates H 2w (3,490) -
Change in fair value of available-for- T HEREZ
sale investments N EE - (2,892)
Other comprehensive (expense) FEHEM2E (FAZ) WA
income for the year (85,650) 58,254
Total comprehensive income EEZEBNERE
for the year 1,012,798 400,501
Profit for the year attributable to: E{EZFEiGEH :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ ES DN 803,013 301,122
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR = 295,435 41,125
1,098,448 342,247
Total comprehensive income for EhZEEEEBNEEE:
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEZZS N 723,254 359,322
Non-controlling interests IR fE 289,544 41,179
1,012,798 400,501
RMB RMB
AR ¥ AR
Earnings per share BRAEF 17
Basic A 3.65 cents4y 1.48 cents?
Diluted s 3.49 cents%y 1.43 cents?
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR LR

As at 31 December 2017 M-Z—+F+_-HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T— R
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 AR#T T ARET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Plant and equipment % 5= M 2% A 18 332,009 45,076
Investment property wEYE 19 576,000 574,000
Intangible assets BVEE 20 178,831 246,652
Deposit paid for acquisition of RUEREEESINZ
intangible assets Ze - 12,866
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITER 33 278,468 252,805
Goodwill GES 21 976,382 932,711
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 22 429,511 273,455
Interests in associates RN o 5 23 1,457,723 955,431
Interests in joint ventures REeEELE IR 24 - -
Loan receivables FEWE 26 - 150,000
4,228,924 3,442,996
Current assets mENEE
Inventories VeSS 36 10,465 -
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 22 - 24,588
Trade receivables g 5 UK 25 417,369 160,147
Loan receivables FERE R 26 3,453,454 3,319,688
Prepayments and other receivables ~ FEfTERRU R Efb el iE 27 1,256,108 212,038
Amounts due from joint ventures EUAE “ﬁé%m 24 4,666 14,483
Amounts due from associates JFE Ui B ’A IE 23 9,004 1,131
Amounts due from related JE Ly B i KA
companies 28 190,724 189,542
Held for trading investments BIEEBEHRE 31 332,082 23,502
Income tax recoverable AT YL B FT 1S - 1,016
Crypto currencies liEaR=g: 30 224,921 -
Bank balance — trust account RITHB—(EEERP 32 1,226,622 239,991
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIARS 33 969,249 1,233,391
8,094,664 5,419,517
Current liabilities REasE
Accruals and other payables [EETBRALEMENKIE 34 858,274 265,931
Funds payables and amounts due to & 3 & FE VA &
customers JERT &= P /I8 32 1,226,622 239,991
Amounts due to non-controlling FETFEIZE IR HX% KIB
shareholders 29 1,541 1,597
Amounts due to related companies  JEfI BEiE N T 708 28 187,813 189,983
Borrowings E=i 35 1,644,958 1,015,297
Convertible bonds AR ES 39 269,840 -
Preference share of a subsidiary — BB AR 2B 40 118,997 71,990
Provision for financial guarantee B IS BRI 41 225553 42,837
Other financial liabilities HEemaRi 50 536,000 -
Income tax payables FETATSTE 385,832 73,650
5,455,430 1,901,276
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,639,234 3,518,241
Total assets less current liabilities & EZE R RE & & 6,868,158 6,961,237
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Gr = B AR LR

As at 31 December 2017 W-_Z—+tF+_-_HA=+—H

2017 2016
—F—t#HF —E—RF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
M RE ARBT T AREF T
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Corporate bonds NEESH 38 61,732 154,450
Convertible bonds A MR ES 39 1,035,305 1,393,172
Borrowings BE 35 115,200 804,909
Other financial liabilities HEtErAaE 50 - 276,075
Deferred tax liabilities FRIERIE B & 37 89,505 91,051
1,301,742 2,719,657
Net assets EEFE 5,566,416 4,241,580
Capital and reserves BEREF#E
Share capital fi&% A 42 373,512 358,259
Reserves & 4,831,636 3,837,584
Equity attributable to owners of the ~ AR THEA AFE(EREZS
Company 5,205,148 4,195,843
Non-controlling interests IR b 361,268 45,737
Total equity EREE 5,566,416 4,241,580

The consolidated financial statements on pages 206 to 413 were $206B £ F413B 2 i A RRCEESEE R

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 —ZE—N\FE=A-+—HIERZETZ I H
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: NTESERERESE
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat Mr. Sheng Jia
WG EE BEEE
Director Director
o EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEEEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEENER
Equity
Share- component
Investment based of Consideration Non-
Shere Share Statutory Retained revaluation Exchange payment convertible Capital Special payables controling Totdl
capital premium resene profts resene resene resene resenve resene resene Total interests equity
WRE
e RiEE ERRE REER ERRE  XHERH BAGR BHRE  ERRERE g EelEs it ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RVMB'000
ARETTL  ARBTR  ARMTRT  ARBTR  ARETRT  AR%TR ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR ARETR  AR%TR
(Note (a) (Note (b)) (Note (c]) (Note (d)) (Note (g) (Note (f)
(Hit) (Witb) (Wit) (Hit) (GEC) (Bt
At1 January 2016 321,642 1,665,026 33,106 588,524 2,892 11,649 47,300 23,208 (125,085) 40,000 - 2,608,210 24376 2,632,586
Proftfor the year EFEF - - - 01,12 - - - - - - - 0,12 41125 2247
Other comprehensieincome~ FFEfH2ERA
(expense) for the year (Bx)
Exchange differences on ;
translating foreign
operations - - - - - 61,092 - - - - - 61,002 54 61,146
Change in fair value of AEREL
avalable-for-sale ATEEY
nvestments - - - - 289) - - - - - - 289 - 289
Totel comprehensie income £ 2EMA (7%
(expense) for the year et - - - 301,12 28%) 61,092 - - - - - 359,322 41179 400,501
Issue of shares upon RTFBRERSIRG
exercise of share options GEZZ
(Note 42(o)) %7 226% - - - - 4530) - - - - 19,183 - 19,133
Lapse of share options BREAN - - - 1417 - - (1477) - - - - - - -
Acquiston of anassociate ~ KE-TBEAT
Note 42(d) (W42 21557 666,101 - - - - - - - - - 667,658 - 667,658
Acquisiion of a subsiciary  WE-FHELA
Notes 42(c) and 45) (f3t42/0345) 952 409459 - - - - - - - - - 418,981 (07,5%) 391445
Acquistion of a subsicliary
by contingent share
consideration (Note 45) - - - - - - - - - - 185,502 155,502 2,65 158,057
Acquisition of addtonal interest & —EHBAZZ
na subsidiary EMER
Notes 42(c)and 45) (B k4210 es) 3002 104,941 - - - - - - 190619) - - 82,636) 5163 (17473
Fair value of put option of non- SR IEH A HE
contoling interests (Note 50) 2 AT (Ff#50) - - - - - - - - (276,075) - - (276,075) - 276,075)
Appoprigion tostatutory R EEE AR
reserve funds - - 3463 (3463 - - - - - - - - - -
Recognition of equiy-setled ~ BREEREEURA
share-based payments TRz - - - - - - 109,986 - - - - 109,986 - 100,986
Recognition of AREFERTH
equity component of (MzE39)
convertible bond (Note 39) - - - - - - - 147,634 - - - 147,634 - 147,634
Conversion of comvertble BT HRES
bonds Note 42(e) (stae) 1529 51856 - - - - - 5057) - - - 38128 - 2818
At31 December 2016 RIB-RE
TZA=t-8 358,269 2,920,079 36,569 887,660 - 72,641 151279 165,583 (591,729) 40,000 156,502 4195843 45,787 4,241,580
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEmEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE —

—tFt-A=t—HLHFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARRAAER
Equity
Share-  component
based of Consideration Non-
Share Share Statutory Retained Exchange payment  convertible Capital Special payables controlling Total
capital premium reserve profits reserve reserve bonds reserve reserve reserve Total interests equity
NRS  TRRES
e RBER HERE REER EifE XAFERE [3-E0 RAHE FHRE BRRERE & FERER [
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR  ARETz ARETR ARETR AR¥Tz ARETR ARETR  ARETZ  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (d)) (Note (e) (Note (f))
(K@) (WE0) (K@) (W) (GED)
At1 January 2017 358,259 2,920,019 36,569 887,660 72,641 151,219 165,563 (691,729) 40,000 155,502 4,195,843 45,137 4,241,580
Proft for the year - - - 803,013 - - - - - - 803,013 295,435 1,008,448
Qther comprehensive income:
(expense) for the year
Exchange differences on
translating foreign operations - - - - (76,269) - - - - - (76,269) (5,891) (62,160)
Share of other comprehensive AEBELT
income of assoclates Ef2EkE - - - - (3,490) - - - - - (3,490) - (3,490)
Total comprehensive income (expense) £ 2EMA (H3)
for the year 2% - - - 803,013 (79,759) - - - - - 723,254 289,544 1,012,798
Issue of shares upon exercise of ERERSTRG
share options (Note 42(0)) H42)) 5678 200,587 - - - (34,947) - - - - 171,318 - 171,313
Lapse of share options BRERM - - - 1,174 - (1,174) - - - - - - -
Acquistion of avallable-for-sale WETHNERE
investments (Note 42(f) (Bzraa) 2,204 113510 - - - - - - - - 115,714 - 115,714
Acquistion of subsiciaries (Note 45)  KEBHB LA (Mi3H45) - - - - - - - - - - - 30514 30514
Appropriation to statutory ERRES AR
reserve funds - - 14,550 (14,550) - - - - - - - - -
Recogniton of eqity-settied RRREEENRA
share-based payments FUPAT - - - - - 160,684 - - - - 160,684 - 160,684
Issue of consideration shares ERERR
Note 42(g) (Wza2) 429 151,206 - - - - - - - (155,502) - - -
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary BiELE-FRELA
(Note 23(f) (Wzroa) - - - - - - - 8] - - 4] 929 926
Dividend to non-controling BRAFFRRE RS
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - (5,456) (5,456)
Conversion of convertile BATREES
bonds (Note 42(e) (W20 3,080 106,918 - - - - (11,730) - - - 98,268 - 98,268
Fair value of put option of ERE
non-controling interest (Note 50) - - - - - - - (259,925) - - (259,925) - (259,925)
At 31 December 2017
TZR=1-8 373,512 3,492,300 51,119 1,671,207 (1,118 215,842 153,853 (851,657) 40,000 - 5,205,148 361,268 5,566,416

2 1 1 CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REEEEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILEFE

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2009 Revision),
the share premium of the Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to
be paid and the Company is able to pay debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), companies established in the PRC are
required to transfer at least 10% of their statutory annual profits after
tax in accordance with the relevant statutory rules and regulations
applicable to enterprises in the PRC to the statutory reserve until the
balance of the reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, the statutory reserve may be used to offset against
accumulated losses of the respective PRC companies. The amount of
the transfer is subject to the approval of the board of directors of the
respective PRC companies.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve represents accumulated gains and
losses arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale investments that
have been recognised in other comprehensive income/(expense), net
of amounts reclassified to profit or loss when those investments have
been disposed of or are determined to be impaired.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received arising from changes in the
Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do not result
in the loss of control and are accounted for as equity transactions.
In addition, a fair value of put option amounting to RMB536,000,000
(2016: RMB276,275,000) exercisable by non-controlling shareholders
was recorded as at 31 December 2017, as detailed under the heading
“Acquisition of Leyu Limited” in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B & -

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Bz i 18
REFSFESRAE(ZEZNFEIR) - AR
AR E E R AR FERR N2 IR S - 1
ZRE N D IREE Z BHIE  RARBEAR
BREBBRRTR N EIHOES-

HEME

RIEPEARKNE ([FEDEFERER &
PERIWARARETECEERNEBETE
RASORRILEER R 2FNBHED10%B AL
EffE BE2EATRENVEREINEEGHEIME
KEI50% - EF BB BERAENE TREIT
FERETRARNBHEERTRARMNRFER-
BRENCHEELHERTEARNESEHE-

REEHHE
RESHFEBEEGENEMEEERA ()
BRI EREMEEZ Bt Ra REE -
THBERZERECDHERETREREREH
DEEHERZER-

BEARRE
REBZEARFHHRERATESZRFITHIER
ARG ARZ AEBRBENBEARZHS
TERERSEE 7 RS C A SREHED Tk
WBRZREAFEZEZB I RZT—+F
+ZA=+—B THIEERESTTE RS
TN F{E A ARBS36,000,0007T (ZZ—7N: A
R#276,275,0007T) * 5£18 4R & W 5 MK W+
457 TWeBELeyu Limited | #F 5 °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEEEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

(e)

U]

2 1 3 CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Special reserve

The special reserve represented the difference between the aggregate
amount of paid-in capital of Ever Step Holdings Limited (“Ever Step”),
a wholly owned subsidiary, and F/8RBHRAEBR AR (‘LR
8" and the amount of share capital of the Company issued to Kaiser
Capital Holdings Limited (“Kaiser Capital”) and Jiefang Media (UK) Co.
Limited (“Jiefang Media”), which are 100% owned by the controlling
shareholders, in 2010 in exchange for the entire equity interests in
the above companies as part of the reorganisation completed on 25
February 2010 to rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation for
the listing of the Company’s shares on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Consideration payables reserve

Consideration payable reserve represented the fair value of share
consideration payable amounting to RMB155,502,000 for the
acquisition of 51% equity interest over Shenzhen Qiyuan Tianxia
Technology Company Limited (“Qiyuan”) at the acquisition date, as
detailed in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements. The
amount represented the fair value of 255,753,200 shares (after the
Effect of Share Subdivision as defined in note 42(a)) to be issued in
case Qiyuan’s net operating result exceeds RMB50,000,000 in the
year 2016. In the opinion of directors, the Company determined to
issue the said fixed number of share as abovementioned and would
request for the monetary compensation as defined in details of the
transaction which are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
1 February 2016 if Qiyuan cannot achieve the abovementioned
net operating results. On 17 May 2017, the Company allotted and
issued 255,753,200 ordinary shares for settlement of the contingent
share consideration as Qiyuan’s net operating result exceeded
RMB50,000,000 in the year of 2016.

(e)

®

5 I K 4

FRlFEE LR ENB AR KEZERAR DA
(kB R EEsRBRgERAR ([ LERE])
MBREAEBEREARRR T2 nEHE
BERAR (28] RERER (RE)BERA
A ([ER]) (AERERE2EHE) ETA
BERERAREMRAERIERR T —FF =
AZtABRRERZ REEARE 2 RBUEHAR
REABRNREBBMERZMERRT ([BRA])
GEM EMH EHA — B0 H A A © 80 2 HH =
B

B RERKE
EARERKEENIEBBRIERIERRT
RIS AERAT ([HIE]) Z251%8 4 r it 2 Rn 1~
BEAFEARE155,502,0007C © 5 il AER A B 1%
MEMIEAS c R R BIEELREN T —NF 2K
BEE SRR BB A R 150,000,0007T 2 150 T
FE17,2255,753,2000% (1M 5E42(a)E & 2 f%
DI T EB)RDZAFE-EERE ARQ
AIREET Bl 2 B EEE By - MR ARG E
B A SRR Bl EREN ARG A A
TE-RNFE_RRAZREZRGHBRRTEZ
BES R_Z—tFRA+tH BARBERER=
T RNF 7 EEEEFREMB A RE50,000,000
JT  ARA B B B [ 3 17255,753,2000% i 8 A% LA 2
R RIE -



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE —

nvj_ | iﬁﬁlﬂl’ E %‘4

E—tFFT-_A=1T—HLHFE

2017 2016
—E—t#F ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRR
Profit before tax B % A A 1,548,147 426,685
Adjustments for: BT FIEFAE:
Depreciation e 83,502 8,693
Amortisation i 60,707 9,982
Interest expenses B 383,354 238,184
Interest income B A (19,790) (15,937)
Government grants BT =B, (2,747) (2,581)
Dividend income from held for BIEEBEREZ
trading investment f& B WA (6,834) -
Net loss on disposal/write off of e W R &R
plant and equipment B8 F 5 1,854 4
Net gain on disposal of intangible assets & EFEE ~
Yo % AR - (5,216)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB ARz W (408,098) (37)
Gain on deemed disposal of RIELEWNB AR Z
subsidiaries & (3,303) -
Loss on deemed disposal of RIEEE —EHE AT
an associate 218 - 2,029
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—MEEA T2
B8 - 797
Share-based payment expenses PARR (9 2 1+ 2 32 160,684 109,986
Fair value changes of provision for BMEEREE
financial guarantee N EEH) 1,283,428 10,893
Change in fair value of investment REWEZ NFEE
property (2,000) -
Change in fair value of preference share —FEIFE A 7 2 & 5L 1%
of a subsidiary ZNFEEE 47,007 461
Change in fair value of derivative and PTET A RATRAR ﬁ%‘%
embedded derivative components of ZAETETAES
convertible bond ZNFEEEH - 208
Fair value change of held for BIEEBEREZ
trading investment NEEEY (7,326) 3,018
Fair value changes of JiEaN=q: v
crypto currencies NEBEEY (53,346) -
Inputed interest on corporate bonds NEEHFZEERE (3,702 (7,431)
Share of results of associates FEAG R & R R A (64,283) (45,747)
Impairment loss recognised T E b R W kIR
on other receivables R R EEE 24,414 4,744
Impairment loss (reversal of impairment)  #t & Uk Bz iR 2 HE
recognised on loan receivables B8 CRE#Hm) 49,929 (641)
Impairment loss recognised on amounts i & UK & & 1> ¥ FUIE FE
due from joint ventures R REEE 4,074 -
Impairment loss recognised on MEEEERR
intangible assets RIEEE 23,223 999
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—t#F ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREF T
Operating cash inflows before EEESTEHATH
movements in working capital EERSMA 3,098,894 739,093
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e WK IE B (227,818) (117,218)
Increase in loan receivables FEUE FE N (220,610) (1,115,248)
Increase in inventories FE#E (5,480) -
Increase in crypto currencies Nz & g N (171,575) -
(Increase) decrease in prepayments and 81 B 3k & £ th FE U
other receivables IR (38 h0) @ (811,877) 53,437
Increase (decrease) in funds payables HREEMNRIER
and amounts due to customers FERT & P 58
g CRd) 986,631 (287,199)
Decrease in provision for B R B A
financial guarantee (1,100,712) -
Increase (decrease) in accruals and FEET B A R H e
other payables RIFRIEIG N O D) 634,917 (17,055)
Increase in held for trading investments ~ # F & & % &1 0 (303,911) (17,502)
(Increase) decrease in bank balance RITAERR (3B 0) R
— trust account —{=7ERP (986,631) 287,199
Cash generated from KwEmE (TR R:
(used in) operations 891,828 (474,493)
Income tax paid ERPTEH (136,398) (52,841)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REFDME (FTA)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES WEF8 755,430 (627,334)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE —

nvj_ | iﬁﬁlﬂl’ E %‘4

E-tFFT_A=1T—HLHFE

2017 2016
—E—+t#f ZT—RF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
hy=a AR¥T T ARBF T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEEE
Purchase of plant and equipment BEERELEE (148,279) (38,367)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE (9,021) (71,114)
Advance to joint ventures AAETERR - (1,670)
(Advance to) repayment from ([ARABARIER)
related companies BEENFIREN (1,182) 7,990
Advance to associates EEEANCIEE (7,873) (220)
Repayment from joint ventures EEPEER 5,743 -
Acquisition/establishment of associates U B& ik 37 B & A 7] (439,917) (8,494)
Acquisition of investments classified WHEH D58 R
as other receivables H R 2 1&E (387,621) -
Acquisition of available-for-sale WEEAT L H SR E
investments (41,076) (247,169)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible HEERTEEY
assets FriS 58 - 6,981
Proceeds from disposal of an HEITHIEREZ
available-for-sale investment Fr{35k18 - 34,460
Proceeds from disposal of HE—HBE QR
an associate P53 A - 4,000
Net cash inflow (outflow) on HEWBARIE®
disposal of subsidiaries MACREL) F28 46 510,076 7)
Net cash outflow on acquisition BB A RRE
of subsidiaries Tt FEE 45 (63,220) (232,292)
Net cash outflow on acquisition BRKENBARZ
of assets through acquisition of WHEEERS
subsidiaries R 45 (227,708) -
Net cash outflow from deemed RIEHEWB AR
disposed of subsidiaries I &7 F R 23 (5,252) -
Placement in pledge bank deposits GFEBEMIRITHER (40,000) (252,805)
Dividend income from held for trading BIEEEREY
investments % B A 6,834 -
Interest income received 2F B HA 19,790 19,396
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REBHAAERFR
ACTIVITIES (828,706) (779,311)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nVT = EE.%Ull. E %E

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &EZ - =

—tFt-A=t—HLHFE

2017 2016
—E—+t#f ZT—RF
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
hy=a AR®F T ARBF T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Proceeds from exercise of option TR EARE 2 RIS IR 171,313 19,133
(Repayment to) advance from (RIFEIERR R R ER)
non-controlling shareholders KB IR
B (56) 488
Repayment to related companies MEERFER (2,170) (9,775)
New loans raised #ig E,ﬂ 902,064 1,726,274
Proceeds from issue of corporate BT A TE%%%?EZ
bonds raised ZIECE-! - 90,000
Proceeds from issue of convertible BITR[ HXF%Z
bonds FiS5RI8 - 1,245,631
Expenses paid on issue of convertible BT RRES
bonds 53 - (16,475)
Repayment of borrowings BE FL% (955,959) (790,217)
Repayment of corporate bonds EEQRES - (171,160)
Repayment of obligations EHEMEMEETZ
under finance lease E1E - (2,203)
Government grants received 2 WU R, 2,747 2,581
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IR =
interests % B (5,456) -
Consideration paid for acquisition of mUE—HERBE ARz
additional non-controlling interests FHONIE 2 B e
in a subsidiary TRZRE 45 - (77,473)
Interests paid on corporate bonds BENRARESFE (3,814) (9,418)
Interests paid on convertible bonds B AR E ST B (96,511) (46,002)
Interests paid on bank and BATIRTT R
other loans HEMERFE (172,181) (55,907)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM MEES (FA)ME
FINANCING ACTIVITIES We 5 (160,023) 1,905,477
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH & NS Z(EEA
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OR ) N F &R (233,299) 598,832
Effect of foreign exchange ONERE R F R o B
rate changes (30,843) 19,544
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—A—B®BE:R
1 JANUARY ReEFEER 1,233,391 615,015
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R+tZA=+—HB&
31 DECEMBER, represented by bank & kEESEHEER
balances and cash NERITAE R R 2R 969,249 1,233,391
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS
OF PRESENTATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 4 January 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Zhang Zhenxin is the substantial shareholder
of the Company. The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”).
Other than those subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and certain subsidiaries of which
primary sources of revenues are dividends which are derived
from the operation of its major subsidiary operating in Mainland
China, whose functional currency is RMB, the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”). The functional currency of the Company
is HK$, which is different from the presentation currency,
RMB. As the Company’s subsidiaries mainly operate in the
PRC, apart from subsidiaries established in Vietham which
was acquired during the year as detailed in note 45, whose
functional currency is Vietnamese Dong (‘VND”), the directors
of the Company consider that it is appropriate to present the
consolidated financial statements in RMB.

The Company’s principal activities during the year are provision
of consultancy service and investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 51(a).

1.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)") and Interpretations
(“Int(s)”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle:
Amendments to HKFRS 12
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Except as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs and amendments to HKAS in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments do not prescribe a specific method to fulfil the
new disclosure requirements. However, the amendments
indicate that one way is to provide a reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from
financing activities.

The application of amendments to HKAS 7 has resulted in
additional disclosures on the Group’s financing activities,
especially a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing activities is provided in note
52. On initial application of the amendments, the Group is
not required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods. Apart from the additional disclosure in note 52, the
directors of the Company considered that these amendments
have had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

ERFEI RRIETI T EBMB
WMEEL ([ FEMBREE
all) s

EREERMETRZETREE
Bt
REEIERERREELRE UEHH
ARAEANEREFDHEEL AEE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 Cycle?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfer of Investment Property"

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

4 Effective date not yet been determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS
9 was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further
amended to bring into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge
accounting that will allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in the financial statements. A finalised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 to incorporate all
the requirements of HKFRS 9 that were issued in previous
years with limited amendments to the classification and
measurement by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category
for certain financial assets. The finalised version of HKFRS 9
also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for impairment
assessments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 (2014) to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+_-_A=+— EIJtiE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERA#FI REETEEMH

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING MEEA ([EREMBHREE

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) A1)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments EREMBHRELENFEIR(ZF

(Continued) —ME)eMIE (8

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities e METEARAFTEFAEREELS
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS BMAGBCHEMS BBV EWELER
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the FOR(ZE—NF )R TZeHEE
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to ZIEERBREBUNZABEATEE
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented B eBREMEEKREANZEY]  FRIE
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition REMEZENEFERZABEER
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in REB s EeEYABARIER L
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge 2iEE - eRBEZEERBRSI B2
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in ‘i\@%%@iﬁmﬁﬁ&xéi%ﬁﬁ
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in ZERP - REFEHEAFEI
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently ﬁJi EEAERAFEFABREEZS
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire MBEsrBEEATEEHENES
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial FEF e

liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

e Inthe aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment o FERERMEME MATEBEERHE
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s TREERRHEEHEERETER
expected credit losses on its financial assets and EEBBZEFRERTE ZEHRTEH
commitments to extend credit were added. Those Br T BB ERI B3 EREE
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS BRI - RIE BB MBS 2R
39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under the *kQ%E(:;ﬁ—@i)Zﬁfﬁﬁii’ﬁéﬁﬁ
impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer EEBEMEBECEEEFEES Y-
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before }iZ EREEHEHEEBEUR
credit losses are recognised. Instead, expected credit HETEHEEBEE CEH AR - NEW
losses and changes in those expected credit losses SHHYEEREEBE SHETE
should always be accounted for. The amount of expected o AR B VIRERUAREERR 2
credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect 28 TEILRERHEERS EREES
changes in credit risk since initial recognition and, BER -

consequently, more timely information is provided about
expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments
(Continued)

° HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a
risk component can be identified and measured and
does not distinguish between financial items and non-
financial items. The new model also enables an entity to
use information produced internally for risk management
purposes as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS
39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance
with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that
are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength of
the hedging relationship. This can be determined using
risk management data. This should reduce the costs of
implementation compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge
accounting because it reduces the amount of analysis
that is required to be undertaken only for accounting
purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The directors of the Company has performed a preliminary
analysis of the Group’s financial instruments as at 31
December 2017 based on the fact and circumstances existing
at that date. The directors of the Company have assessed the
impact of adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) on the Group’s results
and financial position, including the classification categories
and the measurement of financial assets, and disclosures, as
follows:

225 CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FTERA#H T RRESTEEBMT

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING WML ([ FEMBREE

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) A1)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments FEREMBHRELENFEIR(ZFE

(Continued) —ME)eMIE (®)

(a) Classification and measurement (a) #ERE
The Group’s available-for-sale investments, including REBEBZAIHEERE (PEREFR
those currently stated at cost less impairment, will either RABURES R 2 Al B IR E ) ik
be measured as fair value through profit or loss or be N EFFABRFENREE ST EE
designated with irrevocable election to present in other HERREMEZERRENATFEE
comprehensive income the changes in fair value. For o BIETERKRATEFABR SR
the financial liabilities designated at fair value through BEMNS BEEERBREZESHUBRAT
profit or loss, the change in fair value that is attributable BERENEMEEREAZT -

to changes in credit risk would be presented in other
comprehensive income.

(b) Impairment (b) e

The directors of the Company expect to apply the RAREZHREERE LA - BIRE
simplified approach and record lifetime expected credit REMEE S B FRIE A REE B
losses that are estimated based on the present value of HEHRTFHANMEREEZ8BRE
all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade HENA R FHEREEBBRAR:
receivables and lease receivable. For loan receivable, the HEREFT  ARAREREETEMNE
Company is required to recognised and measure either NIRRT E12EANTEHEES
12-month expected credit loss or a life time expected B —EMBEEEERIE - ERBEE
credit loss, depend on the fact and circumstances. The EFEBEAFEEIIEIERE S X
application of the expected credit loss model may result Hi B IB 2 EEBE WL NHER
in earlier recognition of credit losses for trade and other ZEBER 2 RMERE-

receivables and increase the amount of impairment
allowance recognised for these items.

The directors of the Company will perform a more AR EFHEEEFR 2O EF
detailed analysis which considers all reasonable and EE—VEERBERENER  AH
supportable information for the estimation of the effect of TR BB BMEENEIR (=F
adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014). Based on the preliminary —WHE) 2B - REBEILNME AR
assessment, the directors of the Company expect that AEERAEMNE B R EERZE9
the adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) will not have other R ZE—WF) B resRsE8ERGE
material impact on amounts reported in the Group’s EMRMEMSBEREMERY
consolidated financial statements. £
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS 15
introduces a model that applies to contracts with customers,
featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions
to determine whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) Identify the contract with the customer;
ii) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
i) Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

V) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the
financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts
with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The major sources of revenue of the Group are sales of goods
and provision of services as further detailed under “Revenue
recognition”. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised for
each of the performance obligations when control over a
good or service is transferred to a customer. The directors of
the Company have preliminarily assessed each type of the
performance obligations and consider that the performance
obligations are similar to the current identification of separate
revenue components under HKAS 18 Revenue. Furthermore,
HKFRS 15 requires the transaction price to be allocated to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis, which may affect the timing and amounts of
revenue recognition, and results in more disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

However, the directors of the Company expect that the
adoption of HKFRS 15 will not have a material impact on
the timing and amounts of revenue recognised based on the
existing business model of the Group as at 31 December
2017.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment in the
financial statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the
initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Lease liability is subsequently measured
by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payment made, and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments. Depreciation and impairment
expenses, if any, on the right-of-use asset will be charged to
profit or loss following the requirements of HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment, while interest accrual on lease liability will
be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17
Leases. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB91,323,000 as disclosed
in note 43. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon
the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of
new requirements may result changes in the measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The directors
of the Company are in the process to determine the amounts
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position, after taking
into account all practical expedients and recognition exemption
under HKFRS 16. The directors of the Company expect that
the adoption of HKFRS 16 will not have material impact on the
Group’s result but certain portion of these lease commitments
will be required to be recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFEXR

3.

231

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and investment property that are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Change in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of subsidiaries, it (i) derecognises
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiaries at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (i) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognise as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiaries at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
associates or joint ventures.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFHE K (@)

(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

o and assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRSs.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39 with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash generating unit (the “CGU”) (or
groups of CGU) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the associate’s or joint venture’'s losses (if any), the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise any additional
impairment loss with respect to its investment in the associate
or joint venture. Goodwill that forms part of the carrying
amount of an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
not separately recognised. The entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate or
joint venture. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (Continued)

When the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint
venture upon the Group losing significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
discontinues to apply equity method and any retained interest
is measured at fair value at that date which is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in
accordance with HKAS 39. Any difference between the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate or joint venture and the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the equity
method was discontinued is recognised in profit or loss. Any
amount previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that investment is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained earnings on the same basis as it would have been
required if the investee had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

When the Group’s ownership interest in an associate or a joint
venture is reduced, but the Group continues to apply the equity
method, the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest is reclassified to profit or
loss if that gain or loss would be required to be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets),
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFHEK (@)

(Continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all costs necessary to make the
sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFHE K (@)

(Continued)

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, being their fair value
at the date of the revaluation less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less. For
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits
as defined above.

Bank balance - trust account and funds
payable and amounts due to customers

Bank balance — trust account and funds payable and amounts
due to customers relate primarily to the online third party
payments service segment and arise due to the time to clear
transactions through external payment networks. When
customers fund their account using their bank account, or
withdraw money to their bank account, there is a clearing
period before the cash is received or settled. Customer
balances are held under online platform as direct claims against
the online platform are reflected on the consolidated balance
sheet as an asset under “bank balance-trust account” and
“funds payable and amounts due to customers” as a liability at
the same time.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”). The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in the
other income line item in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 6.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, loan receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts
due from associates, amounts due from related companies,
amounts due from non-controlling shareholders, pledged bank
deposits, bank balance — trust account and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
The Group has designated the unlisted equity securities and
the debt element of an investment in convertible bond as an
available-for-sale investment on initial recognition of those
items.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFHEK (@)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Avallable-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale equity financial assets that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuead)

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and loan receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuead)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods (see the accounting policy
below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and loan receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable or loan receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuead)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of
the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at FV'TPL

Financial liabilities, including the provision for financial
guarantee and preference shares of subsidiary are classified as
at FVTPL when the financial liabilities are either held for trading
or those designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss is included in the other gains and losses line item in profit
or loss and excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.
Fair value is determined in a manner described in note 6.

For the put option liabilities on non-controlling interests are
measured at present value of exercise price and are recorded
in “Other financial liabilities” on acquisition date, with a
corresponding amount debited to “Capital reserve” within
equity of the Group. All subsequent changes in the carrying
amount of the “Other financial liabilities” are recorded in equity.

&I A @
EHEERKATA (8)

BAFEAARD @B EE (&)
RUATERAT EMEBEENBRAFKIEESR:
e IZRNEHAEBMESL: X

o RYIPHERE  BRAKEAHEEREZ
EEnemTAES 287 BiTH
BEREHRENERN

o EBRAWETZITETIER WAl BMIE
Hih T Ao

WBEEESRABZERAMBRIENIA
TERTENTERFEER/RAFEFA

B

o BBEEEBRIABRSTELR
HERBRSER BB %

s FHERAGBEN - HEIREEXD
BMABER LMEZ —#D  WREA
SEHE 2 ERERLIRERBIRA
FEEASELMERR  BAESHE
ZERTDREREENAILREM] K

s FAHERABEKREE BAXZTER
ARPTETRZENEFR—#D  ME
B EAEIGR FHENAHA
W (BEXRBE) BEREAFERA

EL

BAFEF ARGz 2R A EIZAFER
B MREMFEREL ZTAKREHER
RAAEE Z HRABEENBET R - s
SERF R AR H e R ERIAE
AATEREAEMBENZERNNE -2
FlEZM et 2 T AEE -

LA RASEIE s 2 RA MR B TYIRTTE
BREASVTAEEESN HheRas)
AEME HESERAEEREAN[EAR
] M- THMSRAE] REBZAAE
Higggngm Ak



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tr & M B R R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities (other than the put option
liabilities as abovementioned)

Other financial liabilities, including accruals and other payables,
funds payables and amounts due to customers, amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders, amounts due to related
companies, borrowings, obligations under finance leases,
corporate bonds and liabilities component of convertible bond,
are subsequently measured at the amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expenses over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form as
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bond

Convertible bond issued by the Group that contain both the
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the convertible bond and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is included
in equity (convertible bond equity reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bond (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bond is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible bond equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible bond equity reserve
will be transferred to share premium). Where the option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible bond equity reserve will be released to the retained
earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bond are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bond using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

EARAEFTHR (&)

&I A @

AR RR &5 (%)

PR S EIR - ATRRRES 2 B EDH UBE
SR IR B S AR ANDBR - HE2S 35 (3EI5 B
B S W AANA T E B HE) - B
AR E SR EERN BB R
WEATIE (1 B AT IR PR (5 5 HE 2% MR T3 2
ISR T RO SE) - tHEEREH B
R {3 SR 171 - B AT SRR 1B B RS L B TS
TSI REIRBRF - NSRS ER
B o AR 25 S 1B 1B 2R R o

HBETARRESFA R IR IRALAER
BRBAIREOISEEBERERT DB
BRERH D 2R HKNAERRRAD L -
BREBERSY 2XBRAFARERD 2K
EE WA ERMEE - KAl R E S
fE s -

BOH R
EEREERNREREZALNENEE
WM EER SN (EEEEEemE
ErcREEREER BRI AR KE
W ABUERERMEE WAKE I &g
ERRBEBE B R KE R W
BEZTHZOCEHREE AASEgEER
REE - MHENHEEB IR IRE AR Wik
RIEAEGE - WASBERBMEESREE
BEREZBRE R LB AAEEE
BEwmRZESREE T KEmE
HIEHREEAEER-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tr & M B R R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bond (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. The Group derecognises
financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligation
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the PRC local government defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC, payments to the social insurance
agency pursuant to the relevant labour rules in Vietnam, and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service. Liabilities
recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax”, as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial
recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probably
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the assets realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment property that is measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
property are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amount receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business net of sale
related taxes.

Financial consultancy service income is recognised when the
services are provided (for example, financial advisory and
service fees for non-online loan financing transactions).

Online investment and technology-enabled lending service
income is recognised when the services are provided (for
example, financial advisory and service fees for online loan
financing transactions).

Third party payment service income is recognised when the
services are provided (for example, online loan provision
services to borrowers on behalf of funds providers).

Gain on transfer of rights on interests on loan receivables is
recognised when the rights and titles have been contractually
and legally passed, at which time the Group has transferred to
the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
rights.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

For the licensing revenue, the Group receives royalty income
from third-party licencees in exchange for the exclusive
operation of the Group’s leased games in certain regions and
providing related technical support. The royalty fees include an
upfront fee and, in certain cases, an additional fee during the
contracted license period, which is determined based on an
agreed amount when accumulated virtual currency purchased
by the players with accounts registered with the third parties
exceeds certain amounts. The upfront fee is recognised
rateably over the contracted license period. The additional
royalty fee is recognised upon the actual purchase by the
players exceeds the agreed amount in contract.

For the online game operation, the Group operates its online
games through cooperation with various third-party game
distribution platforms including online application stores,
web-based and social game portals and derives its revenue
from sales of in-game currency and items, such as virtual
products or tools via social game portals. The revenue is
recognised when the services are provided. Sales of goods
was recognised when the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

Interest income, including administrative fee income, from
financing service and a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income from financing service and a financial asset
(including the interest-bearing convertible bond designated as
an available-for-sale investment) is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

For the transaction verification services, the Group provided
computer processing activities within crypto currency
networks, commonly termed “crypto currency mining”. The
Company receives crypto currency as consideration for these
services. Revenue is measured based on the fair value of the
crypto currency received. The fair value is determined using the
spot price of the crypto currency on the date of receipt. Refer
to note 4 “Revenue from transaction verification service” for
further discussion of the Group’s accounting policy in respect
of revenue recognition and the judgement made in determining
that such services are provided.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operation are translated into presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expense are translated at the average rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over subsidiaries that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share-based payment reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share-
based payment reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to business associates

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured
at the fair values of the services received. The fair values of
the goods or services received are recognised as expenses,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based payment
reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or when the
counterparties render services, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFHEK (@)

(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to business associates (Continued)
When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are cancelled and
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-based
payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Crypto currencies

Crypto currencies are open-source software-based online
payment system where payments are recorded in a public
ledger using its own unit of account. The Group is engaged
into crypto currencies mining principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future and generating a profit from
fluctuations in price. The Group measures crypto currencies
at its fair value less costs to sell, with any change in fair value
less costs to sell being recognised in profit or loss in the period
of the change. Crypto currencies derecognised when the
group has transferred substantially all the risks and awards
of ownership. As a result of the crypto currencies protocol,
costs to sell them are immaterial in the current period and no
allowance is made for such costs.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

Crypto currencies fair value measurement is a Level 1 fair value
as it is based on a quoted (unadjusted) market price (Coindesk
exchange) in active markets for identical assets.

Crypto currencies are derecognised when the Group disposes
of them through its trading activities or when the Group
otherwise loses control and, therefore, access to the economic
benefits associated with ownership of the crypto currencies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEFHEK (@)

(Continued)

Crypto currencies (Continued)

Refer to note 4 “Crypto currencies” and “Fair value of crypto
currencies” for further discussion of the Group’s accounting
policy in respect of crypto currencies valuation and the
judgement made in determining that such inventories are
carried as commodity broker-trader inventory.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

De facto control over subsidiaries

Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership in Shenzhen
Qiyuan Tianxia Technology Company Limited Z Il R K T &t
AR AT (“Qyuan’), Leyu Limited (‘Leyu’), 5e$&Z AR
RA(FEEXM) and IERBEEEHAERBRIAF (B
[2l”), the Group is able to exercise control over the subsidiaries
above through the contractual arrangements.

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the
Group has control over the subsidiaries above based on
whether the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the subsidiaries above unilaterally. In making their
judgement, the directors of the Company considered the
Group’s rights through the contractual arrangements. After
assessment, the directors of the Company concluded that the
Group has sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the
relevant activities of the subsidiaries above and therefore the
Group has control over the subsidiaries above .
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment property

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment property that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment property
is not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time. Therefore, in measuring the
Group’s deferred taxation on investment property, the directors
of the Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amount of investment property measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised deferred
taxes on changes in fair value of investment property as the
Group is subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”) and
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) upon disposal of its investment
property.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss of trade
receivables, the Group takes into consideration the estimation
of future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of trade receivables is approximately
RMB417,369,000 (2016: RMB160,147,000), net of allowance
for doubtful debts of nil (2016: RMB2,984,000).

Impairment of loan receivables

The policy for impairment of loan receivables of the Group is
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of the receivables and on management’s judgements. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of loan receivables from these customers, if
applicable, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provision for impairment may be required. As at 31 December
2017, the carrying amount of loan receivables is approximately
RMB3,453,454,000 (2016: RMB3,469,688,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately RMB66,778,000
(2016: RMB18,824,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of loan receivables (Continued)

Loan receivables mainly include financing advances provided
to customers which are mainly secured by real estates and
other collaterals. Apart from assessing the financial positions
of customers, the management further reviews value of the
pledged real estates and other collaterals by reference to
recent market transactions in comparable properties or fair
values determined by the directors of the Company. If the
market value of secured real estates and other collaterals
is deteriorated and is below the carrying amount of the
corresponding financing advances, provision on impairment
may be required.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of the share options granted to the directors,
employees and business associates determined at the date
of grant of the respective share options is expensed over
the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the
Group’s share-based payment reserve. In assessing the fair
value of the share options, the generally accepted option
pricing models were used to calculate the fair value of the
share options. The option pricing models require the input
of subjective assumptions, including the volatility of its own
ordinary shares and the expected life of options. Any changes
in these assumptions can significantly affect the estimate of the
fair value of the share options. Details are set out in note 49.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of intangible assets

The management of the Group determines whether the
intangible assets are impaired (see the accounting policy
regarding impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill). The impairment loss for intangible assets is
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of
intangible assets have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates
such as the future revenue and discount rates. As at 31
December 2017, the carrying amounts of intangible assets are
approximately RMB178,831,000 (2016: RMB246,652,000), net
of provision for impairment of approximately RMB28,043,000
(2016: RMB4,820,000). An impairment loss of approximately
RMB23,223,000 (2016: RMB999,000) was recognised on
serval social games because their respective revenue stream
aligned with the social games had been slower than expected
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGU to which goodwiill
has been allocated. The value—in-use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of goodwill is
approximately RMB976,382,000 (2016: RMB932,711,000)
as detailed in note 21. No impairment loss (2016: nil) was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2017.
Provision for impairment losses of RMB8,919,000 (2016:
RMB8,919,000) were recognised as at 31 December 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+tF+_A=+— EIJtiE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment loss on interests in
associates

In determining whether the Group’s interests in associates are
impaired required an estimation of the recoverable amount.
Impairment assessment had been carried out at the end of
the reporting period on the investments in their entirety with
reference to the investee companies’ financial performance,
financial position. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of goodwill is approximately RMB951,311,000
(2016: RMB902,891,000) included in interests in associates
as detailed in note 23. As at 31 December 2017, interests
in associates are approximately RMB1,457,723,000 (2016:
RMB955,431,000). No impairment loss is made for both years.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group’s acquired licences are classified as an indefinite-
lived intangible assets in accordance with HKAS 38 “Intangible
Assets”. This conclusion is supported by the fact that there
were no specific terms for the rights and the directors of
the Company expected that the business underlying the
rights can be operated perpetually. Under HKAS 38, the
Group re-evaluates the useful lives of the licences at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the view of indefinite useful
life for the assets. At 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of licences of the Group are approximately RMB132,014,000
(2016: RMB132,014,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sales investments

The management of the Group reviews the available-for-sales
investments periodically to assess whether any impairment
losses exist and any indication of impairment. The objective
evidence of impairment for available-for-sale financial assets
includes adverse changes in the financial performance of
the investments, the management of the Group will also
consider the historical fluctuation records of market condition,
financial position and performance of related industry. As at
31 December 2017, the carrying amount of available-for-
sales investments is approximately RMB429,511,000 (2016:
RMB298,043,000).

Fair value of investment property

Investment property is stated at fair values based on the
valuations performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair values, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates of market
condition. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of
the Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of
the current market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the investment
property and the corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The carrying
amount of investment property measured at fair value at 31
December 2017 was approximately RMB576,000,000 (2016:
RMB574,000,000).

4.

—tFt-A=t—HLHFE

EXEHEREFFTIEEN
B E EZRIE (@)

T EEMNEERE (&)

A#tHEREZHE
AEEEEETHRIIHEERE U
ST E = A IR A AR (A B 18 R A ] R (E BT
RoAHHESREEZRERBEEERRE
BECZHBRAZTFES - REBER
EBhEERmMAsBREKES L BEE
RZMBRARKRE - R —LF+=
A=+—RH f#HEEREZERENA
AR #429,511,0007C (ZE—RF: ARK
298,043,0007T ) °

REYWEZ L TFE
BEMERBBE T BEMEMET ZEER
NFES R EE A FER  HEMNRY R
HMR 2B TEET 2 EEE AR - LKME
HERER AARERCATEEHE -
WAZ AN HERT A 2 R R IR TR © 5%
ERBZEDTBUREREME I ATE
RERaBRR EEME2ERGERAR D
BESEELHAEAZE RS —+tF+=
AZ+—B RAFEFEZKREVMEZE
E{E 4 A A R #576,000,00070 ( ZF — <
F: AR#574,000,0007T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tr & M B R R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The directors of
the Company are responsible in determining the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The directors of the
Company work closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. The directors of the Company regularly assess the
impact and the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the
fair value of certain types of financial instruments, including
preference shares of a subsidiary, provision for financial
guarantee, put option of non-controlling interest included in
“Other financial liabilities”. Note 6 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of various assets and
liabilities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the
related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
periods in which such determination are made.

Revenue recognition for gain on transfer of
rights on interests on loan receivables

The management of the Group assesses the timing if the
rights and titles on interests on loan receivables have been
contractually and legally passed to the buyer, at which time
the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the respective rights and revenue is
recognised by the Group accordingly.

Property, plant and equipment

The Group has assessed the basis of depreciation of the
crypto currencies computer mining hardware at 25% per
month on a diminishing value basis.

The crypto currencies computer mining hardware is used to
generate crypto currencies (refer to discussion on Revenue
from transaction verification services discussed in Note 4).
The rate at which the Group generates crypto currencies
and, therefore, consumes the economic benefits of its crypto
currencies computer mining hardware is influenced by a
number of factors including the following:

- the complexity of the mining process which is driven by
the algorithms contained within the crypto currencies
open source software;

—tFE+ A=+ BILEE
4. EXREFFEGRMEFTHEEE

BEERIE @

T EEMNEERE (&)

7 #%
RNEBAHNZEAEEROTIE - BEH
BERESERI BB IERRER - BIE
ﬁiﬁ#%ﬁﬂﬁ%%@ﬂéiﬁﬁﬂwﬁmﬁ
EMSE ARS8V L amE
HRAR) Y AT 15 750 R I A 5 T 4B 4 o

HEFRENEAE L ERE R
T HE FR A 75

MM E R Z RN REECIRANRESR)
BRTEN ASEEEENMERHK  th -
AEEEHEERNZ AR EARR K
CI3REL T BT R A S E E R

WEBERR
AEEREERBEESNZ SR EMIZE
B ITEEENEREA25% °

=

IZEBEREEREAANERMNEEE
2 A MEAM BRI R E R ZHBEZRE 2 W
) o ARKEMNEEB AR KA LB R
TEKE Hé&%ﬁi#zﬁélgﬂ/“‘T’ﬂJylﬁ
E3 2

>|/—\

H Ek}

- MEEEREREHREBEEEEEN
PEAREZEHRER:



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

- the general availability of appropriate computer
processing capacity on a global basis (commonly referred
to in the industry as hashing capacity which is measured
in Petahash units); and

- technological obsolescence reflecting rapid development
in the crypto currencies mining computer hardware
industry such that more recently developed hardware
is more economically efficient to run in terms of crypto
currencies mined as a function of operating costs,
primarily power costs i.e. the speed of hardware
evolution in the industry is such that later hardware
models generally have faster processing capacity
combined with lower operating costs and a lower cost of
purchase.

Because of both the Group and the industry’s relatively short
life cycle to date management has only limited data available
to it. Furthermore the data available also includes data derived
from the use of economic modelling to forecast future crypto
currencies generation and the assumptions included in such
forecasts, including crypto currencies price and network
difficulty, are derived from management assumptions which
are inherently judgemental. Based on current data available
management has determined that 25% diminishing value best
reflects the current expected useful life of crypto currencies
computer mining hardware, the diminishing value determined
for financial year ended 31 December 2017. Management
will review this estimate at each reporting date and will revise
such estimates as and when data comes available. Whilst it
is currently expected that the Group will dispose by sale of
crypto currencies mining hardware at the end of its useful life
due to the small volume of such transactions to date the crypto
currencies computer mining hardware has been assumed to
have no residual value at the end of its useful life. Management
will review the appropriateness of its assumption of nil residual
value at each reporting date.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Revenue from transaction verification service

The Group generates revenue by providing computer
processing activities for crypto currencies generation and
transaction processing services on the public ledger system
known as the crypto currencies Blockchain. In the crypto-
currency industry such activity is generally referred to as
crypto currency mining. The Group receives consideration
for providing such crypto currency mining activities in the
form of crypto currencies. The Group has determined that
the substance of its crypto currency mining activities is
service provision under the scope of HKAS 18 Revenue
notwithstanding that there is no contractual arrangement
under which it provides such services as the services are
provided instead through open source software being the
crypto currencies protocol. Furthermore, the nature of the
crypto currencies protocol is such that the Group is unable
to determine in advance the consideration that it will receive,
if any, for the crypto currency mining services that it provides
and, therefore, the Group is unable to estimate reliably the
outcome of its mining activities in advance of actual receipt
of consideration in the form of crypto currencies. Because
of the uncertainty over both the timing and amount of the
consideration that the Group will receive for undertaking mining
activities, management has determined that revenue should
only be recognised on actual receipt of crypto currencies as
consideration for services provided.

Crypto currencies received for mining activities are, therefore,
recognised as revenue at fair value on the day of receipt in
a private crypto currencies wallet controlled by the Group.
The fair value of crypto currencies received is determined in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, see Note
4 “Fair value of crypto currencies” below. Crypto currencies
received are recognised immediately as “crypto currencies”
into the trading book. As revenues from crypto currency mining
activity is measured on an as received basis revenues are
neither earned on a constant basis over time, nor necessarily in
a direct relationship to computer processing capacity utilised.
As a consequence, future generation of crypto currencies and,
therefore future revenues, from crypto currency mining activities
may be subject to volatility due to factors outside the Group’s
control.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Crypto currencies

Management considers that the Group’s crypto currencies are
a commodity. As Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards do
not define the term ‘commodity,” management has considered
the guidance in HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors (‘HKAS 8”) that allows
an entity to consider the most recent pronouncements of
other standard-setting bodies that use a similar conceptual
framework to develop accounting standards, other accounting
literature and accepted industry practice to the extent that
these do not conflict with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Hong Kong
Accounting Standards Board Conceptual Framework. Under
United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US
GAAP) as set out in the Master Glossary of the Accounting
Standards Codification, a commodity has been defined as
“products whose units are interchangeable, are traded on an
active market where customers are not readily identifiable,
and are immediately marketable at quoted prices.” Based on
this definition and the guidance in HKAS 8, management has
therefore determined that crypto currencies are a commodity
notwithstanding that crypto currencies lack physical substance.

The Group’s activities include trading crypto currencies,
primarily the buying and selling of crypto currencies and,
therefore, subsequent to initial recognition, crypto currencies
(whether received as consideration for mining activities or
acquired through purchase) is held at fair value less costs to
sell, reflecting the Group’s purpose of holding such crypto
currencies as a commodity broker-trader in accordance with
HKAS 2 Inventories. As a result of the crypto currencies
protocol, costs to sell crypto currencies are immaterial and no
allowance is made for such costs. Changes in the amount of
crypto currencies based on fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Crypto currencies (Continued)

Crypto currencies is derecognised when the Group disposes
of the inventory through its trading activities or when the
Group otherwise loses control, and, therefore, access to the
economic benefits associated with ownership of the crypto
currencies.

Fair value of crypto currencies

Crypto currencies is measured at fair value using the quoted
price in United States dollars on the Coindesk exchange
(www.coindesk.com) at closing Coordinated Universal Time.
Management considers this fair value to be a Level 1 input
under the HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement fair value
hierarchy as the price on the Coindesk exchange represents
a quoted price (unadjusted) in an active market for identical
assets. Management has selected the Coindesk exchange as
it is @ major crypto currencies exchange with appropriate size
and liquidity to provide reliable evidence of fair value for the size
and volume of transactions that are reasonably contemplated
by the Group.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BEXEKREIR
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to AEBEREEANBEEZENREASEES
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, WEBRBERFEBELEELELE tMEBE
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders R KFEIRE ENER MRS EBURES
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and BEKANME HEARFRELRE A
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing HabF A AT BIER = -
access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its REEBESR LT AERRERRRN X
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher EE UERESREE®RIEN T A EHEL
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels BafEEKFER T E RS RO E
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a TARIE 2 [ ES 18 - I R4S B IR B ) &
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital L EREBEL AR
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net AEELRFEBEEARLKEBHERZEE-
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, net debt is defined as all REME BEFBEATEEIEE BE
borrowings, obligation under finance leases, corporate bonds MEAE RAEFRAIBRRESMRITA
and convertible bond, less bank balances and cash and capital BEES MEABREESNMEID -
comprises all components of equity.
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H
2017 2016
—FE—+t# ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREEF T
Borrowings B 3,127,035 3,367,828
Less: Bank balances and cash o IRITAERR MR ® (969,249) (1,233,391)
Net debt EHFH 2,157,786 2,134,437
Equity attributable to owners of AARBEANELES
the Company 5,205,148 4,195,843
Net debt-to-capital ratio FARBEANLILE 41% 51%

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of the review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the raising of new debts, the repayment of existing
debts, payment of dividend and issuance of new shares. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Categories of financial instruments

6. T H

a) TMIAMNSE

As at 31 December

281

R+-ZRA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—t#& ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBEFIT
Financial assets EREE
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE L BIEE 429,511 298,043
Loans and receivables (including &R & EWFRIE (B
bank balances and cash) RITeEmNMIRS) 7,370,451 5,755,802
Financial assets at fair value BAVEFABREZLZ
through profit or loss EREE
Held for trading investments BIEEBERE 332,082 23,502
8,132,044 6,077,347
Financial liabilities CRIAE
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFABRZZEHERE
through profit or loss 880,550 390,902
At amortised costs S R AR 5,358,504 4,014,407

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, trade receivables, loan
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from joint
ventures, amounts due from associates, amounts due
from related companies, held for trading investments,
pledged bank deposits, bank balance — trust account,
bank balances and cash, accruals and other payables,
funds payables and amounts due to customers, amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders, amounts due to
related companies, borrowings, corporate bonds and
convertible bonds, preference shares of a subsidiary,
provision for financial guarantee and other financial
liabilities. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (including interest rate risk, other price risk
and foreign currency risk). The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

AEENTZeRITABEATHEE
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FENRIR - PRI A & (b RIA - B Uk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to loan
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to the credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In the course of loan portfolio management, the Group
further minimises the credit risk regarding to interests
receivable from loan receivables by transferring the rights
on interests on loan receivables to buyers for certain
consideration, at which time substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the rights have been passed to
buyers by the Group.

10% (2016: 25%) of all financing advances given out
as at 31 December 2017 are backed by real estates
situated in the PRC, as security. The Group also focuses
on identifying legal ownership and the valuation of the
real estate collaterals. An advance given out is based on
the value of collaterals and is in general approximately
24%-100% (2016: 2% — 100%) of the estimated value of
the collaterals. The Group closely monitors the ownership
and value of the collaterals throughout the loan period.
Advances to customers are due by the date as specified
in the corresponding loan agreement.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. 7% (2016: 6%) of
the total loan receivables as at 31 December 2017 was
due from the Group’s largest customer and 27% (2016:
28%) of the total loan receivables as at 31 December
2017 was due from the Group’s five largest customers
for the Group’s other loan business and entrusted loan
business.

rE MR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE —
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b)

2 83 CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, including Hong Kong,
which accounted for 100% (2016: 100%) of the total loan
receivables as at 31 December 2017.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due from
related companies, amounts due from associates, and
amounts due from joint ventures, the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from default of the counterparties are
limited as the counterparties have sufficient net assets
to repay its debts and a good history of repayment. The
Group does not expect to incur a significant loss for
uncollected amounts due from these related companies,
associates, and joint ventures.

With respect to credit risk arising from loan receivables,
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from default of
the counterparties are limited as the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability
of each individual receivables at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk for bank balance — trust account, bank
balances and pledged bank deposits is considered
minimal as such amounts are placed with banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
into account of the collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of loan receivables and trade receivables
as at the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December
2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position and the amount of contingent
liabilities in relation to financial guarantee issued by the
Group as disclosed in note 41.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loan receivables and
the provision for financial guarantee under Leyu are set
out in notes 26 and 41, respectively.

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings, ensures compliance with loan covenants
and other source of funding and considers the risk is
minimal.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_Z—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. TRLT A (@)

c) Liquidity risk (Continued) c) MEEEER 8
Liquidity risk tables EBE £ b %
More than one  More than two

Ondemand  year butnot years but not Total
or within one  exceeding two exceeding five More than  undiscounted Carrying
year years years five years cash flow amount

—EpE ZENE REBRH

HERE EFER BFER REnE
- [iE:2 if AL an kA

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFRE  ARETR  ARETR  AR®TR  ARMTR  ARETR

As at 31 December 2017 RZF-tE+ZA=Z+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ /it &M E
Accruals and other payables EirERREMERTA 815,493 - - - 815,493 815,493
Amounts due to non-controling R SERRRR A
shareholders 1,541 - - - 1,541 1,541
Funds payables and amounts due to ~ BE & ENFARENEF A
customers 1,226,622 - - - 1,226,622 1,226,622
Amounts due to related companies [ERBEARNE 187,813 - - - 187,813 187,813
Borrowings (Note) &8 (M) 1,688,672 127,284 115,557 - 1,931,513 1,760,158
Corporate bonds RalfEk 3,664 3,664 75,770 - 83,098 61,732
Convertible bond ThiRkES 345,126 1,021,914 - - 1,367,640 1,305,145
Provision for financial guarantee HBEREE 225,553 - - - 225,553 225,553
4,495,084 1,152,862 191,327 - 5,839,273 5,584,057
More than one  More than two
On demand yearbutnot  years but not Total
orwithinone  exceeding two  exceeding five More than  undiscounted Carrying
year years years five years cash flow amount
—FNL ZENE RERH
BRERS BTER BFER Reing
—FR mE nE AENE B REfME
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-RFTZA=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities T4 2@&HE
Accruals and other payables [ BRRAMENTE 215,008 - - - 215,008 215,008
Amounts due to non-controling [EEE TS e
shareholders 1,597 - - - 1,597 1,597
Funds payables and amounts dueto ~ EAEERTERERNZFFA
customers 239,991 - - - 239,991 239,991
Amounts due to related companies ENBRARZE 180,983 - - - 189,983 189,983
Borrowings (Note) 8 (M) 1,080,819 806,539 120,640 - 2,007,998 1,820,206
Corporate bonds NAEF 3,938 3,940 93,942 81,002 182,822 154,450
Convertible bond WihkES 103,878 392,843 1,464,047 - 1,960,768 1,393,172
Provision for financial guarantee HEEREE 42,837 - - - 42,837 49,837

1,878,051 1,203,322 1,678,629 81,002 4,841,004 4,057,244
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #EZ - =

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

c)

d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Note:

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the ‘on demand or less than 1 year’ time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans amounted
to RMB98,341,000 (2016: RMB112,000,000).
account the Group’s financial position, the directors of the
Company do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
RMB175,188,000 (2016: RMB205,387,000).

Taking into

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount
will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its loan receivables, bank balances,
borrowings, corporate bonds and convertible bond.
Bank balances, borrowings and deposits received at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, while loan receivable, borrowings, corporate
bonds and convertible bond at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.
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e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &z —=
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

d) Interest rate risk (Continued) d)

The Group’s loan receivables, bank balances, pledged
bank deposits, borrowings, corporate bonds, obligation
under finance lease and convertible bond and their
respective interest rates as at 31 December 2017 and
2016 are set as below:

&+ A=+ —ALEE
6. ERET B (@)

T 2= BB (@)
AEEBR - ZE—+FR T —XF
+=ZA=+— EZFWEﬁxﬁﬁ
BREEBRROTEFR - EE -QFE
5 REMEE %ﬁ&T%kE%M&E
FEREF =TT

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+-—H
Interest rate 2017 2016
EUES —F—-tf —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBFTT
Fixed rate loan receivables 2017: 0.33%-3% per month
(2016: 0.33% — 3% per month) 3,453,454 3,469,688
EEEWER —t % : 5 H0.33%-3%
—E—RF:HFH0.33%-3%)
Fixed rate corporate bonds 2017: 5.5% p.a.
(2016: 5.5% p.a.) 61,732 65,265
ERARAES ti‘iiSWﬁ
T—RNF BF55%)
Variable rate bank balances 2017: 0.01%-5.8% p.a.
(2016: 0.01% - 0.35% p.a.) 969,249 1,233,391
FRIRITRE S —+ & §F0.01%-5.8%
(ZZE—R"F:85001% -0.35%)
Fixed rate borrowings 2017: 413%-15.8% p.a.
(2016: 4.13% - 20.0% p.a.) 1,370,298 1,456,873
EREE —+ & §F4.13%-15.8%
(ZZT—RF 8%4.13% -20.0%)
Variable rate borrowings 2017: 2.8%-7.0% p.a.
(2016: 2.80% - 7.0% p.a.) 389,860 363,333
FEEE —tF FF2.8%-7.0%
—E-RF:BF2.80%-7.0%)
Fixed rate convertible bond 2017: 5.9%-7.0% p.a.
(2016: 5.9% - 7.0% p.a.) 1,305,145 1,393,172

E B A A E 75

— & BF59%-7.0%
(ZE—XNE: FF59%-7.0%)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE —

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable rate
bank balances, pledged bank deposits and borrowings.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. The basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

50 basis points have been used for variable rate bank
balances and borrowings.

For variable rate bank balances, if the interest rates had
been 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB3,497,000 (2016:
RMB4,974,000).

For variable rate borrowings, if the interest rates
had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB268,000 as of 31 December 2017
(2016: RMB298,000).

This sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at 31
December 2017 and 2016 and had been applied to the
exposure to interest risk for financial investments and
borrowings in existence at those dates. The analysis has
been performed on the same basis throughout the two
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &EZ - =

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

e)

—tFt-A=t—HLHFE

6. T E @

Foreign currency risk e) HMEE = Bx
RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. ARBE I ERABAEINE - FIES R
All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must AREBRINEZR GARBBFEHARIE
take place through the People’s Bank of China or other T E MR EITINE B B
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. HEIT  INERZ ZFERMAERTIREAR
The exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange IRITFTRAER (EEZREKEE) -
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand.
Certain amounts due from joint ventures and other EWREEPEZ A TRIEREME
receivables are denominated in RMB, amounts due to HIBAANREEHE - BN IR R R R
non-controlling shareholders are denominated in HK$, EHABILAHE BTRERKERNUET
certain loan receivables are denominated in US$, certain FHE- B TRITEBUAARE BT
bank balances are denominated in RMB, HK$, US$, VND EoT BEE R TEHE - B TR
and SGD and certain bank borrowings and convertible TEE RATRRES AETEHE - E
bonds are denominated in US$, which are currencies TREBEEERNEEEUIINCZE
other than the functional currency of the relevant group o
entities.
The following table shows the Group’s significant TRINTAEERREPHARAEREKX
exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency NEEEENEEEE UGS §+@Z
risk arising from recognised assets and liabilities EREREERBEMEEZEBER
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
Liabilities Assets
g% BE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+ZHA=+-H R+ZHA=+-H
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+tf —ZE-RE —F-tf “EANF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETL ARBETT AREFT
HK$ BT 749 807 29 2,496
RMB AR - - 507 499
USs$ T 508,608 541,700 270,591 134,691

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

2 89 CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017

R & B A I R A INEE R IR
ﬁio ﬁ EEE/E\%%Kﬁ‘\MJ—LEAA’
ERHEREFBEIHEAINE R



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

e) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

If a 5% increase/decrease in HK$ against the RMB
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit after tax for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB44,000 (2016: decrease/increase by
approximately RMB48,000). 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items. The sensitivity analysis includes cash and cash
equivalents where the denomination is HK$ or RMB other
than the functional currencies of the respective group
entities.

If a 5% increase/decrease in US$ against the RMB
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit after tax for the year would increase/decrease
by approximately RMB8,450,000 (2016: increase/
decrease by approximately RMB16,341,000). 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items. The sensitivity analysis includes cash
and cash equivalents where the denomination is US$
other than the functional currency.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group’s equity
price risk is mainly concentrated on equity instruments
operating in operation of P2P financing platform and
other loan facilitation service business sector quoted in
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition,
the Group has appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
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f)

g)

Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined

based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of
the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 5% (2016: 5%) higher/lower, post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2017 would increase/
decrease by RMB12,510,000 (2016: increase/decrease
by RMB981,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of held for trading investments.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair value
hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial assets and
liabilities into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of these
financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

6. I E @

f)

g)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6. T E @

g) Fair value measurements of financial g) EMIEZATEFE @)
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets BEERENULTFEFTBEZE
and financial liabilities that are measured EBsHEERTHMERZ A
at fair value on a recurring basis FlE
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial rEEETeREERERAGENZ
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each SHMEMRCATEFE - SRMEE
reporting period. The level in the fair value hierarchy (BE)BEHSAZATEERAZ
within which the financial asset (liability) is categorised Ko ERE AT EFEBEA &R
in its entirety is based on the lowest level of input B NERIE D - AEBAAFER
that is significant to the fair value measurement. The A BIRARzemEE (BE) HE
financial assets (liabilities) of the Group at fair value in the DRATZAFEER:
statement of financial position are grouped into fair value
hierarchy as follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
%—4 E4 ] st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®FT
31 December 2017 —5—t%£+ZH
=+-H
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFHEANERZ
SHMBE
Non-derivative financial assets ~ 3FHT4H S REE
~ Held for trading investments ~BIEEERE 299,551 - 32,531 332,082
Financial liabilities at FVTPL ~ #AT{EFANEHZ
SHER
Preference share of a subsidiary ~ —FRHB AR 2 BELK - - 118,997 118,997
Provision for financial guarantee & BRIE(RE - - 225,553 225,553
Other financial liabilities Hthemas - - 536,000 536,000
- - 880,550 880,550
31 December 2016 —F-R"E+ZH
=+-H
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFANEHZ
SREE
Non-derivative financial assets FTEEREE
— Held for trading investments ~HEEERE 23,502 - - 23,502
Financial liabilities at FVTPL B AFEHANEHZ
SHaE
Preference share of a subsidiary ~ —fEHI B2 A 2 Bk - - 71,990 71,990
Provision for financial guarantee & BRIER B - - 42,837 42,837
Other financial liabilities Hite@mes - - 276,075 276,075
- - 390,902 390,902
There were no transfers between levels of fair value RAEAFERBAFE AFESERH
hierarchy in current and prior year. i3 = Ec 0
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

g) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and

inputs used).

Financial assets/
financial liabilities

SREE/SRAR

Fair value

AT

Fair value
hierarchy

NTERS

—tFt-A=t—HLHFE

6. T E @

g £EMIEZA

YEEFE (&

AR H R ST E A2 A
E@-HEERSAE EZ L

F1E (4)
THRIEHEEHNNETZEEMEE
kemaBdEs A E (LERMEKAM
BRERERBAN) 2ER -

Valuation Significant

technique(s) and unobservable

key input(s) input(s)

BEAERIEEREA BEXTABRERBA

As at 31 December 2017
RZF-t&+ZA=+-H
Financial assets at FVTPL

- Held for trading investments

BATE #M%Z%ﬂéﬁ

B
H{E

Financial liabilties at FVTPL
- Other financial liabilities

BATEG ARG ERAR
-EiteRER

- Provision for financial guarantee

-ERERER

- Preference shares of a subsidiary

——HHEARZERR

As at 31 December 2016
RZF-A+-ZA=+-H
Financial liabilties at FVTPL

- Other financial liabilities

BRATESABRZERER
-EteRARk
- Provision for financial guarantee

-EREREE

- Preference shares of a subsidiary

—FHEAR ELR

Assets - RMB32,531,000

EE- NR%32,531,0007

Liabilities - RMB536,000,000

& & - AR#536,000,0007C

Liabilities - RMB225,653,000

BB A\E#%225,553,0007C

Liabilities - RMB118,997,000

B - AR¥%118,997,0007

Liabilities - RMB276,075,000

& AR%276,075,0007C

Liabilities - RMB42,837,000

BfE- AR 42,837,000

Liabilties - RMB71,990,000

BE- NR%71,990,000C

Level 3

Level 3

E=R

Level 3

£

Level 3

F=R

Level 3

E=8

Level

F=R

Binominal option pricing model based on
the stock price, volatilty, dividend yield,
risk free rate and option life
(notes 4 and 5)

ERRE RE REKEE ERRFE
RHEFS Y~ Iﬁﬁ#ﬁéiﬁ‘ 6
GRS

Binomial option pricing model based on the
stock price, volatility, dividend yield, risk
free rate and option life (Notes 2 and 3)

ERRE KRR REMaE.
BERIERBEESS
A BB ERS
(Wi5H2R3)

Present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the required yield (Note 1)

mEEZ*Xﬁfmgu
%ﬁﬂ&ﬁn it pacl:)
(PzE1)

Black-Scholes option pricing model based
on the stock price, volatility, dividend
yield, risk free rate and option life (Notes
2and 3)

ERNRE RE RESEE
ERRANERBEEH 2
—BR g A
(W3E2R3)

Binomial option pricing model based on the
stock price, volatility, dividend yield, risk
free rate and option life (Notes 2 and 3)

HRRE %R REKEE
ERRNERAEFHL
“EABEEER
(GEZE)

Present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the required yield (Note 1)

RANET I ARBEREN
RENEERR 2 RE
(PizE1)

Black-Scholes option pricing model based
on the stock price, volatility, dividend
yield, risk free rate and option life (Notes
2andl)

ERRE R RSUER.
BERTIERBEELY
—EABiE R
(MzF2R3)
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Dividend yield taking into account management’s
expectation of market conditions of specific
industries at 0%.

BELREERURTIELTRIRSL
FRE&0%-

Dividend yield and the expected volatility taking into
account management’s expectation of market
conditions of specific industries at 0% and at
74.51%, respectively.

BEZREBEHBEELAN
B BREEARIR0%RT451%

The required yield was determined with reference
to the historical default rate and credit rating of
the borrowers and remaining time to maturity at
5.00% ]

REUEE2EEFAZBEEDEREETRR
B 5 A 2 FIHE R Z5.00%EE -

Dividend yield and the expected volatility taking into
account management's expectation of market
conditions of specific industries at 0% and at
67.59%, respectively.

BEREREARENELTR
BB REERBHRED P A%
67.59% °

Dividend yield and the expected volatility taking into
account management’s expectation of market
conditions of specific industries at 0% and at
74.51%, respectively.

BZEEBEABEIELNN
LB BREEARIR0%RT451%

The required yield was determined with reference
to the historical default rate and credit rating of
the borrowers and remaining time to maturity at
5.39% )

ATUEE2ZERA 2 BEEDEREETRR
FEREEIH A 2RISR F125.30%E 2 o

Dividend yield and the expected volatility taking into
account management’s expectation of market
conditions of specific industries at 0% and at
67.59%, respectively.

BEZEEBEUBEIELH)
BB/ BREERRS )ﬁﬂl
67.59% °

AR0%R
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6. &Rt T H

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

g) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes:

1)

A 5% increase in the interest yield used in isolation would
result in a decrease in the fair value measurement of the
provision for financial guarantee by RMB168,000 (2016:
RMB87,000), and vice versa.

A 5% increase in the dividend yield used in isolation would
result in a decrease in the fair value measurement of other
financial liabilities and preference share of a subsidiary
by RMB860,000 (2016: RMB437,000) and RMB65,000
(2016: RMB29,000), respectively, and vice versa.

A 5% increase in the volatility used in isolation would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of other
financial liabilities and preference share of a subsidiary
by RMB463,000 (2016: RMB259,000) and RMB110,000
(2016: RMB59,000), respectively, and vice versa.

A 5% increase in the dividend yield used in isolation would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of
convertible bonds included in held for trading investments
by RMB45,000 (2016: nil) and RMB30,000 (2016: nil) for,
respectively, and vice versa.

A 5% increase in the volatility used in isolation would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of
convertible bonds included in held for trading investments
by RMB89,000 (2016: nil), and RMB77,000 (2016: nil)
vice versa.

Valuation process

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for the fair value measurements
are determined by the directors of the Company and the
independent qualified valuer.

tF+ZA=1T— EIJtﬁE

(%)

g EHITEZATESE (@)

RS

BEULNFHEFAEZX

EEzHEEREMBERZ A
Fole (4)

B &L

1)

%Wiﬁﬁﬂ%%/\ﬂ‘t%%ﬂ%ﬁi&
TRERBEEBZ AFEFERD
R#168,0007T ( ZZF—/<4F : }\Eﬁé}
87,0007T) * R Z IR8A »

ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁu&zﬁé%ﬁét%%ﬂ%%
HHEMEHmEERLR—MHEBEA
BEBZ AFEFEDRIRD
#860,0007T ( = Z — /N4« /\Eﬁ%
437,0007t ) & A R #65,0007T (==
—NF: AR¥29,0007T) ' R Z IR
o

BB R IRIG IN5% I E R E S
BmAER—BHBARZELRZA
FEFTE5BIE A R%463,0007T
(ZF—RF: AR¥259,0007T) &
AR¥110,0007T (ZZF—RF: AR
#59,0007T) * R Z IRFR

B AR B R G IN5%H5 B 5

BIEEBREMBPSITBRRESZ R

BRI E 5 R A R #45,00007T

(_;—/\¢ ) & AR#30,0007T
=z /\i T)&ZD‘T\%\"

BYBE AR R N5% G BEBUHEE
BEREMBEAIRBRESZATE
T2 B8 i AR #89,0007T (=%
—A"FT)RARM77,0007T (=
T—RE ) RZIFK

GREELE
AEEETEE R A FEFEEM
BHREMAGE ARREENEILAER

(CREGIVEPN

FEEEEE

BhER

EREBEBA
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

g) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 3 inputs are not available,
the Group engages independent qualified valuer to
perform the valuation. The directors of the Company
work closely with the independent qualified valuer to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. The directors of the Company will review
the cause of fluctuations in fair value of the assets and
liabilities annually.

7. TURNOVER 7.

The principal activities of the Group are provision of traditional
financial services and related financing consultancy services
including entrusted loan service, real estate-backed loan
service, pawn loan service, other loan service and microfinance
service, and internet financing service including third party
payment service, online investment and technology-enabled
lending service and related activities on loan portfolio
management, as well as provision of social gaming services,
provision of IT solution services and provision of transaction
verification services.
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TURNOVER (continued)

Turnover represents interest income (either from entrusted
loans, pawn loans, real estate-backed loans, other loans and
micro loans), financial consultancy service income, third party
payment service income, online investment and technology-
enabled lending service income, social gaming service income,
IT solutions services income, transaction verification services
and gain on transfer of interest rights, net of corresponding
sales related taxes. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised in turnover for the year is as follows:

7.

rE MR R

E—tFt-A=1— EIJtEE

—E X 10 )

LRBIEFIR AR 2 AR E TR Z F B
A (CREZRER HEER FHERRE
Fo HER R NEER) W HARER
A BZIMNRBEA - ERERE MR
RENE FAREUA AL B BRSO~ ITHZ
RITERBFWA - X B BEZRG LEEN R
Rz W AFENEEBETER ZWA
ZEEBRNBEREENT

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-H=+—HILEE

2017 2016
—F—tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Interest income FEWN
Entrusted loan service income EZXEZTRBUA 89,126 116,264
Other loan service and real estate- B ERRS & E D E IR IT
backed loan service income BRI WA 366,150 260,515
Microfinance service income NEERLE RS U A - 156
455,276 376,935
Financial consultancy BB a5 s AR N
service income 70,685 53,053
Third party payment EEHETRFLN
service income 338,950 189,983
Online investment and technology- ##R#ZERFI155E8 85
enabled lending service income BRI N 3,334,003 366,517
Transaction verification service X EEGRFERA
income 289,063 -
Gain on transfer of rights HEBEWNESFEEFZHZE
on interests on loan receivables 31,132 -
Others Hith 285,901 89,189
Turnover EERHE 4,805,010 1,075,677
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8.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial data and information provided regularly to the
Group’s chief operation decision maker (“CODM”), which are
the most senior executive management, for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

The directors of the Company have organised the Group into
different segments by types of services provided, of which the
“Blockchain service” was new segment identified for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

1. Traditional loans and financing — provision of financing
services in the PRC and Hong Kong;

2. Third party payment service — provision of online third
party payment services and prepaid card issuance
business;

3. Online investment and technology-enabled lending
service — provision of internet loan financing services in
the PRG;

4. Blockchain services — provision of transaction verification
services in Hong Kong, Canada and Georgia; and

5. Others — provision of social gaming service in the PRC,
provision of IT solution services in Vietham and property
investment.

8.

—tFt-A=t—HLHFE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FEMEHR @)
Segment revenue and results TEHBNREE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—FE—ftEF A=+ —HIEE
Online
investment
and
technology-
Traditional Third party enabled
loans and payment lending Blockchain
financing service service services Others Total
ERRER
BRER %=F R EE
e ZIRH SHRB ERERS Hitr CHi
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRT  AR®Tn  ARETR  AR®Fr  ARETR  ARET:x
REVENUE [\ON
External income and gain SR 557,093 338,950 3,334,003 289,063 285,901 4,805,010
Segment results PEBEE 104,005 186,175 851,135 216,828 45,019 1,403,162
Share of results of associates 3 UNS 64,283
Unallocated other income FAEEMBA 22,537
Other gains and losses ElaRER 20,625
Change in fair value of -ANBARzEERZ
preference share of a subsidliary ATEES (47,007)
Gain on deemed disposal of RIEHERBARZWE
subsidiaries 3,303
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR Wz 408,098
Share-based payment expenses RGBT 2% 0 (160,684)
Interest expenses FEHY (73,735)
Unallocated expenses RARRAE (92,435)
Profit before tax BR AR 1,548,147
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_Z—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FEMEHR @)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) SEWMN R ELE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEz—F f\ff—/—:ﬁ_: +—HIFFEF
Online
investment
and
technology-
enabled
Traditional loans Third party lending
and financing - payment service service Others Total
ERBRER
BREX ) R EEE)
REA& SR BRI Hit CH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT ARBTTT ARETT ARBTTL AREFR
REVENUE [N
External income and gain SO E 429,988 189,983 366,517 89,189 1,075,677
Segment results DEEE 74,455 133,934 202,194 73,619 484,202
Share of results of associates Fﬁ YN 45,747
Unallocated other income AEEBBA 14,448
Other gains and losses H‘rﬁll& s RER 4,414
Change in fair value of derivative FTETARTBRKES
and embedded derivative ENTET AR A2
components of convertible bond AFEES (208)
Loss on disposal of an associate ~ HE—FBERFZEE (797)
Loss on deemed disposal of RIELE—BHE AR EB1E
an associate (2,029)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZHE 37
Share-based payment expenses WA 14 2 Z i (109,986)
Interest expenses FERE (2,242)
Unallocated expenses AOEHZ (6,901)
Profit before tax BREE A& A 426,685

ez et BRENESMAAEES
AARR BN HERESOBRBEZAE
o LB ECEE L RAREE RO
H WA~ Hib Wt &R - hEH B AR

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment profit or loss represents profit earned by or loss
from each segment without allocation of share of results of

associates, unallocated other income, other gains and losses, W BIEHERB AR 2 WS — B
gain on disposal of subsidiaries, gain on deemed disposal BRARZELERZ ATFEZS  LE— [

ERAIZEBR RIFLE—RBERRZE

of subsidiaries, change in fair value of preference share of a

subsidiary, loss on disposal of an associate, loss on deemed
disposal of an associate, change in fair value of derivative
and embedded derivative components of convertible bond,
central administration costs, share-based payment expenses
and certain interest expenses. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+_A=+— EIJtiE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. NEEHR (@)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERE 1%
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities AEBARERLENH 2 EEREBBESW
by reportable and operating segment: N
Segment assets D EREE
As at 31 December
mR+ZA=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TF T ARBFT
Traditional loans and financing BEHRERLHE 3,901,174 4,328,395
Third party payment service F=FH IR 1,240,963 705,799
Online investment and EGRE MBS E KRS
technology-enabled lending service 2,874,718 1,416,504
Blockchain services & 17 5 AR 75 831,164 -
Others H b 1,040,529 928,417
Total segment assets DEREE 9,888,548 7,379,115
Unallocated corporate assets Ao EEE 2,435,040 1,483,398
Consolidated total assets IREREE 12,323,588 8,862,513
Segment liabilities EREE
As at 31 December
m+ZA=+—H
2017 2016
—F—+t#HF —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Traditional loans and financing BERERLBHE 613,694 1,102,939
Third party payment service F=F AR 468,291 250,915
Online investment and %E%%?x & MEH RS E RS
technology-enabled lending service 1,185,559 265,257
Blockchain services % 58 5% R 7% 11,343 -
Others Hb 31,562 12,295
Total segment liabilities DEBREE 2,310,449 1,631,406
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBEEERE 4,446,723 2,989,527
Consolidated total liabilities REREaE 6,757,172 4,620,933
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than interests in associates, interests in joint ventures,
available-for-sale investments, amounts due from joint
ventures, amounts due from associates, amounts due
from related companies, held for trading investments,
certain bank balances and cash and income tax
recoverable; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
amounts due to related companies, borrowings,
convertible bonds, corporate bonds, preference shares
of a subsidiary, other financial liabilities, deferred tax
liabilities and income tax payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement§
e BFHRE M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. MEBER ()
Other segment information HinpEBE R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_F—tF+-A=+—HIFE
Online
investment
and
technology-
Traditional Third party enabled
loans and payment lending Blockchain
financing service service services Others Total
ERRER
BEER %% )
R#E X R SHRB ERERS it @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETR  AREFR  AR%TR

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

FADBERRS BEENBZEE:

Additions to non-current REFRBDEAE

assets (Note) (BisE) 38,446 79,307 13,056 245,752 115,531 492,182
Depreciation bk 839 15,279 2,899 64,070 415 83,502
Amortisation 25 - - - - 60,707 60,707
Fair value change of provision BERREE

for financial guarantee AVEZY - - 1,283,428 - - 1,283,428
Falr value change in preference —-ANBARZEBER

share of a subsioliary ZATEES - - 47,007 - - 47,007
Impairment recognised AEVAERRL

on intangiole assets HE - - - - 23,223 23,223
Impairment recognised an amounts ~ SEEMAE S ETERR

due from joint ventures HiE - - - - 4,074 4,074
Impairment recognised REMEBRZERRL

on other receivables HE 24,414 - - - - 24,414
Impairment recognised REKERERL

on loan receivables HE 49,929 - - - - 49,929
Net loss on disposaliwritten off of HE/ MEFRERRE

plant and equipment BiEFE 1,854 - - - - 1,854
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. WEEN (@)
Hih s EE R (@)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 Bz —ZF—NF+-_A=+—HIFEF
Online
investment
and
technology-
Traditional Third party enabled
loans and payment lending
financing service service Others Total
THEER
BERER £ZH R EEE)
REE SR BERR% Hity @Er
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®FT AREFT AR®FT AR®FT
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:
FADBERIHIBEEHE R
Additions to non-current NEFERBEE
assets (Note) (Mi3E) 289 34,518 680,278 279,236 994,321
Depreciation nE 1,514 5,200 1,626 353 8,693
Amortisation e - - - 9,982 9,982
Fair value change of provision BEERREEL
for financial guarantee TEEY - - 10,893 - 10,893
Fair value change in preference —RNE AR ZBER
share of a subsidiary ZATEEE) - - 461 - 461
Impairment recognised HEFEERRL
on intangible assets BE - - - 999 999
Reversal of impairment recognised ~ SL/E M E FHER
on loan receivables HERD (641) - - - (641)
Impairment recognised HEMERRIBERER
on other receivables HIE 4,744 - - - 4,744
Net loss on disposal of HERERZE
plant and equipment EEFE 4 - - - 4
Net gain on disposal of HEEVEEY
intangible assets Yngs FHE - - - 5216 5,216
Note: B 5
Non-current assets included plant and equipment, investment property, REBEE-_ZT—+tFE_FT—"F+=-A=+—H

goodwill and intangible assets for the years ended 31 December 2017

and 2016.

HEE JF//\LEUQ?“TEW%&%&T%ﬁﬁﬁ%%*

EENETLEE-
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e R ET M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. FEMEHR @)

Geographical information [ 15 & 43

Information about the Group’s revenue from external EHASBERBINEE P HWABER Ty
customers is presented based on the location of customers. EEMEMEY - EEAEENIEREEE
Information about the Group’s non-current assets other than (EBITERINHER DIREEMTRES,
financial instruments, is presented based on the geographical £5l°

location of the assets.

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
KAEMDEFHBA FEBEE
For the year ended 31 December As at 31 December
BE+-BA=+-HLEE R+ZHA=+-H
2017 2016 2017 2016
—F-t% —E-RF —F-+t% ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFT AR¥FT ARBETT
PRC s 4,005,233 809,344 2,830,733 1,529,431
Hong Kong BB 334,827 266,333 255,461 1,224,439
Others Hith 464,950 - 434,751 -
4,805,010 1,075,677 3,520,945 2,753,870
Information about major customers FRAFEERPZER
None of the customers accounting for 10% or more of REBEEZFT—+FEZFT—-—XRF+H
aggregate revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 =t+—HLEFE BEAREEHAKAI0%
December 2017 and 2016. FAEHES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HligA

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2017 2016

—E—t#& ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARBFIT

Government grants (Note) BT AERL (MI5E) 2,747 2,581

Bank interest income SRITHBUA 8,573 9,769

Interest income on convertible bond AR E SR B YA - 733
Dividend income from held for BIEEBRE ZBREBA

trading investments 6,834 -

Other interest income H a0 F 2 M A 11,217 755

Net gain on disposal of intangible assets & & & 2 Wt F 58 - 5,216

Net exchange difference I ERE - 1,366
Interest income from available-for-sale  AJ{ft H & E 2 F| S U A

investments - 4,680

Reversal of impairment loss recognised 5t &l E iR 2

on loan receivables BEEER D - 641

Others EHh 3,458 1,208

32,829 26,949

Note:

Government grants in respect of encouragement of expansion of
enterprise were recognised at the time the Group fulfilled the relevant
granting criteria.
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11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

10. it & R EG1R

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2017 2016

—_F—t#& T —RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBTT

Inputed interest on corporate bonds NElEFZEENE 3,702 7,432

Gain on disposal of held for trading HERBEEERE 2 &=

investment 9,597 -
Fair value changes of held for trading  #H{EEBIRE 2 A FEEF)

investments 7,326 (8,018)

20,625 4,414

INTEREST EXPENSES

—h

CFBRX

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1+—HLEE

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#TF T ARET T

Interest on bank and other borrowings 817 K& E b (& E F| & 172,181 100,198
Interest on corporate bonds NEEHFFE 8,431 21,478
Interest on convertible bonds AR ESH B 202,742 116,508
383,354 238,184
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &EZ - =

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

—tFt-A=t—HLHFE

12. B& % 8y i 7

2 M DA FORR T 51 & R B

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: BR T AR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tH ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT
(a) Staff costs, including (@) BEImAE SiFEEHM
directors’ remuneration
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IEREMER 282,874 95,937
Contribution to defined contribution TE R TR KB FIET 8
retirement benefits scheme MR (F5E44)
(Note 44) 27,699 14,866
Share-based payment expenses AR A4 2 i 160,684 109,986
471,257 220,789
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e R ET M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 12, BB AE R (20

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+t#H ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBF T
(b) Other items b) H#IEE
Auditors’ remuneration A GIE AT 2,557 1,900
Depreciation (included in TE (FFATTE R
administrative and other HEmasEm)
operating expenses) 83,502 8,693
Amortisation (included in By (R ATBLR
administrative and other Efh & FsT)
operating expenses) 60,707 9,982
Net exchange loss FHIE R EE 5,562 -
Operating lease charges PEGEHEREZ
in respect of properties 46,511 19,715
Fair value change of —HNB AR ZEER
preference share of a subsidiary NEBEEH 47,007 461
Fair value change of provision BmEERBEEZ
for financial guarantee NEEEZS
(included in administrative and (BT AT R
other operating expenses) Hib@&Ems) 1,283,428 10,893
Impairment loss recognised on BRI E FRRERR
loan receivables (included BEEE (GT AT R
in administrative and other Hmhasgms)
operating expenses) 49,929 -
Impairment loss recognised on WL FE R IE W R
other receivables (included BEBE (GTATERE
in administrative and other HE e )
operating expenses) 24,414 4,744
Impairment loss recognised BN E & EKIE
on amounts due from R BEEE
joint ventures (included in (FFATTH R
administrative and other &)
operating expenses) 4,074 -
Impairment loss recognised on MEFEERR
intangible assets (included WEEE (AT R
in administrative and other HAib g2 )
operating expenses) 23,223 999
Net loss on disposal/written-off RS & a%
of plant and equipment BRI (G ATTH R
(included in administrative and HEMgEm)
other operating expenses) 1,854 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX 13. & #
(a) Taxation in the consolidated (@) ZeEEREMEEKER
statement of profit or loss and other NZHBLIETE:

comprehensive income represented:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+t#& ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREEF T
Current tax: B HAR 18 -
Provision for Hong Kong BEANESHEE
Profits Tax 10,687 6,272
Provision for PRC Enterprise FEMEMER
income tax (the “EIT”) ([EFRBH) BB 434,117 74,626
Provision of Vietnam Income Tax  #F3 AT 15 Bt B 1% 3,276 -
Under-provision in prior years RBAFERETZE - 1,698
448,080 82,596
Deferred tax (Note 37) IEFERLIE (FMI5E37) 1,619 1,842
449,699 84,438
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

13. T & % (&)

13. INCOME TAX (continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represented:
(Continued)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group
is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

The applicable tax rate for the subsidiaries incorporated
in Hong Kong is 16.5% for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

Profits of the subsidiaries established in the PRC are
subject to PRC EIT.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on EIT
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
several subsidiaries established in the PRC were
recognised as High Technology Enterprises and subject
to PRC income tax at 15% in accordance with the EIT
Law which will expire in the years of 2019 and 2020,
respectively.

(a) HEEHE

REMEENESR

NZHMIEE: (&)

(il

RERAEHEREBELES ([
BRZES ) RRRER  NEEE
ARMENRSEEREBELHES
A Ht e

HE-_T—tFR TR F+=-A
—t+—BIEFE REBFMKIZ
B8 A Az i AT 2 516.5% ©

PR BIAK S22 FfS B8 1) R 2 e I ZR A A
PEMEMSH-

BIEFREARLNBECERSHE
(IEMBRZE]D) RECEMBRIE
BHEIEG] - R EIM B A R R WA S
B2 BEHHB25% °

HE-_ZT—tFR TR F+_-A
= t+—HLEFE RPBEKIZET
WEBARER ASRFEZE AR
BEOERBRUAIE15%2 i R g
BATRH #oRR_E—NEFR=
ZoTEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX (continued)

(b) The tax charge for the year can be
reconciled to profit before tax per the
consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income
as follows:

13. Fi 15 % (an)
(b) ZMF- BiF5STH 5

HIEGER

Hit 2 W BERZRH
i "‘%UZ%TEE!IHT

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+t#& ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREEF T
Profit before tax B 5 B A 1,548,147 426,685
Notional tax on profit before tax, 1ZiEBANABREIFIE A A ERE A
calculated at the rates applicable & | &% & 5+ & H9 B &4 Al i F)
to profits in the tax jurisdictions & Fi 18
concerned 336,156 67,849
Tax effect of expenses not A HRAI IR G E
deductible for tax purpose 125,664 24,625
Tax effect of incomes not taxable 78 s F1 Uk A B9 R 765 57 22
for tax purpose (20,476) (1,387)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERNIBEENR ST 2
recognised 16,953 3,519
Tax effect of share of results DIREE RNRIER
of associates M (9,208) (7,398)
Utilisation of tax losses previously & 3 5& Al R iR 8 B 75 85 18
not recognised (1,756) (6,075)
Income tax on concessionary rate 1ZEE T K E 7 SR - (199)
Tax exemption (Note) HEAS (M) (35) (40)
Under-provision in prior years RBEFEREBETR - 1,698
Tax effect of withholding tax MAEEFEHNEB AR
at 10% on the distributable A 59k 5 A% 10%
profits of the Group’s PRC FTEENBABRGEEE
subsidiaries 2,401 1,842
Income tax expense for the year & A FT15 8 F X 449,699 84,438
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, two (2016: Mz 2T —+tF+=-A=+—H

two) companies were entitled to 75% tax deduction on
Hong Kong Profits Tax with a cap at HK$20,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+_A=+— EIJtiE

. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 14. EE R I ETHAESME
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 14 (2016: 12) ZEENSENTEEZ (ZE—RF:+=
directors and the chief executive were as follows: FIEBENTETRABZHMEWT
Salaries, Contribution Share-based
allowances to retirement payment
Directors’ and other benefits Discretionary  transaction
fees benefits scheme bonuses expenses Total
AR 1
He ERR RIMER %tz
ok HigH FHEIE BT RELH ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TR AR¥Fr AR®Tr AR¥TR AREFR
Year ended 31 December 2017
BEZE—t&+BA=+—-HLEE
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat TRERE - 2,601 16 217 26,536 29,370
Mr. Chng Swee Ho PraEy - 2,289 16 191 3,417 5,913
Mr. Sheng Jia BERE - 1,248 16 104 3,417 4,785
Mr. Yang Jianhui (note ) BERLE (M) - 352 - 29 - 381
Non-executive directors: HRTEE:
Mr. Li Mingshan FHILEAE - - - - - -
Mr. Li Gang FHEE 416 - - - 2,605 3,021
Mr. Wong Sai Hung (note i) EH A (B EE) 416 - - - 2,605 3,021
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin RIRFT LA 416 - - - - 416
Ms. Zhou Youmeng AREZL 416 - - - 1,966 2,382
Indepencient non-executive BUIRTEE:
directors
Mr. Ge Ming BR%EL 416 - - - 1,629 2,045
Dr. Ou Minggang B 416 - - - 1,556 1,972
Mr. Wang Wei (note iii FEg A (M) 104 - - - 1,629 1,733
Dr. Yin Zhongli FyEt 416 - - - 1,556 1,972
Dr. Wang Songgi (note iv) FRFEL (FtzTiv) 213 - - - - 213
Total &t 3,229 6,490 48 541 46,916 57,224
Notes: B 5E
)  Appointed on 8 November 2017 () RHZT—tF+—A\BEZHE
(i) Resigned on 5 February 2018 iy MZZTE—NFZARABEHTE
(i)  Resigned on 1 April 2017 iy R=T—tFHA—BEIT
(v)  Appointed on 27 June 2017 vy RZZTE—tFAZTtHEZF

£32017 « AFREREEAERAT 312



Notes to the Cor]solidated Financial Statements
EMB RN

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 4. EEZERITETHAEME @
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Salaries,  Contribution Share-based
allowances  to retirement payment
Directors’ and other benefits  Discretionary transaction
fees benefits scheme bonuses expenses Total
WARR 1R
e 2UR RIKER iz
EEHe Hit 7 FEIfR HBEL RHEH Fok

RMBO0O ~ RMB'000  RMB'OO0O ~ RMBOO0O  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETL

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z-"E+-A=1+-HBLEE

Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Phang Yew Kiat CRGEE - 942 16 214 7,970 9,142
Mr. Chng Swee Ho HHEEE - 890 15 188 2,437 3,530
Mr. Sheng Jia gL - 719 15 103 2,437 3,074
Non-executive directors: HHTEE:
Mr. Li Mingshan FHRILEE - - - - - -
Mr. Li Gang FRI%E 283 - - - 1,677 1,960
Mr. Wong Sai Hung Ejunigita 283 - - - 1,677 1,960
Mr. Zhang Zhenxin RIRFTE A 282 - - - - 282
Ms. Zhou Youmeng ARERL 282 - - - 316 598
Independent non-executive BUHRTEE:

directors
Mr. Ge Ming BHLL 283 - - - 1015 1208
Dr. Ou Minggang BRI E L 282 - - - 891 1,173
Mr. Wang Wei THEAE 283 - - - 1,015 1,298
Dr. Yin Zhongli FhyEL 282 - - - 891 1,173
Total X 2,260 2,551 46 5056 20,326 25,688
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Phang Yew Kiat is the Chief Executive of the Company
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. His
emoluments disclosed above include those for service
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The performance related incentive payment is determined
by reference to the individual performance of the directors of
the Company and the chief executive and approved by the
remuneration committee.

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors of the
Company waived any emoluments in the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors of the
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

Expect for those emoluments which were paid for non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors in
respect of service as directors of the Company, all remaining
emoluments were in respect of management of affairs of the
Group for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

M4 EERTETHAEME @

EREFEERARABE_ZT—LFR-F
—ARFT A=+ -BUEFEZEFERT
B EXFRBERZMEBRREETER
WITEPIRRERB M 2B

HXBFRBZRZBNRISEARBAERER
ERITBRABZEAARBEE  WEH M
ZEefE-

REBEZ2-_ZT—+FE-_ZE—XF+=-H
ZT—BIFE TETBRABSARAGT
MESRERETMAME -

HEZZ—tFRZF—A"F+ZA=+—
HEFEAR AEEBRERNARAREAES
TAHEMIE  fEAEMASMAREE %
Y 22 E Sk B B AR (2 o

BRMIEMITE R B IFNITESERAR
AEERHEZMBM N TRF2ZEHE
ShoFrBEB T DEAREEE T+t
FRZB-RET_A=+—RIEFEZE
BEBHRE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

15. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 15. EEM &
The five highest paid individuals of the Group include three rEEAEERTMATRE=2(2%F
(2016: three) directors, whose remuneration are set out in note —RNEFEZR)EE HMeBRAERWE
14. Details of emolument paid to the remaining two (2016: two) 14 - BNEAEEBTRHE(ZE—ARF W
highest paid individual of the Group was as follows: H)EEHFMALES 2FFIB0OT

For the year ended 31 December
BE+ZA=+—HILEE

2017 2016

—E—+t# TR

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TF T ARBFT

Salaries, allowance, and other benefits ~ #r & 28 K& E b 13 T 5,196 4,270
Contribution to defined contribution TEREHE FUR R FIEH B 3K

retirement benefit scheme 36 31

Discretionary bonuses BB IELT 516 282

Share-based payment expenses ARR D S22 2 i 3,123 3,657

8,871 8,240

31 5 CHONG SING HOLDINGS FINTECH GROUP LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement§
e BFHRE M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZEZZT—+F+_A=-+—HILFE

. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)  15. lE S Bl & (@)

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZHMENFIATEE :

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-H=+—HILLEE

2017 2016
S g 3 ZE-RF
No. of No. of
employees employees
BE8E EE#HE
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001/ 7T £5,000,000/% 7T
(equivalent to approximately (FHER K AREES,423,601
RMB3,423,601 to approximately TLE K ANR®4,279,5007T)
RMB4,279,500) (2016: equivalent (ZZE—RF - HEEROA
to approximately RMB3,214,001 to R#3,214,001 T2 H AR
approximately RMB4,017,500) 4,017,5007T) 2 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,000,001 7T 26,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to approximately (FEBERHARA4,279,501
RMB4,279,501 to approximately TLEK AR M5,135,4007T)
RMB5,135,400) (2016: equivalent (ZE—RE-MHEERHOA
to approximately RMB4,017,501 to R¥4,017,501 T2 H AR
approximately RMB4,821,000) 4,821,0007tT) - 1
2 2
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the five REE_ZE—+tFR-ZTE— "F+=A
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon =t+—BUEFERN AEETERAAHS
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during FATE RS fEAIASMBEASE
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. B 1% 2 REN S AIEABEBEE -
The details of remuneration of member of senior management SREREKEZME 2FBRFERIDE
are disclosed in Corporate Governance Report of the annual ERmEREE-

report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-_Z—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

16. DIVIDENDS 16.

Final dividend for 2017 and 2016

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2017, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2016: Nil).

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Hl G

“E-tEERIF-RNERER
RBE-F—tF+-A=+BLFE
mﬂﬁﬁikm/%@ﬂﬂ - BAREE
AT B R B (E RS, (— T —
i)

BRAEF

ARRHERARESRERNEERN TR
THIEEAE

2017 2016
—F—tfF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Earnings B2F
Earnings for the year attributable to HESREAREERT
the owners of the Company for the RABER AL AT ERF
purpose of basic and diluted
earnings per share 803,013 301,122
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+_A=+— EIJtiE

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 17. BB (@)
As at 31 December
w+-—HB=+—H
2017